
 
 

 

 
Meeting of:   

 
Corporate Overview and Scrutiny Committee 

Date: Tuesday, 24th November, 2020 
Time: 6.00 pm. 
Venue: Zoom 

 
This agenda gives notice of items to be considered in private as required by 
Regulations 5 (4) and (5) of The Local Authorities (Executive Arrangements) 
(Meetings and Access to Information) (England) Regulations 2012. 

Item 
No. 

AGENDA Page No 

1   Apologies   

 To receive any apologies for absence.  

2   Declarations of Interest   

 Members are required to declare any disclosable pecuniary, personal 

or personal and prejudicial interests they may have and the nature of 

those interests relating to items on this agenda and/or indicate if S106 

of the Local Government Finance Act 1992 applies to them.    

 

3   Urgent Items of Business   

 To determine whether there are any additional items of business 

which, by reason of special circumstances, the Chair decides should 

be considered at the meeting as a matter of urgency. 

 

4   Minutes  4 - 13 

 To consider the Minutes of the Meeting of the Corporate Overview and 

Scrutiny Committee held 22nd September 2020 and to note the actions 

list appended thereto. 

 

5   Resources and Neighbourhoods Directorate Plans 2020-21 

Quarter 2 Performance Update  

14 - 32 

6   LGO Annual Report 2019/2020  33 - 42 

 Report attached.  

Public Document Pack



7   2021/22 Setting the Business Rate Base  43 - 48 

 To consider proposals for the Business Rate Base for 2021/2022  

8   Calculation of 2021-22 Taxbase  49 - 56 

 To consider proposals for the Council Tax Base for 2021/2022  

9   Council Tax Empty Property Charges  57 - 60 

 Proposed Council Tax charges for empty properties in the Borough.  

10   Schools Final Outturns and Reportable Surplus 2019/2020  61 - 70 

 Report attached for information.  

11   Finance Update Report Period 6  71 - 118 

 Financial Update for Period 6: 2020/2021  

12   Greater Manchester Combined Authority - Minutes of Scrutiny 

Committees  

119 - 132 

 a. Economy, Business Growth and Skills Overview and Scrutiny 

Committee – 9th October 2020. 

b. Corporate Issues and Reform Overview and Scrutiny 

Committee – 6th October 2020. 

 

13   Work Programme 2020/2021  133 - 137 

 To note the Committee’s Work Programme 2020/2021  

14   Exclusion of Press and Public   

 To consider that the press and public be excluded from the remaining 

part of the meeting pursuant to Section 100(A)4 of the Local 

Government Act 1972 on the grounds that discussions may involve the 

likely disclosure of exempt information as defined in the provisions of 

Part 1 of Schedule 12A to the Local Government Act 1972 and public 

 



 
 

interest would not be served in publishing the information.  

15   Insurance Claims Report 2019/2020  138 - 155 

 

Corporate Overview and Scrutiny Committee Members 2020/2021 -  
Councillor David Bamford Councillor Malcolm Boriss 
Councillor Michael Holly (Chair) Councillor Peter Joinson 
Councillor Amna Mir Councillor Kallum Nolan 
Councillor Shaun O'Neill (Vice Chair) Councillor Liam O'Rourke 
Councillor Faisal Rana Councillor Linda Robinson 
Councillor Elsie Wraighte  
 

For more information about this meeting, please contact:- 
Peter Thompson 
Committees and Constitutional Services 
Rochdale Borough Council 
 
Telephone – 01706 924715 
e-mail – peter.thompson@rochdale.gov.uk  

mailto:peter.thompson@rochdale.gov.uk


CORPORATE OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 
 

MINUTES OF MEETING 
Tuesday, 22nd September 2020 

 
PRESENT:  Councillor Holly (in the Chair); Councillors: Boriss, Joinson, 
Nolan, O’Neill, O’Rourke, Rana and Robinson.  
 
OFFICERS: N. Thornton (Director of Resources), J. Rooney (Assistant 
Director (Information, Customers and Communities), J. Murphy (Chief Finance 
Officer), S. Smith (Deputy Chief Finance Officer), R. Barker (Head of 
Workforce and organisational Development), A. Wytwyckyj (Neighbourhoods 
Directorate), A. Ridyard and P. Thompson (Resources Directorate). 
 

12 APOLOGIES 
Apologies for absence were received from Councillors Bamford, Mir and 
Wraighte. 
 

13 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 
There were no declarations of interests. 
 

14 MINUTES 
Resolved: 
That the Minutes of the meeting of the Corporate Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee, held 4th August 2020, be approved as a correct record, subject to 
the correct spelling of Councillor Nolan’s name. 
 

15 HEALTH RELATED ABSENCE REPORT 
The Committee scrutinised a report presented by the Head of Workforce and 
Organisational Development, which provided Members with third quarter, 
fourth quarter and year end health related absence figures in respect of 
2019/2020. 
 
Overall the number of days lost per FTE (Full Time Equivalent) was 9.67 for 
2019/2020, with the main reasons for absence being stress/depression and 
operative/post-operative.  The Directorates with the highest number of days 
lost per FTE were Adult Care, Children’s Services and Neighbourhoods. 
 
During the latter part of 2019/2020, the third quarter health related absence 
figures (October - December 2019) indicated that 2.73 days per FTE were 
lost, with a slight decrease in the fourth quarter (January – March 2020) to 
2.60 days per FTE lost. 
 
Although not relevant to the reporting period in question, Appendix One of the 
submitted report, provided Members with an overview of recorded Covid-19 
related absences, as at 31st March 2020. 
 
Each of the Council’s Directorates were committed to continuing to monitor 
and manage absence to meet the challenging targets, which they had been 
set, on an annual basis. In addition, the Council’s Human Resources Service 

Page 4

Agenda Item 4



continued to provide strategic advice and support to Services including 
attendance at Absence clinics.  Regular support was also provided to 
managers who had staff absent on long term sick or with persist short term 
absences.  The Human Resources Service also continued to provide training 
(including e-learning and face to face training) and to support managers 
across the Authority on effective absence management, whilst also providing 
support to staff. 
 
The Chair asked if Members could be provided with information that 
compared Rochdale’s performance, relating to health related absences, with 
the other authorities in Greater Manchester. 
 
Resolved: 

1. That the report be noted. 
2. The Head of Workforce and Organisational Development be requested 

to provide Members of the Corporate Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee with a briefing note which compares Rochdale Council’s 
performance, relating to health related absences, with the other 
authorities in Greater Manchester. 

 
16 EMPLOYMENT EQUALITY REPORT 

The Head of Workforce and Organisation Development presented Members 
with the Employment Equality Report for 2019/2020.  The report informed 
Members that the Council was seeking to ensure that the composition of its 
workforce reflected the diverse local community, and offered equality of 
opportunity in employment. It was reported that the Council was compliant 
with the requirements of the Public Sector Equality Duty to publish equality 
information of its workforce. 
 
This report provided information for the financial year ending on 31st March 
2020 and aimed to demonstrate the progress and achievements in increasing 
the composition over time to demonstrate how the workforce’s diversity had 
changed, and how this compared to the demographic profile of Rochdale 
Borough (based on the 2011 census data).   
 
It was noted that the Council had established an Equality and Diversity 
Steering Group to support its commitment to integrate equality, diversity and 
inclusion throughout its services.  A key component of the strategy would be 
equality, diversity and inclusion in employment which would look to address 
those areas where the Council was under-represented when compared to the 
local population. 
 
In considering the report Members noted11.5% of the Council’s workforce 
were from BAME and other identifiable minority communities, which was 
under representative of the overall percentage of BAME residents in the 
Borough. It was further noted that there were no members of the Council’s 
senior management team that was from the BAME community. In response 
the Head of Workforce and Organisation Development undertook to 
investigate these issues further. 
 

Page 5



Members also sought clarification on the Council’s recruitment and selection 
procedures and policies and suggested that further work be undertaken to 
investigate this matter (and the Committee subsequently resolved to establish 
a scrutiny study group to examine this issue – minute 23 below, refers). 
 
Resolved: 
That the report be noted. 
 

17 DIRECTORATE PLANS 2020/2021 - RESOURCES DIRECTORATE AND 
NEIGHBOURHOODS DIRECTORATE 
The Committee scrutinised the Resources Directorate Plan 2020/2021 and 
the Neighbourhoods Directorate Plan 2020/2021. 
  
The Directorate Plans outlined the action that the Directorates were intending 
to take over the coming year, to support the Council’s long-term vision and 
strategic priorities. The Plans sought to support the Council’s vision to ‘grow 
our economy and develop the Borough through co-operation and partnership, 
improving the lives of local people and communities’. 
 
In considering the Directorate Plans Members noted the good work that was 
being undertaken across the service areas in both Directorates. In respect of 
the Neighbourhoods Directorate, the Committee commended the ongoing 
excellent work being undertaken across the Borough by the ‘front-line’ 
services which had in many cases been a virtual life-line to some of the 
Borough’s more isolated and vulnerable residents. 
 
The Committee noted that due to the impact of Covid-19 the Directorate Plans 
were being submitted to the Committee relatively late in the Municipal Year, 
therefore it was suggested that in future the Plans be submitted to the 
Committee at the first available meeting after their formulation or alternatively 
be submitted to an overview and scrutiny planning session that is typically 
held at the beginning of the Municipal Year and it would enable the Plans to 
be used as a guide for developing the Committee’s work programme. 
 
Resolved: 

1. The Resources Directorate Plan 2020/2021, be noted. 
2. The Neighbourhoods Directorate Plans 2020/2021, be noted. 
3. In future years, Directorate Plans relevant to this Committee, be 

submitted either to the first available meeting after their formulation or 
alternatively be submitted to an overview and scrutiny planning session 
which are usually held at the beginning of the Municipal Year, thereby 
enabling the Directorate Plans to be used as a guide for developing the 
Committee’s Work Programme. 

 
18 3RD & 4TH QUARTER CORPORATE COMPLAINTS 

The Assistant Director (Information, Customers and Communities) provided 
the Scrutiny Committee with a summary of corporate complaints and 
compliments received during the third and fourth quarters of 2019/2020 
(September 2019 – March 2020).  The Committee was reminded that part of 

Page 6



the Council’s performance management process was to ensure the Authority’s 
ambition to continuously improve services was realised. 
 
It was reported that in total, 247 new complaints were received during the 
second half of 2019/2020, across all services.  The majority of the complaints 
were resolved at ‘Stage One’, with only 13 escalating to ‘Stage Two’ and two 
complaints being dealt with at ‘Stage Three’.   A total of 110 compliments 
were received during this reporting period.  
 
Members were pleased to note there had been a slight reduction in the overall 
number of complaints received the year and that the majority of the Council’s 
service areas had received fewer complaints in the reporting period compared 
to the previous year. 
 
Resolved: 
That the report be noted. 
 

19 FINANCIAL UPDATE (PERIOD 4) 2020/2021 
The Committee scrutinised a report of the Chief Finance Officer, which 
updated members on the Council’s forecast 2020/2021 financial position as at 
the end of July 2020.The Finance Update report contains details of the 
following: 
 
a. The forecast Revenue outturn position, showing a pressure of 
£11,426k. The General Fund pressure relating to Covid-19 was reported to be 
£26,920k, which was partially offset by the use of the government funding 
relating to Covid-19 of £16,032k.  Non-Covid-19 pressures were currently 
reported as an in-year pressure of £538k.  
b. The Savings plans of £4,169k comprised of ongoing savings and £280k 
of one-off savings, with a balance to address of £764k.  The balance to 
address was an impact of Covid-19. 
c. An update on the Health & Social Care Pool Fund. 
d. Forecast Capital expenditure of £135,430k, after re-phasing of 
£23,407k, £22,000k for schools being delivered in the next financial year and 
funded through external grants, grant increases of £2,295k for transport 
schemes and a budget reduction due to the transfer of £18k funding to an 
Academy.  
e. The forecast 2020/2021 Collection Fund position of a deficit of 
£30,450k, which would be partially mitigated by increased government 
Section 31 grant of £20,950k, leaving a residual pressure of £9,500k, this 
pressure relating to the impact of Covid. The Council’s share of the forecast 
2020/2021 Collection Fund deficit is £8,381k, which will impact on the 
Council’s General Fund budget for 2021/2022. 
 
The purpose of the report was to keep Members updated on the financial 
position of the authority, as effective budget management was considered to 
be critical to ensuring the financial resources were spent in line with the 
budget and that they were targeted towards the Council’s priorities. The report 
focused on the forecast 2020/2021 financial position as at the end July 2020. 
 

Page 7



The Committee was advised that the submitted report was due to be 
considered by the Cabinet at its next meeting on 29th September 2020. 
 
Resolved: 
That the report be noted. 
 

20 REVENUE BUDGET 2021/2022 TO 2023/2024 AND CAPITAL 
PROGRAMME 2021/2022 TO 2025/2026 
The Committee scrutinised a report of the Chief Finance Officer that provided 
an update on the Revenue Budget and 2021/22 to 2023/24. The report also 
provided an update on the Council’s Medium Term Financial Strategy; 
outlined proposed changes to the Council’s Capital Programme 2020/21; and 
described the Council’s proposed Capital Programme 2021/22 to 2025/26, as 
a basis for consultation. 
 
In considering the report the Committee were informed that the report was 
being presented to the Cabinet’s meeting on 29th September 2020, where that 
meeting would be required to recommend a balanced 2021/2022 Revenue 
Budget to the Budget Council meeting (in March 2021), and provisional 
budgets for 2022/2023 to 2023/2024. The Council was required to set a 
balanced budget for 2021/2022 by 11th March 2021. Members of the Scrutiny 
Committee were advised that the Revenue budget, Medium Term Financial 
Strategy Capital Programme were key parts of the budget setting process. 
 
Resolved: 
That the report be noted. 
 

21 DISCRETIONARY FEES AND CHARGES 2021/2022 
The Committee scrutinised a report of the Chief Finance Officer, which 
presented proposed increases to Discretionary Fees and Charges, across the 
authority, for 2021/2022. Discretionary Fees and Charges were reviewed on 
an annual basis. At the Cabinet meeting held 28th July 2020, a 2% general 
increase in Discretionary Fees and Charges for 2021/2022 was agreed for 
planning purposes, subject to various exemptions highlighted within the 
report. 
 
The Chief Finance Officer’s report detailed the proposed Discretionary Fees 
and Charges for 2021/2022, as a basis for consultation, and the report also 
detailed those charges which were proposed to be exempt from the general 
2% increase. 
 
The Committee were advised that the submitted report was due to be 
presented to the Cabinet at its meeting on 29th September 2020. 
 
Resolved: 
That the report be noted.  
 
 
 

Page 8



22 GREATER MANCHESTER CORPORATE ISSUES AND REFORM 
OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY COMMITTEE. 
Resolved: 
That the Minutes of the meeting of the Greater Manchester Corporate Issues 
and Reform Overview and Scrutiny Committee held 16th June 2020, be noted. 
 

23 CORPORATE OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE - WORK 
PROGRAMME 2020/2021 
Members considered the Committee’s Work Programme for 2020/2021, which 
outlined the scheduled programme of reports during the year. 
 
Members requested that consideration be given to the establishment of 
scrutiny study groups to examine two issues: firstly the recruitment and 
selection of staff and secondly the establishment of a Members Development 
Programme. 
 
Further to Minute 4 of the Committee’s meeting held 4th August 2020 
(Township Plan 2020-2022) the Chair indicated that he would consider with 
the Committee’s Vice Chair the feasibility of establishing a study group to 
examine the role of Township Committees.  
 
Resolved: 

1. The Committee’s Work Programme 2020/2021 be noted. 
2. A Scrutiny Study Group comprising five Members, including the Chair 

and Vice Chair of this Committee, be established to examine two 
issues: the recruitment and selection of staff and the establishment of a 
Members Development Programme.  

3. The establishment of a study group to examine the role of Township 
Committees, be discussed and assessed by the Chair and Vice Chair 
of this Committee. 

 
24 EXCLUSION OF PRESS AND PUBLIC 

Resolved: 
That the Press and Public be excluded from the meeting during consideration 
of the following item of business, in accordance with the provisions of Section 
100A (4) of the Local Government Act 1972, as amended. 
  
Reason for the resolution 
Should the press and public remain during debate on this item there may be a 
disclosure of information that is deemed to be exempt under Parts 1 and 4 of 
Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972. 
 

25 CYBER SECURITY 
The Committee received a confidential presentation from the Assistant 
Director (Information, Customers and Communities) which detailed issues 
surrounding Cyber security including potential threats and measures that are 
being undertaken to counter these various threats. 
 
The Committee in considering the presentation noted that whilst training for 
staff on issues relating to cyber security was mandatory for the Council’s it 

Page 9



was currently optional for elected Members. Members of the Committee 
suggested that the training should be mandatory for councillors as well. 
 
Resolved: 

1. The presentation be noted and welcomed. 
2. The Committee recommends to the Cabinet that it be a mandatory 

requirement for all Members of the Council to undertake training on 
cyber security. 

 

Page 10



CORPORATE OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 
Actions List (22nd September 2020 meeting) 
 

ISSUE/MEETING 
REQUESTED 

ACTION RESPONSIBLE 
OFFICER(S) 

TIMESCALE OUTCOME 

Townships Plan 2020-
2022 
 

Chair and Vice Chair of the 
Committee to meet to consider the 
establishment of a study group to 
examine the role of Township 
Committees. 
 

Peter Thompson During 2020/2021  

Cyber Insurance Director of Neighbourhoods to 
submit a report/presentation to the 
next meeting of the Committee 
detailing the relevant issues 
surrounding Cyber Security 

Director of 
Neighbourhoods/Assistant 
Director (Information, 
Customers and 
Communities)  

Next meeting Presentation 
presented on 
22/9/20 

Council’s 
Communications 
Priorities 

Director of Neighbourhoods to 
submit a report to a future meeting 
of the Committee regarding the 
Council’s ‘communications 
priorities’ 

Director of 
Neighbourhoods/Assistant 
Director (Information, 
Customers and 
Communities) 

During 2020/2021  

Directorate Plans  The current Directorate Plans 
relating to the Resources and 
Neighbourhoods Directorates be 
submitted to the Committee’s next 
meeting in September 2020. 

Director of Resources and 
Director of 
Neighbourhoods 

Next meeting  Presentation 
presented on 
22/9/20  

Minutes of GMCA 
Scrutiny Committee 
meetings 

Future agendas for meetings of 
Corporate O&S Committee, 
wherever possible, to include the 
minutes, of meetings of Greater 
Manchester Combined Authority 
Scrutiny Committees.   

Peter Thompson Future meetings of 
the Corporate 
Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee  

 

P
age 11



 

Insurance Claims An annual report covering 
insurance claims will be presented 
to the Committee in the autumn of 
2020, to align with the insurance 
annual cycle (September – 
September) 

Director of Resources Report to the 
Corporate O&S 
Committee in autumn 
2020 

To the meeting on 
24th November 2020  

Directorate Plans Submission of Directorate Plans 
(Resources and Neighbourhoods 
Directorates) 

Director of Resources and 
Director of 
Neighbourhoods 

Either at the end of 
2020/021 or the 
beginning of the 
2021/2022 Municipal 
Year 

 

Health Related 
Absences 

The Head of Workforce and 
Organisational Development to 
provide Members of the 
Committee with a briefing note 
which compares Rochdale 
Council’s performance, relating to 
health related absences, with the 
other authorities in Greater 
Manchester. 

Head of Workforce and 
Organisational 
Development 

During 2020/2021  

Scrutiny Study Group To convene a Scrutiny Study 
Group to examine two issues: the 
recruitment and selection of staff 
and establishing a Members 
Development Programme 

Peter Thompson During 2020/2021 First meeting was 
held 16th November 
2020  

Cyber Security  The Committee recommended that 
the Cabinet make it a mandatory 
requirement for all Members of the 

Peter Thompson  The next available 
Cabinet meeting in 
2020/2021 

 

P
age 12



Council to undertake appropriate 
training on cyber security. 

 

P
age 13



 

Report to Corporate Overview and Scrutiny Committee 
 

 

Date of Meeting 24th November 2020 
Portfolio Cabinet Member for 

Quality of Place 
Report Author Ben Jorgensen 
Public/Private Document  

 

 

Resources and Neighbourhoods Directorate Plans 2020-21 Quarter 
2 Performance Update 

 

 

Executive Summary 

 
1. To report progress at the end of Quarter 2 (1st July – 30th September 2020) 

towards achievement of the targets contained in the Resources Directorate 
Plan 2020-21 and Neighbourhoods (Corporate Support) Directorate Plan 
2020-21 

 

Recommendation 

 
2. Members are asked to review the information contained within the report and 

the appendices. 
 
 

Reason for Recommendation 

 
3. 
 
 
 
3.1 
 
 
 
 
3.2 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3.3 

In accordance with the Council’s performance management framework, 
progress toward targets contained within Directorate Plans are to be reported 
to relevant Overview & Scrutiny Committees at the end of each quarter.  
 
The Quarter 2 progress reports for the Resources Directorate and 
Neighbourhoods (Corporate Support) Directorate are attached at Appendix 1 
and 2 respectively. Actions within each appendix have been colour coded in 
accordance with the following criteria 
 
Red: Action not fully completed or not on track to be completed by the target 
date 
Amber: Action not fully completed or not on track to be completed by the 
target date due to circumstances outside of the directorate’s control  
Green: Action completed by the target date  
Purple: Action is not yet due for completion but is currently on track 
 
The appendix includes a commentary against actions that are showing red, 
amber or purple. 

Page 14

Agenda Item 5



 

Key Points for Consideration 

 
4. 
 
 
 
4.1 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4.2 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4.3 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4.4 
 
 

Resources Directorate Plan 2020-21 Progress 
 
Performance Overview 
 
97% (29) of the actions included in the Directorate Plan 2020-21 are ongoing. 
One further action isn’t fully complete and the action due date has now 
passed. The chart below shows the overall performance of the Directorate in 
meeting its plan targets at the end of Quarter 2. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
The action that isn’t fully complete and the due date has now passed (Amber) 
relates to: 
 

 Development and approval of a corporate approach to sponsorship  
 

 
Quarter 2 Summary 
 
Work is progressing to strengthen governance arrangements across the 
organisation at service level with Resources, Adults/Commissioning and 
Economy Directorates setting out executive decision making responsibilities 
for Officers. It is expected that Resources and Adults Directorates will be 
completed by the end of October 2020. A report to Leadership team is 
included for the meeting on 6th October seeking nomination of lead officers for 
the remaining services. Initial work has already commenced with Children's 
sub-delegation scheme which will allow resources to be focused on 
developing understanding of processes and governance requirements. 
 
Progress is being made with the action to support the development and 
delivery of the 5 year Children’s Strategy in conjunction with finance. The 
service now have an agreed staffing structure in place, all recruitment within 

Page 15



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4.5 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4.6 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4.7 
 
 
 
4.8 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

children’s now has to have formal sign off by the Director via star chamber. 
The retention plan/policy for social workers is in place; the next retention 
payment for the none increment year 2022/23 will be funded corporately. We 
are continuing to monitor the number of agency and whether this is covid-19 
or vacancy/maternity cover. Services are expected to break even on salaries 
even with agency staff in place.  
 
Funding has been approved and the procurement process completed, with the 
contract being signed, for the introduction of a new case management system 
to streamline processes. An initial meeting was held on 17th September with 
the works to commence by mid-October depending upon internal ICT 
availability. The time-line suggested would allow the system to go live early 
March 2021. However, the risk at present is that if internal ICT are not 
available then legal would be without a case management system from 1st 
April 2021 as notice needs to be given to current supplier by end of December 
2020. 
 
Work on the digital strategy has continued to be on hold during Q2, however 
linked to our plans to develop a digital strategy a proposal has been drafted for 
the Council and CCG to sign up to the 'Digital Declaration'. The digital 
declaration, developed by MHCLG and the Government Digital Services, set 
out some principles for public sector organisations to sign up to, to improve 
local services. The paper set out the benefits and process of signing up 
together with a number of projects which we could put forward as our 
'declaration projects', as part of our application. It is hoped that we will be able 
to join over 200 organisations in signing up to the declaration in Q3. 
 
 
Neighbourhoods (Corporate Support) Directorate Plan 2020-21 Progress 
 
Performance Overview 
 
90% (9) of the actions included in the Directorate Plan 2020-21 are ongoing. 
One further action has now been fully completed. The chart below shows the 
overall performance of the Directorate in meeting its plan targets at the end of 
Quarter 2.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 16



 
 
 
 
 
4.9 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4.10 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4.11 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4.12 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4.13 

 
 
 
Quarter 2 Summary 
 
The electoral review of Rochdale is progressing well. Consultation and 
engagement on the proposals has now been completed with over 40 
submissions regarding the ward boundaries received by the Local 
Government Boundary Commission. Council report on proposed new ward 
boundaries was approved at Council and submit to the Local Government 
Boundary Commission. The Local Government Boundary Commission will 
conduct a second consultation phase from December to February 2021. After 
this they will provide a final decision on the new ward boundaries prior to year-
end with the new ward boundaries being implemented after the all-out 
elections in 2022. 
 

As part of the action to expand super-fast broadband to at least 25% of the 
borough through the Full Fibre to premises project it has been agreed that all 
sites will be surveyed by end of October 2020 with installation work 
commencing in November 2020. DCMS (Department for Digital, Media and 
Sport) have extended the deadline for when the grant money can be spent 
until 30/06/2021 due to some delays caused by COVID implications to the 
wider programme. In terms of enabling the use of full fibre for residents and 
businesses ICT are currently having conversations with suppliers to look at 
how the overlay services can be procured and what products would achieve 
the desired outcome. 
 
The implementation of plans to prevent community tensions and support a 
more cohesive and integrated community have now been completed. 
Participation of several community group meetings have taken place online 
with support from Action Together e.g. Fortnightly Inclusive Messaging Group, 
Fortnightly Grassroots gathering meetings and quarterly Equalities 
Assemblies. There is approval from the RSCP (Rochdale Safer Communities 
Partnership) to introduce opportunities to layer Safer Communities priorities 
into some of these groups. 
 
A partnership has now been put in place (Public Service Reform steering 
group) to support reform activity across Council, partners and Health and 
Social Care with the main governance structures being aligned. Ongoing 
reform activity now fits within this structure. New service models, as part of the 
health and social care and voluntary sector transformation, have taken place 
with Good Help and MEAM (Make Every Adult Matter) Q1 activity being 
complete.  This has included formation of MEAM group, co-produced 
approach and draft governance with people with lived experience. Launched 
in Q2 at Good Help event and action plan in place for quarters 2-4. 
 
 
Alternatives Considered 
 
Not applicable 
 

Page 17



 

 

Costs and Budget Summary 

 
5. None 

 

Risk and Policy Implications 

 
6. None 

 

Consultation 

 
7. Not applicable 

 

Background Papers Place of Inspection 

 

8. Appendix 1 -  Resources 
Directorate Plan 2020-21 Q2 
 
Appendix 2 – Neighbourhoods 
(Corporate) Directorate Plan 
2020-21 Q2 

Number One Riverside, Smith Street, 
Rochdale OL16 1XU 

 

For Further Information Contact: Ben Jorgensen, , 
ben.jorgensen@rochdale.gov.uk 

 

Page 18



  

 

       
   

Resources Directorate Plan 2020-21 
 

  

         

          

 

Action Plan 
 

Due Date 
 

 

Status           % Complete 
 

 

          

         

         

    

Page  1  Of  9 
 

    
  

Directorate Plan New. v4_2 
 

  

 
  

         

 

R2001 Implementation of Canvass Reform 31 December 2020   80% 

Canvass started on 23 July and progressing as per timetable. All route letters and forms distributed and telephone canvass to commence October and revised register to 
be published on 1 December 2020. 

  

R2002 Contribution to Local Government Boundary Commission for England Electoral Review 31 March 2021   80% 

Warding report submitted to LGBCE. Initial recommendations from LGBCE to be published on 17 November. Further consultation with Steering Group/interested parties 
and public engagement to be held between 1 December and 8 February 2021. 

  

R2003 To strengthen governance arrangements across the organisation at service level 31 March 2021   25% 

Work is progressing within Resources, Adults/Commissioning and Economy Directorates to set out executive decision making responsibilities for Officers. Expecting that 
Resources and Adults will be completed by the end of October 2020. A report to Leadership team is included for the meeting on 6 October seeking nomination of lead 
officers for the remaining services. Initial work has already commenced with Children's sub-delegation scheme which will allow resources to be focused on developing 
understanding of processes and Governance requirements. 

          

R2004 Health and Social Care - Review and evaluation of decision making structure for Joint Health 
Arrangements 

31 March 2021   20% 

Work continues to strengthen the supportive culture between the Council's and CCG Governance teams. Issues have been raised around the inability of both 
organisations to access a single point piece of software putting great reliance on human contact which wouldn't otherwise be required. This impacts not only on the 
production of the Forward Plan and ICB agenda's but on service planning and alignment of decision making. Temporary measures are being identified and tied in with the 
Adult/Commissioning planning improvements. 

  

P
age 19



  

 

       
   

Resources Directorate Plan 2020-21 
 

  

         

          

 

Action Plan 
 

Due Date 
 

 

Status           % Complete 
 

 

          

         

         

    

Page  2  Of  9 
 

    
  

Directorate Plan New. v4_2 
 

  

 
  

         

R2005 Refresh and support the Member Development Programme 31 March 2021   20% 

The task & finish group has been appointed and will meet in the coming weeks to define the Terms of Reference. 

  

R2006 Develop the use of the iTrent HR system to maximise customer experience and enhance 
organisational performance including integration with financial system 

31 March 2021   20% 

On-line DDM - interim workaround currently being piloted with a small number of services; pilot due to end in October. Project to move iTrent to cloud hosted by MHR 
underway with testing to commence late September/October. Target date still early 2021. Work to move L4L to MSS on pause due to technical issue requiring supplier 
involvement. Work underway to implement Schools Workforce Census functionality with completion date scheduled for end of October. 

          

R2007 Develop and deliver the Council’s Organisational Development plan to maximise potential and 
performance of workforce 

31 March 2021   50% 

Academy Cohort 3 Change & Transition, Resilience (Parts 1 & 2), Serious Lego modules delivered virtually. Project proposals approved by Academy Board. New Manager 
programme on track for October implementation. BAME events delivered. Additional sessions for EM/FM planned for September. Report in preparation for Leadership 
Team. Preparations for Leadership conference 2021 underway. Delve / talent model pilot underway with positive initial evaluation. Workforce planning template 
reviewed and updated by HRBP's. Application planned for Resources and Planning team in September / October. Activities planned to coincide with World Mental Health 
Day (10th October). Further Chief Exec Q&A sessions planned for October. 

          

R2008 Develop and deliver Locality Workforce Strategy to support health and care integration and wider 
Public Sector Reform 

31 March 2021   50% 

System leadership - Initial development event for the academy cohort scheduled for November. OD support for LCO SMT: Board effectiveness and purpose activity 
delivered in August 2020. Proposal to support ongoing culture change activity submitted to ICD SMT July 2020 

P
age 20



  

 

       
   

Resources Directorate Plan 2020-21 
 

  

         

          

 

Action Plan 
 

Due Date 
 

 

Status           % Complete 
 

 

          

         

         

    

Page  3  Of  9 
 

    
  

Directorate Plan New. v4_2 
 

  

 
  

         

  

R2009 Support the development and delivery of the 5 year Children’s Strategy in conjunction with 
Finance 

31 March 2021   70% 

The service now have an agreed staffing structure in place, all recruitment within children’s now has to have formal sign off by the Director via star chamber. The 
retention plan/policy for social workers is in place with the next retention payment for the none increment year 2022/23 will be funded corporately. We are continuing 
to monitor the number of agency and whether this is covid or vacancy/maternity cover. Services are expected to break even on salaries even with agency staff in place. A 
presentation will be going to informal cabinet in November 2020 regarding non-working day impact including an updated financial model for future years. 

          

R2010 To undertake a full service review of council priorities to ensure that legal services has the 
capacity and skill set to meet the Council’s priorities as set out in the Corporate Plan 

31 March 2021   20% 

Meetings with all relevant managers to be held by 1st October to go through staffing, work undertaken and their link to the corporate priorities. Legal team to discuss 
outcomes with the Assistant Director by end of October 2020. 

  

R2011 To undertake a review of Lexcel best practice to ensure higher standards of delivery of legal 
services with a view to obtaining accreditation in 2021/22 

31 March 2021   15% 

This has commenced and the current processes have begun to be reviewed alongside the current lexcel standards. Quite a bit work has been undertaken but will need to 
be completed in conjunction with the new case management system. 

  

R2012 To introduce a new case management system to streamline processes and increase productivity 
and efficiency 

31 March 2021   30% 

Funding has been approved, procurement process completed and the contract has been signed. Initial meeting held on 17th September with the works to commence by 
mid-October depending upon internal ICT availability. The time-line suggested would allow the system to go live early March 2021. However, the risk at present is that if 
internal ICT are not available then legal would be without a case management system from 1st April 2021 as notice needs to be given to current supplier by end of 
December 2020. 

P
age 21



  

 

       
   

Resources Directorate Plan 2020-21 
 

  

         

          

 

Action Plan 
 

Due Date 
 

 

Status           % Complete 
 

 

          

         

         

    

Page  4  Of  9 
 

    
  

Directorate Plan New. v4_2 
 

  

 
  

         

          

R2013 Review of existing shared services arrangements and identify and progress any opportunities for 
new shared services 

31 March 2021   25% 

A high level review of the Council's existing shared service arrangements has been undertaken including an initial prioritisation of the shared service arrangements which 
may most benefit from being reviewed. This has been reviewed by the resources directorate management team who have agreed to carry out one shared service review 
as a proof of concept. The review will be carried out by STAR procurement and Milford Research who work closely with the Local Government Association to support and 
encourage effective share service arrangements and collaborations across local government. The output will be a comprehensive and independent report, detailing 
potential areas for growth, risks and opportunities for efficiencies. This work will start and finish in quarter three and it is hoped will create a case for carrying our further 
reviews and investigating new opportunities to share services. 

  

R2014 Development of the public service reform steering group and strategic place board to effectively 
drive system wide public service reform in Rochdale and build on what has been achieved through the 
response to Covid-19 

 31 March 2021   30% 

A further PSR steering group meeting was held on the 8 September. The agenda and focus of the group continues to be around the impact and response to Covid, with 
work that was originally being considered such as the peer review remaining on hold. 

          

R2015 Implementation of hand held technology in Children’s services 31 March 2021   0% 

As anticipated this work has not been started and is not currently a priority for children's services who are focused on supporting schools and increasing demand for 
social care support which is being exacerbated due to Covid. This project will be reviewed in quarter 3 with the director of children's services with a view to removing, 
refocusing or progressing this piece of work. 

          

R2016 Delivery of the Council’s Customer Transformation Programme 31 March 2021   40% 

P
age 22



  

 

       
   

Resources Directorate Plan 2020-21 
 

  

         

          

 

Action Plan 
 

Due Date 
 

 

Status           % Complete 
 

 

          

         

         

    

Page  5  Of  9 
 

    
  

Directorate Plan New. v4_2 
 

  

 
  

         

Work has been progressing well across all of the CTP projects and project documentation is now in place. Two temporary posts have been recruited to during this 
quarter. One is project manager who will be working with the Council's business solutions team to progress projects including the CRM decommissioning and Self 
Scanning Solutions. The other new starter is supporting the implementation of the new content management system for the Council's websites. We also working with 
Socitm as part of the contact centre insourcing project. This will include developing a customer access strategy which will set out how will provide access to our services 
to both provide greater efficiency for the council and an improved experience for our customers. 

          

R2017 Progress opportunities to improve service delivery and deliver recurrent savings through contract 
renewals 

 31 March 2021   25% 

During quarter two we have continued to support L4L in the development of their Covid recovery plan, providing assurance from a financial perspective that the plan 
looked reasonable and that the levels of financial support requested were reasonable too. Having had the request for financial support agreed at Cabinet we are now 
monitoring performance against the plan. In addition, together with STAR and other STAR authorities we have been exploring a corporate contract management system, 
which aims to move away from using spreadsheets to record contract details to a more efficient and automated system. This work will continue in quarter three. 

          

R2018 Development of a Digital Strategy 31 October 2020   65% 

Work on the digital strategy has continued to be on hold during Q2, however linked to our plans to develop a digital strategy a proposal has been drafted for the Council 
and CCG to sign up to the 'Digital Declaration'. The digital declaration, developed by MHCLG and the Government Digital Services, set out some principles for public 
sector organisations to sign up to, to improve local services. The paper set out the benefits and process of signing up together with a number of projects which we could 
put forward as our 'declaration projects', as part of our application. It is hoped that we will be able to join over 200 organisations in signing up to the declaration in Q3. 

          

R2019 Development and approval of a corporate approach to sponsorship 30 June 2020   75% 

A temporary post has been recruited to, who will progress funding opportunities specifically focused on supporting the town hall restoration project. Progress will be 
monitored during quarter three and if it is successful, then we will review proposals to extend this external funding and sponsorship approach further. A proposal to 
establish a local authority lottery has also been reviewed. Its principle aim being to provide discretionary support for the local voluntary and community sector, and to 
enable such organisations to raise funds which will directly benefit local people and communities. 

          

P
age 23



  

 

       
   

Resources Directorate Plan 2020-21 
 

  

         

          

 

Action Plan 
 

Due Date 
 

 

Status           % Complete 
 

 

          

         

         

    

Page  6  Of  9 
 

    
  

Directorate Plan New. v4_2 
 

  

 
  

         

R2020 Progress AI/Automation opportunities 31 March 2021   50% 

During quarter 2 a transformation fund bid has been developed and approved to progress a proof of concept for AI/Automation within the Resources directorate. The 
aim being to demonstrate the value and benefits that this technology can achieve and with a view of then rolling it out more widely across the organisation. This 
automation technology will be focused on automating high volume, transactional processes to improve processing times and performance, free up staff capacity and 
improve customer satisfaction. Procurement is planned to take place in quarter three and it is hoped that the project will also get underway during the same period. 

          

R2021 Support the development and delivery of the Dedicated Schools Grant recovery plan 31 March 2021   20% 

Work is still ongoing with the service to understand cost drivers, as schools have not been working as normal some of the conversations have slowed. There has been 
discussions with other Local Authorities about recovery plans to ensure the plan is achievable. Schools Forum in October 2020 will present the latest position and ask for 
a transfer of funds from the schools block to the high needs block to mitigate against the gap and is aligned to the recovery plan. 

          

R2022 Development of an Adult Care financial strategy 31 March 2021   30% 

Further work has taken place on the review during quarter 2. This has been distributed for comments. 

          

R2023 Development of a balanced pooled fund and understanding the financial implications of the Local 
Care Organisation 

31 March 2021   30% 

The pooled fund pressures for 2020/21 in the main relate to the impact of Covid and work is ongoing to understand how these pressures can be funded. The Local 
Authority (LA) is progressing its budget planning to ensure a balanced budget is set for 2021/22, there still remains uncertainty with the Clinical Commissioning Group 
(CCG) funding for next financial year however development of scenario planning has started to understand the extend of any potential budget gaps. 

          

P
age 24



  

 

       
   

Resources Directorate Plan 2020-21 
 

  

         

          

 

Action Plan 
 

Due Date 
 

 

Status           % Complete 
 

 

          

         

         

    

Page  7  Of  9 
 

    
  

Directorate Plan New. v4_2 
 

  

 
  

         

R2024 Development of an integrated risk management approach for the Council and CCG 31 March 2021   30% 

The RBC Risk Manager met the CCG Head of PMO in September to discuss areas of non-alignment in risk management procedure. A paper for LT consideration will assist 
discussion on future alignment, including possible adoption of the shared Pentana system by CCG. The Corporate risk registers for both RBC and CCG were reviewed by 
senior management in Q2 to reflect the impact of the Covid-19 pandemic. 

          

R2025 Adult care fee negotiation is developed over an agreed time period to deliver the living wage 31 March 2021   30% 

A report was presented to the August ICB with potential options. Financial forecasting has been completed on the increase and how this impacts upon the 2021/22 
budget. It was agreed for a further report to be presented to the October ICB. 

          

R2026 Development of the budget setting process to ensure plans are robust and the implications of the 
fair funding review are fully understood 

31 March 2021   25% 

Adjusted timetable has been agreed this quarter and savings proposals have been reviewed at leadership which will go to Cabinet on 1st December 2020. Papers were 
taken to Cabinet and Corporate O&S Committee at the end of July and September advising Members on the position and approval of estimates was received and the 
approval of the realigned Capital Programme for consultation. 

          

R2027 Further development of investment/liability risk analysis to cover emerging invest to save 
schemes outside the Property Growth Fund, ensuring investment decisions are taken with a Council-
wide view of risk 

31 March 2021   50% 

P
age 25



  

 

       
   

Resources Directorate Plan 2020-21 
 

  

         

          

 

Action Plan 
 

Due Date 
 

 

Status           % Complete 
 

 

          

         

         

    

Page  8  Of  9 
 

    
  

Directorate Plan New. v4_2 
 

  

 
  

         

The performance and risk of the Property Growth Fund for 2020/21 will be presented to the Property Growth Fund Sub-Committee in October 2020. A detailed risk 
register for the Property Growth Fund is under development and will be shared with the PGF Steering Group/Sub-Committee in the next quarter. Quotes have been 
received for the provision of external financial advice for Rochdale Riverside Phase 2/Project Neighbourhoods and will be progressed in line with Procurement 
regulations.  
 
Initial external tax advice has been received in respect of Rochdale Riverside Phase 2/Project Neighbourhoods schemes and Finance will continue to work with Steering 
Group colleagues to report and further develop the tax position for the schemes. Financial modelling on the Rochdale Riverside retail & leisure scheme has been revised 
and updated (including a financial assessment of proposed new leases) and the overall financial projections will be reported to Members at the next available 
opportunity. Financial appraisals have been carried out on a direct development opportunity due to be presented to PGF Sub-Committee in October 2020. 

          

R2028 Development and roll out of Member Training to support commercial investment decisions 31 March 2021   5% 

This work stream has been delayed due to other urgent priorities, including assessing the financial implications of Covid-19 on the Council's commercial investments. 
Although some research has begun the majority of this work will take place in Q3/4. 

          

R2029 Understand business rates and council tax avoidance, how can these be minimised and income 
maximised 

 31 March 2021   10% 

Covid 19 has seen the introduction of a number of Government schemes which has in part limited the occurrence of business rates and council tax avoidance. As well as 
focusing on maintaining these schemes (and implementing further schemes as they are being announced) we have been devoting our efforts towards limiting the 
potential deficit in the Collection Fund brought about by the impact of Covid 19 on businesses and residents. We are continuing to liaise with the appropriate services to 
understand the buildings in council ownership and the development plans in place for these buildings and expect to be able to expand on this action over the coming 
months. 

          

R2030 Implementation of the Key Decision Action Plan 31 March 2021   30% 

Funding has been approved, procurement process completed and the contract has been signed. Initial meeting held on 17th September with the works to commence by 
mid-October depending upon internal ICT availability. The time-line suggested would allow the system to go live early March 2021. However, the risk at present is that if 
internal ICT are not available then legal would be without a case management system from 1st April 2021 as notice needs to be given to current supplier by end of 
December 2020. 

P
age 26



  

 

       
   

Resources Directorate Plan 2020-21 
 

  

         

          

 

Action Plan 
 

Due Date 
 

 

Status           % Complete 
 

 

          

         

         

    

Page  9  Of  9 
 

    
  

Directorate Plan New. v4_2 
 

  

 
  

         

  

 

 

 

 

 

P
age 27



  

 

       
   

Neighbourhoods Directorate Plan 2020-21  
 

  

         

          

 

Action Plan 
 

Due Date 
 

 

Status         %Complete 
 

 

          

         

         

    

Page  1  Of  5 
 

  
  

Directorate Plan New. v4_2 
 

   

         

 

N2001 Lead an Electoral Review to ensure areas have the recommended numbers of voters 31 March 2021   67% 

          

Ref. Name Due Status % Complete 

N2001.A Consultation and engagement on the proposals 31 August 2020   100% 

Consultation and engagement on the proposals has now been completed with over 40 submissions regarding the ward boundaries received by the Local Government 
Boundary Commission. 

N2001.B Final council report submitted to Boundary Commission 30 September 2020   100% 

Council report on proposed new ward boundaries was approved at Council and submit to the Local Government Boundary Commission the following day. 

N2001.C Final decision on the ward and councillors numbers made by the Boundary Commission 31 March 2021   0% 

The Local Government Boundary Commission will conduct a second consultation phase from December to February 2021. After this they will provide a final decision on 
the new ward boundaries prior to year-end.  

          

N2002 Plan for and deliver Census 2021 31 March 2021   75% 

          

Ref. Name Due Status % Complete 

N2002.A Confirm work programme following guidance from Office of National Statistics 31 August 2020   100% 

The Council has appointed Census Lead Officers who are in liaison with ONS about the requirements. A project plan is in development to outline the key tasks and the 
stakeholders that need to be involved. Meeting have taken place with officers earlier in the month regarding the census delivery and a timeline has been provided by 
ONS. 

N2002.B Recruitment and communication complete for census 2021 31 March 2021   50% 

P
age 28



  

 

       
   

Neighbourhoods Directorate Plan 2020-21  
 

  

         

          

 

Action Plan 
 

Due Date 
 

 

Status         %Complete 
 

 

          

         

         

    

Page  2  Of  5 
 

  
  

Directorate Plan New. v4_2 
 

   

         

Internal officers have been informed of their roles and requirements in the delivery of the census along with the formulation of a communications plan. External officers 
provided by the ONS are currently being recruited and trained in regards to their roles. 

          

N2003 Develop new Communications Strategy 2020-23 31 January 2021   10% 

          

Ref. Name Due Status % Complete 

N2003.A Consult members and leadership to agree objectives and priorities 31 October 2020   10% 

Initial internal discussion has taken place. Consultation sessions have been delayed due to Covid-19 work commitments. 

N2003.B 
A refresh of the council’s communication strategy will be completed during 2020/21, following 
the conclusion of our current three-year plan 

31 January 2021   10% 

Initial work plan is being developed in relation to this.  

          

N2004 Expand super-fast broadband to at least 25% of the borough through Full Fibre to premises 
project 

31 March 2021   20% 

          

Ref. Name Due Status % Complete 

N2004.A 
Agree with Greater Manchester partners how benefits of super-fast broadband will be 
maximised across the borough 

31 December 2020   10% 

A meeting with Greater Manchester colleagues is arranged regarding this. 

N2004.B 
67 premises (of 99) with a public sector presence across the borough connected with full fibre to 
increase connectivity 

31 March 2021   40% 

All sites will be surveyed by end of October 2020, installation work will commence in November 2020. DCMS (Department for Digital, Culture, Media and Sport) have 
extended the deadline for when the grant money can be spent until 30/06/2021 due to some delays caused by COVID implications to the wider programme. 

N2004.C 
Enable the use of the full fibre for residents and businesses through engagement and 
appointment of a market supplier 

31 March 2021   10% 

In terms of enabling the use of full fibre for residents and businesses. ICT are currently having conversations with Suppliers to look at how the overlay services can be 
procured and what products would achieve the desired outcome. 

P
age 29



  

 

       
   

Neighbourhoods Directorate Plan 2020-21  
 

  

         

          

 

Action Plan 
 

Due Date 
 

 

Status         %Complete 
 

 

          

         

         

    

Page  3  Of  5 
 

  
  

Directorate Plan New. v4_2 
 

   

         

  

N2005 Work in partnership to implement new community safety plan to reduce Crime and disorder 31 March 2021   28% 

          

Ref. Name Due Status % Complete 

N2005.A 
Implement new ‘Reducing Crime and Anti-Social Behaviour’ borough-wide action plan and 
strategy with partners 

30 November 2020   50% 

Draft action plan prepared. New priority group created and meeting in Oct 2020. Plans to be finalised and presented to RSCP in January 2021. 

N2005.B Implement new ‘Reducing Reoffending’ borough- wide action plan and strategy with partners 31 December 2020   25% 

New NPS lead is forming a priority group. Work already under way to produce draft action plan and strategy. Meeting in Oct 2020 to review. 

N2005.C Complete Community Safety Partnership information sharing protocol with partners 31 March 2021   10% 

Basic draft produced. Awaiting capacity within IG Team to assist with reviewing in line with new legislation. On course to complete by March 2021. 

  

N2006 Implement plans to prevent community tensions and support a more cohesive and integrated 
community 

31 March 2021   100% 

          

Ref. Name Due Status % Complete 

N2006.A 
Work in partnership with the voluntary sector in the delivery of cohesion and integration 
activities to support the recovery of the borough post Covid 19 

31 March 2021   100% 

Participation of several community group meetings online with support from Action Together e.g. Fortnightly Inclusive Messaging Group, Fortnightly Grassroots gathering 
meetings and quarterly Equalities Assemblies. 
 
There is approval from the RSCP (Rochdale Safer Communities Partnership) to introduce opportunities to layer in Safer Communities priorities into some of these groups 

P
age 30



  

 

       
   

Neighbourhoods Directorate Plan 2020-21  
 

  

         

          

 

Action Plan 
 

Due Date 
 

 

Status         %Complete 
 

 

          

         

         

    

Page  4  Of  5 
 

  
  

Directorate Plan New. v4_2 
 

   

         

          

N2007 Co-ordinate the roll out of Public Service Reform across the borough 31 January 2021   63% 

          

Ref. Name Due Status % Complete 

N2007.A 
Partnership put in place to support reform activity across Council, partners and Health and Social 
Care following reform benchmark exercise 

31 October 2020   100% 

Partnership is in place (Public Service Reform steering group) and main governance structures have been aligned.  Ongoing reform activity now fits within this structure.   

N2007.B 
Continued development of new service models as health and social care and voluntary sector 
transformation takes place 

31 January 2021   25% 

Good Help and MEAM (Make every adult matter) service models Q1 activity is complete.  This has included formation of MEAM group, co-produced approach and draft 
governance with people with lived experience. Launched in Q2 at Good Help event and action plan in place for Qs2-4 

          

N2008 Complete roll out of integrated place teams and develop plan around future delivery 31 March 2021   38% 

          

Ref. Name Due Status % Complete 

N2008.A Complete annual citizen-led leadership challenges in partnership with GMCA 31 December 2020   50% 

Ageing in Place, MEAM and Good Help have been identified as priorities by citizens and leadership challenges are in place with associated action plans.  The MEAM and 
Good Help work has coproduced metrics in place to enable transparency when working with citizens / people with lived experience.  This includes participatory research, 
which will be undertaken during Qs 2-4.  

N2008.B 
Following pilot stages, embed place teams, as part of neighbourhood and locality working, 
demonstrably contributing to the reform and effective delivery of public services 

31 March 2021   25% 

Place Teams are established in localities in terms of case work, however, the level of integration with the local neighbourhood teams varies by place and is more 
embedded in localities where a physical provision (pre covid) has been in place.   

  

P
age 31



  

 

       
   

Neighbourhoods Directorate Plan 2020-21  
 

  

         

          

 

Action Plan 
 

Due Date 
 

 

Status         %Complete 
 

 

          

         

         

    

Page  5  Of  5 
 

  
  

Directorate Plan New. v4_2 
 

   

         

N2009 Finalise and commence delivery of Climate Change Strategy 30 November 2020   45% 

          

Ref. Name Due Status % Complete 

N2009.A Agree priorities of dedicated budget 31 October 2020   20% 

£1 million budget for 2020/2021. Due to the impact of Covid, climate change work stalled and budget allocation used to cover other budget pressures. £50K remaining 
which will be used to cover climate post (currently out to advert). £150k will be rephased to cover initial costs of an energy post and feasibility work that will enable us to 
be part of a GMCA funding bid around de-carbonisation of public buildings. 

N2009.B Development of delivery plan to address climate change 30 November 2020   20% 

A draft action plan has been scoped which captures work that is taking place across the Council. This still requires further development to capture the impact and co 
benefits. A steering group of council officers has been established to work on this. There is still an ongoing need to turn this into a borough plan which will be owned by 
the emergency working group, which still needs to be established 

          

N2010 Transform and improve customer and digital provision 31 December 2020   38% 

          

Ref. Name Due Status % Complete 

N2010.A Final sign off and action plan in place for Rochdale Digital Strategy 31 October 2020   50% 

A draft strategy is in place, but work has been delayed in finalising due to covid-19 commitments  

N2010.B Agree future role and scope of the Council’s Customer Contact Centre 31 December 2020   55% 

Work is progressing with services and Socitm to bring together the future scope. There has been a shift away from transactional tasks, via channel shift. The emphasis 
now being more on people, engagement with new services, Health, CCG and others, has started to shape the new model of the Contact Centre. 

 

P
age 32



 

Report to Corporate Overview and Scrutiny Committee 
 

 

Date of Meeting 24 November 2020 
Portfolio Cabinet Member for 

Neighbourhoods, 
Community & Culture 

Report Author Carolyn Whitham 
Public/Private Document Public 

 

 

LGSCO Annual Report 2019-20 
 

 

Executive Summary 

 
1. The report provides Members with the Annual Review of complaints made to 

the Local Government & Social Care Ombudsman (LGSCO) about Rochdale 
Borough Council in the year ending 31 March 2020. 

 

Recommendation 

 
2. It is recommended that Members note the content of the report and Annual 

Review letter. 
 

Reason for Recommendation 

 
3. Part of the Council’s performance management process is to ensure the 

Authority’s ambition to continuously improve services is realised.  The Annual 
Review provides an overview of the effectiveness of the Council’s complaints 
procedures and customer satisfaction with Council services. 

 
 

 

Key Points for Consideration 

 
4. 
 
 
 
 
 
4.1 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4.2 

The Annual Review letter provides local authorities with the LGSCO’s 
assessment of the Council’s performance in complaint handling for the 
previous financial year.  In addition, the review provides a general update on 
developments affecting the LGSCO and includes details of the Council’s 
compliance rate with the Ombudsman’s recommended remedies.   

The review shows the relatively small number of complaints received against 
Rochdale Council by the Ombudsman during 2019/20.  In total 51 complaints 
and enquiries were received which was a slight increase on the number 
received last year. The number of decisions made by the LGSCO differs from 
the number of complaints and enquiries received, as complaints may be 
received and decided upon in different financial years.  

Of 49 decisions made during 2019/20, only 15 complaints were subject to 
detailed investigation.  16 complaints were referred back to the Council as 

Page 33

Agenda Item 6



 
 
 
 
4.3 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4.4 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4.5 
 
 
 
4.6 
 

premature to be considered under the Council’s own complaints procedure, 15 
complaints were closed after initial enquiries, and advice was given on a 
further 3 complaints.  

Of the 15 complaints that were investigated, 47% were found to be upheld.  
This compares to an average of 67% in similar authorities.  The LGSCO 
recommended remedies for all of the upheld complaints, which were accepted 
and implemented.   

Details of the complaints that were upheld can be found below.  
 

LGO Category Nature of complaint 

Benefits & Tax Housing Benefit 

Benefits & Tax  Council Tax exemptions  

Education & Children’s Services Special Guardianship Policy 

Education & Children’s Services Support for Foster Carers  

Education & Children’s Services School Admissions Appeal  

Planning & Development Planning Enforcement  

Planning & Development Planning Enforcement  

 
In addition to Annual Review letters, the LGSCO also publishes an Annual 
Review of Local Government Complaints and a summary of complaint 
statistics for every Local Authority in England. Appendix 2 contains an extract 
from the review which highlights Rochdale Council’s performance in 
comparison with neighbouring authorities.   

 
As can be seen from the extract, both the number of enquiries / complaints 
received by the LGSCO and the number of complaints decided in 2019-20 
was lower for Rochdale BC than for most neighbouring authorities.  The 
compliance rate for Rochdale implementing the LGSCO’s agreed remedies 
was 100%.   
 
The LGSCO also issued a public report during 2019-20 following the upheld 
complaint regarding the Council’s policy for Special Guardianship Allowance.  
Further details can be found in Appendix 1.  
 
Alternatives Considered 
 
None.  Information is provided annually by the Local Government & Social 
Care Ombudsman. 

 

Costs and Budget Summary 

 
5. 5 of the upheld complaints resulted in a financial remedy.  The total cost of 

agreed local settlements for LGSCO complaint decisions during 2019-20 was 
£11,810.56. A breakdown is shown below.    This is an increase on the 
previous year when the total cost was £1,550.  
 

Service £ 

Benefits & Tax 100 

Benefits & Tax 150 

Page 34



Children’s Social Care 7,760.56 

Planning & Development  2,000 

Planning & Development  1,800 

Total 11,810.56 

 
In addition to the above, the Public Report issued this year included a 
recommendation for the Council to reconsider the policy for Special 
Guardianship Allowances and to arrange for all Special Guardians affected by 
the Policy since 2013 to receive backdated payments.  The total cost of these 
payments was £562,975. 

 

Risk and Policy Implications 

 
6. There are no specific risk issues for Members to consider arising from this 

report.  The Special Guardianship Allowances Policy was revised as a result 
of a complaint considered by the LGSCO. 
 

Consultation 

 
7. Not applicable. 

 

Background Papers Place of Inspection 

 

8. None.  

 

For Further Information Contact: Carolyn Whitham, Tel: 01706 923508, 
carolyn.whitham@rochdale.gov.uk 

 

Page 35



 
 
 
 

 
 
22 July 2020 
 
By email 
 
Mr Rumbelow 
Chief Executive 
Rochdale Metropolitan Borough Council 
 
Dear Mr Rumbelow  
 
Annual Review letter 2020 
 
I write to you with our annual summary of statistics on the decisions made by the Local 

Government and Social Care Ombudsman about your authority for the year ending            

31 March 2020. Given the exceptional pressures under which local authorities have been 

working over recent months, I thought carefully about whether it was still appropriate to send 

you this annual update. However, now, more than ever, I believe that it is essential that the 

public experience of local services is at the heart of our thinking. So, I hope that this 

feedback, which provides unique insight into the lived experience of your Council’s services, 

will be useful as you continue to deal with the current situation and plan for the future. 

Complaint statistics 

This year, we continue to place our focus on the outcomes of complaints and what can be 

learned from them. We want to provide you with the most insightful information we can and 

have made several changes over recent years to improve the data we capture and report. 

We focus our statistics on these three key areas: 

Complaints upheld - We uphold complaints when we find some form of fault in an 

authority’s actions, including where the authority accepted fault before we investigated. A 

focus on how often things go wrong, rather than simple volumes of complaints provides a 

clearer indicator of performance. 

Compliance with recommendations - We recommend ways for authorities to put things 

right when faults have caused injustice. Our recommendations try to put people back in the 

position they were before the fault and we monitor authorities to ensure they comply with our 

recommendations. Failure to comply with our recommendations is rare. An authority with a 

compliance rate below 100% should scrutinise those complaints where it failed to comply 

and identify any learning. 

Satisfactory remedies provided by the authority - We want to encourage the early 

resolution of complaints and to credit authorities that have a positive and open approach to 

resolving complaints. We recognise cases where an authority has taken steps to put things 

Page 36



right before the complaint came to us. The authority upheld the complaint and we agreed 

with how it offered to put things right. 

Finally, we compare the three key annual statistics for your authority with similar types of 

authorities to work out an average level of performance. We do this for County Councils, 

District Councils, Metropolitan Boroughs, Unitary Councils, and London Boroughs. 

This data will be uploaded to our interactive map, Your council’s performance, along with a 

copy of this letter on 29 July 2020, and our Review of Local Government Complaints. For 

further information on how to interpret our statistics, please visit our website. 

This year, I issued one public report about your Council and its failure to properly pay 

Special Guardianship Allowance to a couple who cared for their grandchild. Our investigation 

found fault because the Council’s allowances policy had not been agreed by any formal 

committee and was not in line with statutory guidance, case law, or its own internal legal 

advice. I asked the Council to reconsider its policy and calculate and backdate all Special 

Guardianship Allowance payments for which the couple, and others similarly affected, were 

eligible to November 2013 (the publication date of our first focus report on the issue). 

Disappointingly, the Council challenged our decision and powers in the High Court. The 

Court dismissed the challenge in its entirety and the Council has since had to pay our costs. 

It is encouraging the Council has recently considered our report and approved a modified 

backdated payment arrangement. However, in the meantime, there has been no increase to 

the grandparents’ allowance, and they have received no breakdown of an amount the 

Council placed into their bank account in December 2019. 

The Council has now considered the report and it is disappointing it did not agree to 

implement our recommendations in full. However, I am satisfied that elected members have 

given the report proper consideration and have exercised their democratic right to implement 

an alternative scheme that takes account of local circumstances, whilst also going some 

considerable way towards addressing the injustice suffered by families as a result of the 

Council’s error. I welcome that the Council will now be offering a remedy to those families 

who were affected.  

Resources to help you get it right 

There are a range of resources available that can support you to place the learning from 

complaints, about your authority and others, at the heart of your system of corporate 

governance. Your council’s performance launched last year and puts our data and 

information about councils in one place. Again, the emphasis is on learning, not numbers. 

You can find the decisions we have made, public reports we have issued, and the service 

improvements your Council has agreed to make as a result of our investigations, as well as 

previous annual review letters.  

I would encourage you to share the tool with colleagues and elected members; the 

information can provide valuable insights into service areas, early warning signs of problems 

and is a key source of information for governance, audit, risk and scrutiny functions. 

Earlier this year, we held our link officer seminars in London, Bristol, Leeds and Birmingham. 

Attended by 178 delegates from 143 local authorities, we focused on maximising the impact 

Page 37

https://www.lgo.org.uk/your-councils-performance
https://www.lgo.org.uk/information-centre/reports/annual-review-reports/interpreting-local-authority-statistics
https://www.lgo.org.uk/assets/attach/2139/FR-Family-Values-caring-for-others-November-2013.pdf
https://www.lgo.org.uk/your-councils-performance


of complaints, making sure the right person is involved with complaints at the right time, and 

how to overcome common challenges.  

We have a well-established and successful training programme supporting local authorities 

and independent care providers to help improve local complaint handling. During the year, 

we delivered 118 courses, training more than 1,400 people. This is 47 more courses than we 

delivered last year and included more training to adult social care providers than ever before. 

To find out more visit www.lgo.org.uk/training. 

Yours sincerely, 

 

 
Michael King 

Local Government and Social Care Ombudsman 

Chair, Commission for Local Administration in England

Page 38

http://www.lgo.org.uk/training


Rochdale Metropolitan Borough Council 

For the period ending: 31/03/20                                                               

 
 
 

Complaints upheld 

  

47% of complaints we 
investigated were upheld. 

This compares to an average of 
67% in similar authorities. 

 
 

7                          
upheld decisions 

 
Statistics are based on a total of 15 

detailed investigations for the 
period between 1 April 2019 to 31 

March 2020 

Compliance with Ombudsman recommendations 

  

In 100% of cases we were 
satisfied the authority had 
successfully implemented our 
recommendations. 

This compares to an average of 
100% in similar authorities. 

 

 

Statistics are based on a total of 6 
compliance outcomes for the period 
between 1 April 2019 to 31 March 

2020 

• Failure to comply with our recommendations is rare. An authority with a compliance rate below 100% should 
scrutinise those complaints where it failed to comply and identify any learning. 
 

Satisfactory remedies provided by the authority 

  

In 0% of upheld cases we found 
the authority had provided a 
satisfactory remedy before the 
complaint reached the 
Ombudsman.  

This compares to an average of 
11% in similar authorities. 

 

0                      
satisfactory remedy decisions 

 

Statistics are based on a total of 15 
detailed investigations for the 

period between 1 April 2019 to 31 
March 2020 

 

47% 

100% 

0% 

Page 39



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Complaints and Enquiries Received (by Category) 2019-20

Authority Name
Adult

Social Care

Benefits

and Tax

Corporate and

Other Services

Education and

Children's 

Services

Environmental

Services, Public

Protection and

Regulation

Highways and

Transport
Housing

Planning and

Development
Other Total

Blackburn with Darwen Council 5 5 4 8 1 5 1 5 2 36

Bolton Metropolitan Borough Council 11 12 7 12 7 2 2 7 0 60

Bury Metropolitan Borough Council 12 2 7 25 11 8 6 2 0 73

Oldham Metropolitan Borough Council 11 7 3 18 5 8 4 19 0 75

Rochdale Metropolitan Borough Council 12 8 7 9 3 3 1 7 1 51

Tameside Metropolitan Borough Council 18 8 3 20 6 3 2 9 1 70

Notes

These statistics include all complaints and enquiries that were received from 01 April 2019 to 31 March 2020.

Some cases are received and decided in different business years. This means the number of complaints and enquiries received may not match the number of decisions made.

Appendix 2 

P
age 40



 

  

 

Complaints and Enquiries Decided (by Outcome) 2019-20

Authority Name
Invalid or 

Incomplete
Advice Given

Referred Back 

for Local 

Resolution

Closed after 

Initial Enquiries
Not Upheld Upheld Total

Uphold Rate 

(%)

Average uphold 

rate (%) of similar 

authorities 

Blackburn with Darwen Council 4 0 11 12 3 4 34 57 56

Bolton Metropolitan Borough Council 1 0 29 19 4 3 56 43 67

Bury Metropolitan Borough Council 4 2 24 27 9 6 72 40 67

Oldham Metropolitan Borough Council 3 1 29 25 6 7 71 54 67

Rochdale Metropolitan Borough Council 0 3 16 15 8 7 49 47 67

Tameside Metropolitan Borough Council 5 1 18 26 8 7 65 47 67

Notes

These statistics include all complaints and enquiries that were decided from 01 April 2019 to 31 March 2020.

Some cases are received and decided in different business years. This means the number of complaints and enquiries received may not match the number of decisions made.

P
age 41



 

 

 

 

Remedy and compliance outcomes 2019-20

Authority Name

Number of 

upheld 

complaints

Uphold Rate 

(%)

Average uphold 

rate (%) of 

similar 

authorities 

Upheld cases 

where the 

authority provided 

a satisfactory 

remedy before the 

complaint reached 

the Ombudsman 

(%) 

Average 

satisfactory 

remedy rate of 

similar 

authorities 

(%)

Number of cases 

with a compliance 

outcome recorded 

during the year

Cases we were 

satisfied the authority 

successfully 

implemented our 

recommendations to 

remedy the 

complaint 

(compliance rate)

 (%)

Average 

compliance rate 

of similar 

authorities 

(%)

Blackburn with Darwen Council 4 57 56 0 11 3 100 99

Bolton Metropolitan Borough Council 3 43 67 0 11 4 100 100

Bury Metropolitan Borough Council 6 40 67 0 11 6 100 100

Oldham Metropolitan Borough Council 7 54 67 29 11 4 100 100

Rochdale Metropolitan Borough Council 7 47 67 0 11 6 100 100

Tameside Metropolitan Borough Council 7 47 67 29 11 7 100 100

Notes

These statistics include remedy and compliance outcomes recorded betw een 01 April 2019 and 31 March 2020.

Some cases are received and decided in different business years; compliance outcomes may also fall in different business years. This means the number of complaints upheld may not match the number of remedy and compliance outcomes recorded.

P
age 42



ROCHDALE BOROUGH COUNCIL 
Record of Decision 

 

TITLE  

DECISION  

REASON FOR 
DECISION 

 

ALTERNATIVE 
OPTIONS 
CONSIDERED 

 

DECISION MAKER  

DESIGNATION OF 
DECISION MAKER 

 

CONSULTEES  

DECLARED 
CONFLICTS OF 
INTEREST 

 

DISPENSATIONS 
GRANTED 

 

 
 
Signed: 
 
 
 
Position: 

Page 43

Agenda Item 7



 

Report to Cabinet 
 

 

Date of Meeting 1st December 2020 
Portfolio Leader of the Council and 

Cabinet Member for 
Finance 

Report Author Carolyn Goddard  
Public/Private Document  

 

 

2021/22 Setting the Buisness Rate Base 
 

 

Executive Summary 

 
1. This report seeks approval from Council on 16 December 2020: 

 
1. For the setting of the Business Rates baseline for 2021/22 in 

accordance with the Local Government Finance Act 1988 and the Non-
Domestic Rating Regulations 2013. 

 
2. To approve the precept payment dates for 2021/22. 

 

Recommendation 

 
2. Cabinet is asked to consider, for submission to Council on 16 December 2020: 

 
1. The draft Business Rate baseline figure of £63.251m for 2021/22, 

subject to any changes which may result from: 
 

 the provisional Local Government Finance Settlement 2021/22. 

 a change to the current pilot scheme for 100% retention of 
Business Rates 

 the issue of the Ministry of Housing, Communities & Local 
Government (MHCLG) guidance on completion of the 2021/22 
Business Rates baseline return (NNDR1), due in January 2021. 

 
2. The Chief Finance Officer, in consultation with the Cabinet Member for 

Finance, to be authorised to conclude and agree the final Business 
Rates baseline return (NNDR1) due on 31 January 2021, should the 
final information yet to be received from MHCLG change the baseline 
figure for 2021/22. 
 

3. That the precepts payment schedule detailed in paragraph 4.2 be 
approved. 

 
 

Page 44



 

Reason for Recommendation 

 
3.1 
 
 
 
 
 
3.2 

The Non-Domestic Rating (Rates Retention) Regulations 2013 (SI 2013/452) 
require billing authorities to notify the Secretary of State and their major 
precepting authority of their calculation of non-domestic rating income for the 
following financial year and the estimated surplus/deficit on the Collection 
Fund by 31st January each year. 
 
The figures are produced subject to the MHCLG guidance being published 
and provided, following which the figure in this report may have to be revisited. 
 

 

Key Points for Consideration 

 
4.1 
 
4.1.1 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4.1.2 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4.1.3 
 
 
 
 
4.1.4 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4.1.5 
 
 

Setting the Business Rates Baseline 
 
From 1st April 2013 the Business Rates Retention Scheme (BRRS) was 
introduced as part of the move to localise and stimulate business 
growth at a local level. Under the original BRRS the Authority paid 50% 
of its Business Rates income to Central Government, 1% to Greater 
Manchester Combined Authority (GMCA) – Fire Services, and retained 
the remaining 49%. 
 
The Local Government Settlement 2017/18 included the introduction of 
the 100% retention of Business Rates for identified regional pilot 
authorities, including Greater Manchester. The Council is awaiting 
confirmation from the government that the GM pilot scheme will 
continue in 2021/22. Under the pilot scheme 100% of the Business 
Rates income is retained locally, in lieu of Revenue Support Grant and 
Public Health Grant. The precept arrangement under the pilot scheme 
is 99% to Rochdale BC and 1% to GMCA Mayoral General (including 
Fire Services).  

 
Central Government has assessed potential retained Business Rates 
income and provided a “top up” grant within the local government 
finance settlement to bridge the gap in funding as a result of the move 
to the BRRS. 

 
The BRRS is accounted for within the Collection Fund. This account 
reflects the statutory requirements for the Council to maintain a 
separate Collection Fund, in relation to the operation of the BRRS and 
Council Tax. The Fund records all the transactions for billing, payments 
by Council Tax/ Business Rates payers, reliefs granted, write offs and 
payments to the precepting authorities. At the end of each year the 
surplus/deficit on the Fund is allocated to the precepting authorities on 
the basis of their level of precept on the Collection Fund. 

 
In January of each year the Authority is required to set an estimated 
Business Rates income yield for the following year which is to be used 
to inform the precepting authorities of their precept on the Fund. If the 

Page 45



 
 
 
 
 
 
4.1.6 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4.2 
 
4.2.1 
 
 
 
 
4.2.2 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4.3 
 
 
4.3.1 
 

current pilot scheme for 100% retention of Business Rates continues, 
the income yield will be allocated as follows:  
 
Rochdale BC – General Fund                                            99% 
GMCA Mayoral General (including Fire Services)               1% 

 
A Central Government standard form is used (known as the NNDR1) to 
ensure a common approach for the collection of the Business Rates 
income forecast. The return to be used for the completion of the 
2021/22 estimate has not yet been made available by MHCLG. The 
setting of the baseline for 2021/22 has been prepared on a draft basis 
until further clarification is received from MHCLG. 
 
Precept Payment Dates 2021/22 

 
The Business Rates retention regulations require that the local authority 
should agree a precept schedule with the precept authority, which in the 
case of Rochdale Council will be GMCA Mayoral General (including 
Fire Services). 

 
It is proposed that the same payments schedule be adopted as set out 
for the Council Tax precept, which is detailed below: 
 

20th April 2021 20th October 2021 

20th May 2021 22nd November 2021 

21st June 2021 20th December 2021 

20th July 2021 20th January 2022 

20th August 2021 21st February 2022 

20th September 2021 21st March 2022 

 
 
Alternatives Considered 
 
No alternative is available, as the Council has a statutory requirement to 
estimate and set a Business Rates Baseline each financial year. 

 

Costs and Budget Summary 

 
5.1 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

A final NNDR1 must be agreed by the Chief Financial Officer and returned to 
MHCLG by 31st January each year.  The final return must include: 

 
a) the anticipated gross income to be billed to businesses in 2021/22; 
b) estimates for any growth in Business Rates anticipated in 2021/22, net 

of any demolitions; 
c) forecast  for any increases in Business Rates relief including empty 

reliefs; 
d) changes in amounts to be collected should those premises that still 

have outstanding appeals from the rateable value revaluation changes 
in 2005, 2010, and 2017 be resolved; 

e) changes in amounts to be collected from premises that are subject to a 

 

Page 46



 
 
 
5.2 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5.3 
 
 
 
 
5.4 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5.5 
 
 
5.6 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

reduction as a result of the appeals process or Valuation Office Agency 
(VOA) adjustments. 

 
A final baseline position for 2021/22 cannot be included in this report, as the 
final guidance will be issued by MHCLG in mid-January 2021. Members are 
requested to approve that the Chief Finance Officer, in consultation with the 
Cabinet Member for Finance, be authorised to conclude and agree the final 
Business Rates baseline return (NNDR1), due on 31 January 2021, should the 
final information yet to be received from MHCLG change the baseline figure 
for 2021/22. 
 
The Government will set out the 2021/22 provisional Business Rates 
multiplier; this will be confirmed after either the Local Government Finance 
Report for 2021/22 has been approved by the House of Commons or 1 March 
2021, whichever is earlier. 

 
Using the estimated Business Rates multipliers currently assumed in the 
Medium Term Financial Strategy, the Business Rates baseline for 2021/22 
would be £63.251m split between: 
 
 
 

 
 

 
The 2021/22 estimated Business Rates baseline takes into account the latest 
forecast for 2020/21, and estimated changes in the baseline for 2021/22. 
  
An estimate of the outturn for 2020/21 Business Rates income to be collected 
will be compared to the estimated baseline amount provided in the NNDR1 for 
2020/21. Differences between the estimate and the projected actual collected 
will be considered as part of setting the 2021/22 Estimates process.  
 
The Local Authorities (Collection Fund: Surplus and Deficit) (Coronavirus) 
(England) Regulations 2020 come into force on 1 December 2020. The 
regulations require the repayment of Collection Fund deficits arising in 
2020/21 to be spread over the next three years, 2021/22 to 2023/24, rather 
than the usual period of a year. Business Rates precept payments will be 
adjusted to reflect the requirements of the regulations. 

Rochdale Borough Council £62.619m 

GMCA Mayoral (including Fire 
Services)    

£0.632m 

Total £63.251m 

 

Risk and Policy Implications 

 
6.1 
 
 
 
 
6.2 
 
 

It is necessary for the Council to comply with the Non-Domestic Rating (Rates 
Retention) Regulations 2013 (SI 2013/452) to ensure that it does not act ultra 
vires in relation to its arrangements for the setting of the Business Rates Base 
for 2021/22.  
 
Subject to government confirmation, in 2021/22 the Council will continue to be 
part of the GM pilot to retain 100% of Business Rates. The 100% Business 
Rates pilot will mean that the Council will take 99% of the risk for the 

Page 47



 
 
 
 
6.3 
 
 
 
6.4 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6.5 
 

collection of all Business Rates rather than 49% under the previous system. 
Major changes to Business Rates, such as awards of mandatory reliefs for 
schools converting to academies, will be borne mainly by the local authority.  
 
As part of the 100% pilot the Council will be responsible for 99% of the cost of 
changes to rateable values as a result of appeals, which introduces further 
volatility to the Business Rates income collected. 

 
There are still a number of rateable value appeals outstanding where 
businesses have appealed against the values set by the Valuation Office 
Agency in 2005 and 2010. These may have a significant impact for the 
business rates to be collected and retained by the local authority, including the 
costs of any backdated amounts. A provision is held to support the ongoing 
mitigation of this risk.   
 
Businesses now use the check, challenge and appeal process against 
rateable values that came into effect on 1 April 2017 which may have a 
financial impact on business rate income. A provision is held to offset the 
possible impact of successful appeals, and other rateable value reductions 
made by the Valuation Office Agency. 
 

Consultation 

 
7. This report is part of the budget setting process and consultation is 

undertaken with stakeholder groups, staff and service users as appropriate 
throughout the budget process. 

 

Background Papers Place of Inspection 

 

8.   

 

For Further Information Contact: Carolyn Goddard, Tel: 01706 926051, 
Carolyn.Goddard@Rochdale.Gov.uk 

 

Page 48



ROCHDALE BOROUGH COUNCIL 
Record of Decision 

 

TITLE  

DECISION  

REASON FOR 
DECISION 

 

ALTERNATIVE 
OPTIONS 
CONSIDERED 

 

DECISION MAKER  

DESIGNATION OF 
DECISION MAKER 

 

CONSULTEES  

DECLARED 
CONFLICTS OF 
INTEREST 

 

DISPENSATIONS 
GRANTED 

 

 
 
Signed: 
 
 
 
Position: 

Page 49

Agenda Item 8



 

Report to Cabinet 
 

 

Date of Meeting 1 December 2020 
Portfolio Leader of the Council and 

Cabinet Member for 
Finance 

Report Author Carolyn Goddard 
Public/Private Document  

 

 

Calculation of 2021-22 Taxbase 
 

 

Executive Summary 

 
1. This report seeks approval from Council on 16 December 2020: 

 
1. To agree the statutory Council Tax Base calculation for 2021/22, 

calculated in accordance with The Local Authorities (Calculation of 
Council Tax Base) (England) Regulations 2012 as part of the 2021/22 
Estimates process. 
 

2. For the Local Council Tax Support Scheme to remain unchanged for 
2021/22. 

 
To approve the precept payment dates for 2021/22. 

 

Recommendation 

 
2. Cabinet are asked to consider, for submission to Council on 16 December 

2020: 
 
a. The Council Tax base expressed as “Band D equivalent properties”, be 

recommended as 54,637 for 2021/22 (55,745 2020/21) as detailed at 
Appendix 1. 
 

b. The Local Council Tax Support Scheme for 2021/22 remains unchanged. 
 
The proposed precepts payment schedule detailed in paragraph 4.2. 

 
 

Reason for Recommendation 

 
3.1 
 
 
 

Rochdale Borough Council, as a Council Tax billing authority, is required each 
year to make statutory calculations specified in Section 33 of the Local 
Government Finance Act 1992 (as amended). The Local Authorities 
(Calculation of Council Tax Base) (England) Regulations 2012 require 

Page 50



 
 
 
 
3.2 
 
 
 
 
 
3.3 
 

authorities to calculate the Council Tax base (number of taxable properties), 
expressed as "Band D equivalent properties". Approval of these calculations is 
required by 31st January in each financial year.  
 
The Local Government Finance Act 1992 prescribes the procedures to be 
adopted in setting precept payment dates. The Act requires billing authorities 
to notify precepting authorities of a proposed payments schedule. This 
notification must be given before 31st December in respect of the following 
financial year. The final payments schedule is then confirmed by 31st January. 
 
The calculation of the tax base has to be made by 31st January and notified to 
the major precepting and levying authorities. Under Section 84 of the Local 
Government Act 2003 the determination can be delegated to a committee or 
sub-committee in accordance with Section 101 of the Local Government Act 
1972. This report recommends that Cabinet considers this report for 
submission to Council on 16 December 2020. 

 

Key Points for Consideration 

 
4.1 
 
4.1.1 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4.1.2 
 
 
 
 
 
4.1.3 
 
 
 
 
4.1.4 
 
 
 
4.1.5 
 
 
 
 
4.2 

Calculation of the Council Tax Base 
 
The calculation of the tax base starts with the number of recorded 
properties in each tax band (A to H) as at 14 September 2020, adjusted 
for:  

 changes expected to occur up to 31 March 2022 as a result of 
appeals, demolition and new home construction;  

 estimated number of disabled person’s reductions;  

 discounts allowed for single person households, students and 
empty/exempt properties. 

 
Following on from the resulting figure from the application of the 
process outlined in paragraph 4.1.1, the tax base calculation also takes 
account of the additional charges resulting from the local discount 
scheme in place for empty properties and second homes, along with 
the impact of the Local Council Tax Support scheme. 
 
The calculated number of properties in each band is then multiplied by 
a factor specified in the regulations to give an "equivalent number of 
band D properties" and then by an estimate of the likely collection rate 
for 2021/22 to give the tax base. 
 
The Council Tax base is used by the precepting authorities to apportion 
their net expenditure to their constituent authorities and by Rochdale 
Borough Council to set the level of Council Tax for 2021/22. 

 
The Council's net budgeted spending, including precepts and levies 
and after taking account of receipts of Business Rate income, is divided 
by the tax base to produce the Council Tax level for Band D properties, 
which is the headline tax figure. 
 
Local Council Tax Support Scheme 

Page 51



 
4.2.1 
 
 
 
 
 
4.2.2 
 
4.3 
 
 
4.3.1 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4.3.2 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4.3.3 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4.4 

 
Schedule 1A of the Local Government Finance Act 2012 requires local 
authorities to annually review their local scheme; with any revisions to 
the scheme requiring a period of consultation and must be agreed by 
Council by 31st January each year. There are no requirements to 
consult, should the scheme remain unchanged. 

 
It is proposed that the Scheme continues unchanged for 2021/22. 
 
Precepting Authority and Payment Dates 2021/22 

 

From 2018/19 elected Combined Authority Mayors were able to raise 
additional resources through a precept (or additional charge) on local 
Council Tax bills. The Greater Manchester Combined Authority (GMCA) 
sets a precept with two separately identified elements for the Mayor’s 
general functions, including the precept previously made for GM Fire & 
Rescue Authority, and for Police & Crime Commissioner functions.  
 

For 2021/22 the precepting authorities will continue to be: 
 

a) Rochdale Borough Council – General Functions 
b) Rochdale Borough Council – Adult Care 
c) GMCA Mayoral Police & Crime Commissioner 
d) GMCA Mayoral (including Fire Services) 

 
The Local Government Finance Act 1992 prescribes the procedures to 
be adopted in setting precept payment dates. The Act requires billing 
authorities to notify precepting authorities of a proposed payments 
schedule. This notification must be given before 31st December in 
respect of the following financial year. The final payments schedule is 
then confirmed by 31st January. 
 
The proposed payments schedule, is in line with the one operating in 
the current year, which was agreed by all Greater Manchester 
Authorities: 
 

20th April 2021 20th October 2021 

20th May 2021 22nd November 2021 

21st June 2021 20th December 2021 

20th July 2021 20th January 2022 

20th August 2021 21st February 2022 

20th September 2021 21st March 2022 

 
Alternatives Considered 
 
No alternative is available, as the Council has a statutory requirement to 
calculate and approve a Council Tax base each financial year. 
 

 

Costs and Budget Summary 

Page 52



 
5.1 
 
5.2 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5.3 
 
 
 
 
5.4 
 
 
 
5.5 
 

The detailed calculation of the tax base is set out in Appendix 1. 
 

The total number of properties has increased by 478 from 94,729 to 95,207 in 
the year ending on 14 September 2020. In the previous two years the net 
change had been increases of 743 (2019) and 609 (2018). There continues to 
be a level of new build across the Borough, and whilst some of this is offset by 
demolitions, this further increase shows a continuing growth in the overall 
property numbers. 

 
The Local Council Tax Support scheme forecast provided in the tax base is 
based on the 2020/21 local scheme which was approved by Council on 18 
December 2019. The 2020/21 scheme includes a banded income scheme for 
working age residents in receipt of Universal Credit. 

 
The overall estimated collection rate is reducing to 97% to reflect the forecast 
on-going financial impact of the Covid 19 pandemic on the borough’s residents 
(98% in 2020/21). 
 
An estimate of the outturn for 2020/21 Council Tax income will be compared to 
the 2020/21 budgeted baseline amount. Differences between the budget and 
the projected actual outturn for 2020/21 will be considered as part of setting 
the 2021/22 Estimates process.  
 
The Local Authorities (Collection Fund: Surplus and Deficit) (Coronavirus) 
(England) Regulations 2020 come into force on 1 December 2020. The 
regulations require the repayment of Collection Fund deficits arising in 
2020/21 to be spread over the next three years, 2021/22 to 2023/24, rather 
than the usual period of a year.  Council Tax precept payments will be 
adjusted to reflect the requirements of the regulations. 
 

 

Risk and Policy Implications 

 
6.1 It is necessary to comply with Section 33 of the Local Government Finance 

Act 1992 (as amended); The Local Authorities (Calculation of Council Tax 
Base) (England) Regulations 2012; Section 84 of the Local Government Act 
2003 and Section 101 of the Local Government Act 1972, to ensure that there 
is no risk of the authority acting ultra vires in relation to its Council Tax 
arrangements.   
 
It is necessary to comply with Section 33 of the Local Government Finance 
Act 1992 (as amended) and The Local Authorities (Calculation of Council 
Tax Base) (England) Regulations 2012, to ensure the Council Tax Base is 
correctly calculated. 
 

Consultation 

 
7. This report is part of the budget setting process and consultation is 

undertaken with stakeholder groups, staff and service users as appropriate 
throughout the budget process. 

Page 53



 

Background Papers Place of Inspection 

 

8.   

 

For Further Information Contact: Carolyn Goddard, Tel: 01706 926051, 
Carolyn.Goddard@Rochdale.Gov.uk 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 54



Appendix 1 – Calculation of the Council Tax base for 2021/22 

1.1 Property Details 

(1) (2) (3) (4) (5) (6) 

Band Valuation * 
Properties @ 14th 
September 2020 

Adjusted number of properties, 
after discounts, exemptions etc. 

(see 1.2 below) 
Factor 

Band D 
Equivalent 

A (Disabled) £40,000 99 89 5/9 49 

A £40,000 50,985 30,577 6/9 20,385 

B £52,000 16,581 13,276 7/9 10,326 

C £68,000 12,570 10,832 8/9 9,628 

D £88,000 7,944 7,359 1 7,359 

E £120,000 4,428 4,060 11/9 4,962 

F £160,000 1,674 1,552 13/9 2,242 

G £320,000 870 779 15/9 1,298 

H 
over 

£320,000 
56 39 18/9 78 

TOTAL   95,207 68,563   56,327 

 
* Valuations based on property values as at 1st April 1991. 
 
1.2 The total number of properties at 95,207 on 14th September 2020 (column 3) compares to 94,729 last year, reflecting that new 

house building developments within the Borough were greater than demolitions during the year, resulting in a net growth in the 
overall number of properties. Adjustments are made to reflect the forecast level of discounts and exemptions given to Council 
Tax payers: 

Properties at 14th September 2020       95,207 

Forecast for net new growth (after demolitions) 599 

P
age 55



 

1.3   To calculate the statutory tax base, the number of Band D equivalent properties (column 6) is multiplied by the estimated eventual        

  collection rate for income raised relating to 2021/22. The estimated collection rate used for 2021/22 is 97% (2020/21: 98%). 

 

1.4   Applying a 97% collection rate gives a 2021/22 statutory tax base calculation of 54,637 Band D equivalent properties (56,327 x        

  97%). 

 

1.5  The proposed 2021/22 statutory tax base of 54,637 Band D equivalent properties has reduced by 1,108 properties from the 

equivalent for 2020/21 of 55,745 properties. Although the overall number of properties liable for Council Tax charges has 

increased, the impact of the Covid- 19 pandemic has resulted in an estimated increase in the level of Local Council Tax Support 

discount to be given, and a reduction in the estimated Council Tax collection rate. This has resulted in the reduction of the Council 

Tax base calculated. 

 

1.6  Variations in the outturn tax base due to the under/over achievement of the collection rate, or differences between the 

assumptions and  actuals  in calculating the number of Band D equivalent properties, will result in a surplus or deficit on the 

Collection Fund. This is shared between Rochdale Borough Council and the precepting bodies. 

 

 

 

 

 

Forecast for exemptions  (1,800) 

Forecast for adjustments relating to Single Person discounts, Local Council Tax Support, and Empty/other 
discounts  (25,443) 

Net adjusted number of properties to be used in calculation of the Council Tax Base 68,563 

P
age 56



ROCHDALE BOROUGH COUNCIL 
Record of Decision 

 

TITLE  

DECISION  

REASON FOR 
DECISION 

 

ALTERNATIVE 
OPTIONS 
CONSIDERED 

 

DECISION MAKER  

DESIGNATION OF 
DECISION MAKER 

 

CONSULTEES  

DECLARED 
CONFLICTS OF 
INTEREST 

 

DISPENSATIONS 
GRANTED 

 

 
 
Signed: 
 
 
 
Position: 

Page 57

Agenda Item 9



 

Report to Cabinet 
 

 

Date of Meeting 1 December 2020 
Portfolio Leader of the Council and 

Cabinet Member for 
Finance 

Report Author Carolyn Goddard 
Public/Private Document  

 

 

Council Tax Empty Property Charges 
 

 

Executive Summary 

 
1. This report seeks approval to increase the council tax empty property premium 

from 200% to 300% with effect from 1 April 2021 for properties that have been 
empty in excess of 10 years. 

 

Recommendation 

 
2. That Cabinet notes the proposal and that approval will be sought from Council 

on 16 December 2020 to agree the empty property premium increase.  
 
 

Reason for Recommendation 

 
3. In April 2013, Government gave local authorities power to determine the level 

of empty property discounts in dwelling classes B, C and D (Section 12 of the 
Local Government Finance Act 2012). The power included an option to charge 
a premium of up to 50% where a property has been empty in excess of two 
years. The Council decided to introduce a 50% premium with effect from 1 
April 2013 and increased this to 100% with effect from 1 April 2019. 
 
From 1 April 2020, Government increased the optional maximum empty 
property premium charge to 200% for properties that have been empty in 
excess of 5 years.  The Council decided to introduce this 200% premium with 
effect from 1 April 2020.  
 
From 1 April 2021, Government is increasing the optional maximum empty 
property premium charge to 300% for properties that have been empty in 
excess of 10 years. 

 

Key Points for Consideration 

 
4. 
 

In April 2013, there were 552 properties in the Rochdale borough which were 
subject to the empty property premium charge; this has reduced by 202 to 350 

 
 

Page 58



 
 
4.1 

by November 2020, 46 of which have been empty in excess of 10 years. 
 
The charging of a premium is part of the Council’s overall strategy of bringing 
long-term empty homes back into use at the earliest opportunity. 
 
Long-term empty homes have a negative impact on surrounding homes and 
areas, and while tackling empty homes will not provide a solution to the need 
for new homes, it is an important part of making best use of the existing 
housing stock. 
 
Other benefits include: 

 Improving housing conditions and reducing anti-social behaviour in the 
vicinity of the empty properties. 

 Reducing pressure on the existing housing stock. 

 Providing opportunities for local suppliers in the property and 
construction trades, and on a larger scale can support training and 
employment by local companies carrying out any necessary renovation 
and building work. 

 
On implementation of the Rating (Property in Common Occupation) and 
Council Tax (Empty Dwellings) Act 2018, Local Government Minister, Rishi 
Sunak, said: “It is simply wrong that, while there are 200,000 long-term empty 
properties across the country, thousands of families are desperate for a 
secure place to call home.” 
 
“This new power will equip councils with the tools they need to encourage 
owners of long-term empty properties to bring them back into use – and at the 
same time tackle the harmful effect they have on communities through 
squatting, vandalism and anti-social behaviour.” 
 
Alternatives Considered 
 
The empty property premium could remain at 200%. However, Government 
has identified that additional measures are needed to continue the 
improvements already made and have amended the legislation.  
 
Of the 350 properties that are currently subject to the premium, 95 have been 
empty in excess of 5 years and a further 46 in excess of 10 years, so there are 
still problems locally that need to be addressed and the 100% and 200% 
premiums aren’t working in these cases.  
 
The 141 long-term empty properties that have been empty in excess of 5 
years and the other 209 that have been empty more than 2 years are causing 
problems in their communities and adding pressure on the overall housing 
stock. 

 
 
 

 

Costs and Budget Summary 

 
5. This change is expected to raise an additional £67,000 in council tax income 

in 2021/22. This amount reflects the fact that this measure should help to 
further reduce the overall number of long-term empty properties. 

Page 59



 

Risk and Policy Implications 

 
6. The proposals are permitted under the Rating (Property in Common 

Operation) and Council Tax (Empty Dwellings) Act 2018. The purpose of 
these wider powers is to encourage owners of long term empty properties to 
find ways of bringing them back into use. The powers are not specifically 
designed by government to increase revenue. 
 
The premium cannot apply to homes that are empty due to the occupant 
living in armed forces accommodation for job-related purposes, or to 
annexes being used as part of a main property. There are also specific 
statutory exemptions for properties left empty for a specific purpose, for 
example, when a person goes into care. 
 
There is a risk that some owners may refuse to pay the increased premium 
charge, but there are adequate legislative powers in place to enforce 
collection. These include Charging Orders, Empty Dwelling Management 
Orders, Enforced Sale Proceedings or Compulsory Purchase Orders. 
 
 
 

Consultation 

 
7. No consultation is required. However, the owners of these 46 properties are 

already known to officers and contact will be made with them to advise of the 
change and to promote some of things the Council can offer to assist them in 
bringing the property back into use. 

 

Background Papers Place of Inspection 

 

8.   

 

For Further Information Contact: Carolyn Goddard, Tel: 01706 926051, 
Carolyn.Goddard@Rochdale.Gov.Uk 

 

Page 60



 

    

      

  

   
  

 

  

 
     

   
  

 
      

     

          

      
       

   

 
           

 

 

 
 

 

  
 ROCHDALE 

BOROUGH 1COUNCIL 

Agenda Item No. XAgenda Item No. X
Agenda Item 7 

SCHOOLS FORUM 

Date of Meeting: 18th June 2020 

Subject: Schools Final Outturns and Reportable Surplus 2019/20 

Report of: Joanne Elcock 

Contact Details: Name: Joanne Elcock 
Tel: 01706 926214 
E-mail: joanne.elcock@rochdale.gov.uk 

Confidential: Not applicable 

Introduction and Context 
The Local Authority in conjunction with the School Forum is required to review and challenge the level 
of surplus balances held by individual schools. School funding is provided for the purpose of educating 
the pupils in the school and excessive balances could represent a loss of opportunity for those pupils. 

Summary 
The final outturns for individual schools for the financial year 2019/20 have now been finalised; this 
report provides details of the overall balances held by schools as at 31st March 2020. 

Balances have increased by £230k from £11,411k at 31st March 2019 to £11,641k at 31st March 2020. 

Schools that had a surplus balance greater than 8% of their ISB as at 31st March 2019 and again on at 
31st March 2020 have a reportable surplus that is subject to review. There are currently 19 schools with 
a reportable surplus subject to review. 

Recommendations 
Members note the report, and provide comments on the level of surplus balances held in schools and 
on the current reportable surplus scheme. 

Members are recommended to retain the current reportable surplus scheme as per Section 4 of the 
Scheme for Financing Schools. 

Implementation Date: 
Not applicable 

Reference to Key Documents/Previous Papers: 

Page 61

Agenda Item 10



    

 

    

      

   

            
   

         
      

     
          
         

            
        

 

 

         
        

            
     

       

               
             
             

          
             

    

               
          

       
            

              
          

    

             
       

               
  

 ROCHDALE 
BOROUGH 1COUNCIL 

Agenda Item 7 

Report to the Schools Forum 

Date 18th June 2020 

Title Schools Final Outturns and Reportable Surpluses 2019/20 

1. Purpose of the report 

1.1. To update Schools Forum members on the overall level of balances held by schools as at 
the 31st March 2020. 

1.2. To review and consider whether Rochdale’s Control of Surplus Balances as per the 
Scheme for Financing Schools is still fit for purpose. 

2. Background 

2.1. Under the Schools Standard and Framework Act and Rochdale’s Scheme for Financing 
Schools (SFFS), the Local Authority (LA) in conjunction with the Schools Forum is required 
to review and challenge the level of surpluses held in individual schools. In general, funds 
given to schools are for the purpose of educating the pupils in school at that time, although 
it is recognised that schools will accumulate some funds for specific longer term planned 
projects. 

3. Strategy and Context 

3.1. School funding is provided for the educational purposes of pupils in school. Excessive 
accumulation of surpluses could represent a loss of opportunity for those pupils. 

3.2. Guidance from the Department for Education around controls on surplus balances in 
maintained schools suggests that schools should have some degree of flexibility of funding. 
The following is an extract from the guidance: 

“The scheme may contain a mechanism to claw back excess surplus balances. Any mechanism 
should have regard to the principle that schools should be moving towards greater autonomy, should 
not be constrained from making early efficiencies to support their medium term budgeting in a tighter 
financial climate, and should not be burdened with bureaucracy. The mechanism should, therefore, 
be focussed only on those schools which have built up significant excessive uncommitted balances 
and / or where some level of redistribution would support improved provision across a local area.” 

3.3. In response to the above and in view of the level of balances held, Schools Forum has 
previously decided to retain a Reportable Surplus scheme. The retention of some form of 
accountability for retaining excessive balances was considered important until schools 
demonstrated that retention of high balances was not at the detriment of pupil outcomes. 

3.4. With regard to balances held by academy schools there is no limit on the amount of General 
Annual Grant (GAG) eligible academy trusts can carry forward, but the Academies Handbook 
effective from September 2018 does state that: 

“Trusts should use their allocated GAG funding for the full benefit of their current pupils. If a trust has 
a substantial surplus they should have a clear plan for how it will be used to benefit their pupils, e.g. 
a long term capital project. The ESFA will report to the DfE, any trusts where it has serious concerns 
about a long term substantial surplus with no clear plans for its use.” 

Page 2 of 10 Page 62



    

          
    

     

           

            
         

    

 
 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

      

      

      

      

      

          
         

          
           
          
       

           
             

       
   

 
 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 
 

  
 

     

              
         

         
        

          
 

In effect the EFA and DfE review balances in much the same way as the LA and Schools 
Forum do in Rochdale. 

4. Findings 

Level of Balances - Final Outturn 2019/20 

4.1. Outturn for 2019/20 showed total school balances of £11,641k with no schools in deficit. 

4.2. The overall final Individual School Budget (ISB) balance for 2018/19 compared to 2017/18 
is summarised in the table below (the figures for schools that have converted to an 
academy in year are excluded): 

Sector 
Number 

of 
schools 

Final 
2019/20 

£000 

Final 
2018/19 

£000 

Change 

£000 

Change 

% 

Nursery 2 93 46 47 102.0% 

Primary 62 7,190 7,790 (600) (7.7%) 

Secondary 7 2,987 2,246 741 33.0% 

Special 4 1,371 1,329 42 3.2% 

Overall 75 11,641 11,411 230 2.0% 

4.3. Balances overall represent around 8% of maintained schools’ funding for 2019/20. Overall 
balances have increased by £230k or 2.0% from the 2018/19 position. 

4.4. The summary in the table at paragraph 4.2 shows an increase in the overall surplus 
balances in nursery, secondary and special schools. The balances in primary schools have 
dropped, but this is primarily down to a significant drop in balances for just two primary 
schools. If these are excluded we see an increase from £5,900k to £6,400k across the 
remaining 60 primary schools. The above figures for the secondary sector do include 
Siddal Moor which converted to an academy on 1st April 2020; the table below shows the 
balance for the secondary sector excluding Siddal Moor. The percentage increase in 
balances drops to 27.1%. 

Sector 
Number 

of 
schools 

Final 
2019/20 

£000 

Final 
2018/19 

£000 

Change 

£000 

Change 

% 
Secondary 
(excluding Siddal 
Moor) 

6 2,720 2,140 580 27.1% 

4.5. The following graph shows the how the level of balances has fluctuated over the last five 
years, both overall and per sector. The amounts exclude those schools that have converted 
to an academy. The graph highlights a general trend in increasing balances overall. The 
drop in primary school balances is referred to in paragraph 4.4, but we can see here a 
general increase in special school balances and an increase this year for the secondary 
sector. 

Page 3 of 10 Page 63



    

          
       

            
  

Surplus 
£ 

35 

30 

.., 25 
8 .s::. 
~ 20 
0 
; 15 .c 
E 
::::J 
z 10 

5 

0 

Surplus Balances£ 
£14,000k ~------------------~ 

£12,000k +----,- ------------------:----t 

·--• 
..... -'•- - .. -£10,000k +---------''------------------1 

£6,000k ___________________ _, 

£4,000k +-----------------------1 

2015/16 2016/17 2017/18 2018/19 2019/20 

Financial Year 

Outturn as a percentage of ISB 

<0% 0-5% 5-8% 8-12% 12-20%20-30% 30"/o+ 

Outturn as a percentage of ISB 

Nursery 

Special 

� Secondary 

Primary 

-+- ALL 

Primary 

-.-secondary 

-.-special 

-.-Nursery 

4.6. Surplus balances for 2019/20 range from -0.2% to 33.0% of ISB. A breakdown is shown in 
the following graph on page 4 which highlights that many schools have surplus balances of 
under 8%; however 31 out of 75 (41%) of schools do have a surplus balance in excess of 
the 8% threshold. 

Page 4 of 10 Page 64



    

   

      
        

        

       

 
   
    
   
  

 
   

 
   

 
  
       

     

        
         

           
       

         

      

          
   

30 

25 

Noof 20 
Schools 

15 

10 

5 

0 

Schools with Surplus Balances in Excess of 8% 

* t 
2016/17 2017/18 2018/19 2019/20 

Financial Year 

-A-ALL 

Pri ma ry 

-A-Secondary 

Special 

-A- Nursery 

Reportable Surplus 2018/19 

4.7. Rochdale’s Scheme for Financing Schools allows for schools to carry forward balances 
from one financial year to the next but also contains a mechanism to clawback excess 
surplus balances where there is no clear plan of its use on eligible expenditure. 

4.8. Eligible expenditure as per Section 4 of the Scheme for Financing Schools is: 

Repairs and Maintenance 
- Revenue contributions to specific capital projects 
- Essential health and safety works 
- Essential security works 
- Other specified repairs and maintenance 

Investment: Information Technology 
- Major investment in Information Technology equipment and/or facilities 

Short Term Staffing 
- Additional teaching or support staff (for 12 months only) 

Other 
- Investment in community facilities 
- Pupil premium – 12% of the schools allocation for the financial year 

The full details are shown at Appendix A. 

4.9. The ‘balance control mechanism’ in the Scheme for Financing Schools ensures that 
schools with a surplus greater than 8%* of their ISB for two consecutive years are subject 
to review by the LA in conjunction with School Forum. Schools that fall into this category 
are considered to have a reportable surplus and governing bodies have to report details of 
the planned use of the amount in excess of the 8% to the LA. 

*Note that there is a threshold of 12% for small schools with less than 180 pupils and the PRU. 

4.10. There are currently 32 schools (27 primary, 2 secondary, 1 nursery and 2 special) with a 
surplus balance greater than the threshold percentage. 

Page 5 of 10 Page 65



    

             
            

            

            
         

           

              
         

          
       

       

           
           

            
     

        

   
   

   
 

 
 

   
 

 
 

 
 

 

 
 

 

         

         

         

         

        

Level of Reportable Surplus £k 
£2,SOOk -,-----------------,,£=2,"""'2=92s-r-------. 

Reportable £1,SOOk +-------~~-------- - r--- --t 
Surplus 

fk 
£1,000k +----------------------1 

2016/17 2017/18 2018/19 2019/20 

Financial Year 

_._ALL 

Primary 

_.,_Secondary 

_.,_Nursery 

Special 

4.11. Of these 32 schools, 21 are subject to review in accordance with Section 4 of the Scheme 
for Financing Schools. All 21 schools have been asked to provide details of the planned 
spend and the LA will present a further report to Forum in the autumn with details. 

4.12. At the end of 2018/19 there were a total of 15 schools with a reportable surplus and the LA 
will be verifying that those schools have used their surplus balances in accordance with the 
planned use reported last year. This detail will form part of a report to Forum in autumn. 

4.13. The table below summarises for 2018/19 and 2019/20 the number of schools per sector 
with a reportable surplus subject to review and the level of surplus above the amount 
permissible by the Scheme; the overall total surplus for these schools is also shown. The 
number of schools with a reportable surplus subject to review and the overall surplus and 
reportable element of the surplus has increased from the previous year. 

Reportable Surplus Levels 
2019/20 2018/19 Change 

Sector No of 
Schools 

Total 
Surplus 

£k 

Reportable 
Surplus 

£k 
No of 

Schools 
Total 

Surplus 
£k 

Reportable 
Surplus 

£k 

Total 
Surplus 

£k 

Reportable 
Surplus 

£k 

Nursery 1 78 59 0 0 0 0 0 

Primary 18 3,272 1,128 14 3,873 2,223 (601) (1,095) 

Secondary 1 718 155 1 622 69 96 86 

Special 1 307 129 0 0 0 307 129 

Overall 21 4,375 1,471 15 4,495 2,292 (120) (821) 

4.14. The following graph highlights how the level of reportable surplus has fluctuated over the 
last four years. The drop from 2018/19 to 2019/20 can be attributed to the surplus held by 
two primary schools with significant balances last year reducing. If these were excluded the 
average balance above the reportable surplus threshold would be very similar each year in 
the region of £52k to £55k per school. 

Page 6 of 10 Page 66



    

             
        
          

        
 

          
  

    

        
         

           

        
       

       

       

      

           
          

        
       

      

      

      

      

  

          
        

   

        
             

            
  

             
           

- -

4.15. It is worth noting that schools increasingly have to use revenue funds to carry out 
significant improvement works to their school premises as capital funding is usually 
insufficient. However not all schools seem to be able to generate the level of savings from 
revenue funds required to contribute to capital projects, whereas some can save significant 
sums. 

4.16. Pupil Premium funding has been excluded from the funding figure used within the 
reportable surplus calculation. 

Relationship between Balances and Ofsted Grades 

4.17. An exercise has been undertaken for Rochdale schools analysing balances and current 
Ofsted grades. The results by sector are shown in the following table. 

2019 20 Surplus Balances as a Percentage of Budget by current Ofsted Grade 2019 19 

Ofsted Grade Primary Secondary Nursery Special Overall Overall 
Special Measures - - - - -

Requires Improvement 4.7% 5.4% - - 5.3% 3.9% 

Good 7.8% 7.3% 28.0% 14.6% 8.3% 8.7% 

Outstanding 7.7% 4.3% - 7.6% 5.8% 

4.18. In addition to the above information it should be noted that out of the 21 schools with a 
reportable surplus at the end of 2019/20 only two are rated as requiring improvement. 

No. of Schools with a Reportable Surplus by OFSTED Grade 
Ofsted Grade Primary Secondary Nursery Special Overall 
Requires Improvement 2 - - - 2 

Good 12 1 1 1 15 

Outstanding 4 - - - 4 

Total 18 1 1 1 21 

5 Summary 

5.1 School balances have increased in 2019/20 by £230k to a total of £11,641k. There has 
been a increase in balances in all sectors apart from the primary schools which has seen 
an overall decrease. 

5.2 Fifteen schools have been requested to submit details of their planned use of the reportable 
surplus balances and will report to Forum in the autumn. Schools are not at risk of 
clawback if they have clear plans for the future use of the surplus balances that will benefit 
pupils at the school. 

5.3 The LA will present a further report to Schools Forum in autumn 2020 detailing their findings 
as a result of the verification of planned spend of the 2018/19 Reportable Surplus. 

Page 7 of 10 Page 67



    

  

    

       

           
  

          
       

6 Recommendations 

6.1 Members note the report. 

6.2 Members provide comments on the level of surplus balances held in schools. 

6.3 The current reportable surplus scheme as per Section 4 of the Scheme for Financing 
Schools is retained. 

6.4 Members provide comments and consider whether any further analysis work is required in 
advance of the reportable surplus review update in October 2020. 

Page 8 of 10 Page 68



    

 

       
  

  

         
 

   

      
         

   

  

  
   

    
    

 
  

  

  
 

    
  

   
 

   

   
  

           
 

  

 
  
 

  

 

          
 

Appendix A 

SECTION 4: THE TREATMENT OF SURPLUSES AND DEFICIT BALANCES ARISING IN RELATION 
TO BUDGET SHARES 

4.1 The Right to Carry Forward Surplus Balances 

Governing bodies may carry forward from one financial year to the next, any unspent provision 
from the budgets, including those from previous years. 

4.2 Reporting on the Intended Use of Surplus Balances 

Governing bodies are required to report to the LA on the use to which schools intend to make of 
surplus balances held as resources in the budget plan, in circumstances where the reserves total 
more than 12% of the School Budget Share for all Schools for a consecutive 2 year period. 

4.3 Controls on Surplus Balances 

Surplus balances held by schools as permitted under this scheme are subject to the following 
restrictions with effect from 1 April 2011: 

4.3.1 The Authority shall calculate by 31 May each year the surplus balance, if any, held by each 
school as at the preceding 31 March. For this purpose the balance will be the recurrent balance 
as defined in the Consistent Financial Reporting Framework.  If the schools has had a surplus 
greater than 12% in a consecutive 2 year period the school will be required to outline the specific 
purposes for which these fund are being held., 

4.3.2 The Authority shall deduct from the calculated balance any amounts for which the school has a 
prior year commitment to pay from the surplus balance. 

4.3.3 The Authority shall then deduct from the resulting sum any amounts which the governing body of 
the school has declared to be assigned for specific purposes permitted by the authority, and 
which the authority is satisfied are properly assigned. To count as properly assigned, amounts 
must not be retained beyond the period stipulated for the purpose in question, without the 
consent of the Authority. In considering whether any sums are properly assigned the Authority 
may also take into account any previously declared assignment of such sums but may not take 
any change in planned assignments to be the sole reason for considering that a sum is not 
properly assigned. 

4.3.4 For the purposes of this part of the scheme, specific purposes permitted by the Authority are as 
follows: 

Repairs and Maintenance 

 Revenue contributions to specific capital projects 
 Essential Health and Safety Works 
 Essential Security works 
 Other specified Repair and Maintenance 

Investment: Information Technology 

 Major investment in Information Technology equipment and/or facilities 

Short term staffing 

 Additional teaching or support staff (12 months only) 

Other permitted uses 

 Investment in Community facilities 
 Pupil Premium monies carried forward – up to 12% of the pupil premium allocation for the 

financial year. 

Page 9 of 10 Page 69



   

    
 

              
 

 
  

 
 

 
   

 
 

 
   

  
  

 
     

  
 

4.3.5 To evidence the use of the surplus, in all cases a school will be required to specify the nature of 
the work and provide an estimate of cost together with the timescale for implementation. 

4.3.6 If the result of steps 4.3.1 to 4.3.3 is a sum greater than 12% of the current year's budget share 
for all schools then the Authority shall deduct from the current year's budget share an amount 
equal to the excess. 

4.3.7 Funds deriving from sources other than the Authority will be taken into account in this calculation 
if paid into the budget share account of the school, whether under provisions in this scheme or 
otherwise. 

4.3.8 Funds held in relation to a school's exercise of powers under s.27 of the Education Act 2002 
(community facilities) will not be taken into account unless added to the budget share surplus by 
the school as permitted by the Authority. 

4.3.9 The total of any amounts deducted from schools' budget shares by the Authority under this 
provision are to be applied to the Schools Budget of the Authority. 

Page 10 of 10 Page 70



1 
 

 

Report to Cabinet  

 

 

Date of Meeting 1st December 2020 

Portfolio Cabinet Member for Corporate 

Delivery 

Report Author Samantha Smith 

Public/Private Document Public 

 

Finance Update Report Period 6 

 

Executive Summary 

 

1. To inform Cabinet and the Corporate Overview and Scrutiny Committee on the 

Council’s forecast 2020/21 financial position as at the end of September 2020, and 

the additional Covid-19 funding received in October. 

1.1 The Finance Update report contains details of the following: 

 The forecast Revenue outturn position, which is an in-year saving of £1,745k. The 

General Fund net pressure relating to Covid-19 is £125k, largely offset by the use 

of government funding relating to Covid-19 of £22,231k, including an additional 

£6,199k being received in October 2020.  Non-Covid-19 in-year savings are 

currently reported at £1,870k, which is an improvement of £2,408k from the period 

4 forecast. The large movements being within Adult Social Care and Economy 

which are reporting a breakeven position and Children’s Social Care and 

Neighbourhoods where underspends are forecast. 

 

 Savings plans of £4,169k ongoing and £280k one off, with a balance to address 

of £870k, relating to the impact of Covid-19. 

 

 An update on the Health & Social Care Pool Fund position. 

 

 Forecast Capital expenditure of £70,688k, after re-phasing of £5,579k into future 

years. 

 

 The forecast 2020/21 Collection Fund position of a deficit of £30,450k, which will 

be partially mitigated by increased government Section 31 grant of £20,950k, 

Page 71

Agenda Item 11



2 
 

leaving a residual pressure of £9,500k, with this pressure relating to the impact of 

Covid-19. The Council’s share of the forecast net 2020/21 Collection Fund deficit 

is £8,497k, which will impact on the Council’s General Fund budget for 2021/22. 

 

 The mid-year 2020/21 Treasury Management update. 

Recommendation 

 

2.1 Cabinet notes the forecast 2020/21 financial positions for Revenue, Capital, and 

the Collection Fund as at the end of September 2020, as detailed in section 4. 

2.2 Cabinet approves the utilisation of the 4th tranche of emergency Covid 19 funding 
of £6,199k detailed in section 4.1. 

 
2.3 Cabinet notes the forecast Health & Social Care Pool Budget position as detailed 

in section 4.2 
 
2.4 Cabinet approves the Budget Pressure requests for 2021/22 in section 4.3 
 
2.6 Cabinet note the forecast unachieved savings target in section 4.4 
 
2.7 Cabinet notes the net Capital budget changes of £1,066k detailed in section 

4.6.1 
 
2.8 Cabinet notes the Capital re-phasing of £5,579k detailed in section 4.6.2. 
 
2.9 Cabinet approves the reversal of the £140k reduction in Townships capital 

budget in 2020/21, and rephasing of that budget into 2021/22, as detailed in 
section 4.6.3. 

 
2.10 Cabinet notes the budget returns of £1,001k detailed in 4.6.4 
 
2.11 Cabinet approves the budget switch detailed in 4.6.5 
 
2.12 Cabinet notes the mid-year 2020/21 Treasury Management update report 

contained in section 4.8. 
 

Reason for Recommendation 

 

3. Cabinet Members should be kept updated on the financial position of the authority, 

as effective budget management is critical to ensuring financial resources are 

spent in line with the budget and are targeted towards the Council’s priorities. 

This report focuses on the forecast 2020/21 financial position as at the end 
September 2020. 

  

Page 72



3 
 

Key Points for Consideration 

 

4. Revenue Budget 2020/21 

 

The budget set by Budget Council on 26th February 2020 was £224,127k. 
Increases in budget in this financial year up to period 6 are detailed in the 
following table: 

4.1 

 
 The following amount has increased the Council’s Revenue budget since the 

period 4 Finance Update report was finalised: 

 £6,199k Emergency funding for local government (tranche 4) in relation to 

Covid-19 

 

Approval for the utilisation of funding provided by the Government to mitigate the 

additional expenditure/loss of income resulting from the impact of Covid-19 has 

been obtained in accordance with the Council’s constitution for previous funding 

received.  

Members are asked to approve the use of the fourth tranche of emergency Covid 

19 funding of £6,199k received in October 2020 to help to offset the financial 

impact of Covid 19. The total non-ring-fenced emergency Covid 19 funding is 

now £22,231k. 

 

The Revenue Budget Table in 4.1.2 provides detail of budget allocations and the 
estimated 2020/21 financial position. 
 

4.1.1 The forecast position as at the end of September 2020 is a General Fund in-year 

saving of £1,745k.  

Approved 
by 

When Reason for change 
Amount 
(£'000) 

Budget 
Council  Mar-20 Approved budget 

   
224,127  

Cabinet Apr-20 Emergency Covid-19 Funding tranche 2   6,116  

Cabinet Apr-20 Hardship Funding   3,064  

Cabinet Apr-20 
S31 - Covid-19 Grant Business Rates relief 
compensation 

20,950  

Cabinet Jul-20 Emergency Covid-19 Funding tranche 3 2,416  

Cabinet Jul-20 
Business Rates Top up Grant - final settlement 
adjustment 

677  

Cabinet Jul-20 New Burdens grant relating to Covid 19 170  

Cabinet Jul-20 S31-Business Rates Grant Relief adjustment 292  

Pending Oct-20 Emergency Covid-19 Funding tranche 4 6,199 

    GRAND TOTAL   264,011  

Page 73



4 
 

This is an improvement of £13,171k from period 4, of which:  
 

 £10,763k relates to Covid-19. £6,199k is due to increased non- ringfenced 
government funding, £2,873k forecast compensation for lost income and 
use of reserves, and the remaining improvement of £1,691k relates mostly 
to an improved forecast position for Covid-19 related loss of income.  

 

 £2,408k relates to non-Covid 19 issues across most directorates. The 
table in section 4.1.2 provides further detail of the movements by 
directorate since September Cabinet. 

 
4.1.2 £125k pressure is attributable to Covid-19 which is net of Covid-19 emergency 

funding; the pressures include £870k of 2020/21 savings proposals that are not 

currently achievable. Budget will be allocated to Directorates to offset the 

pressures related to Covid-19. 

Non Covid-19 in-year savings are forecast currently at £1,870k. 

Page 74



5 
 

The table below provides detail by Directorate:  
 

Directorate/Detail Current 

Controllable 

Net Budget 

Forecast 

Controllable 

Outurn P6 

Forecast In-

Year Saving 

(Overspend) 

Previous 

Monitoring 

Report P4 

Movement 

since 

September 

Cabinet 

 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 

Adult Care 57,660 57,660 - (500) 500 

Children’s 49,483 48,727 756 192 564 

Economy 15,251 15,251 - (170) 170 

Neighbourhoods 51,700 51,541 159 (219) 378 

Public Health  19,302 19,302 - - - 

Resources 14,310 14,149 161 152 9 

Total Services Spending 207,706 206,630 1,076 (545) 1,621 

Contribution from Integrated Pool Budget  (102,339) (102,339) - - - 

Contribution to Integrated Pool Budget 102,339 102,339 - - - 

Total Pooled Budgets 0 0 - - - 

Finance Control Corporately Held Budgets 30,782 29,998 794 7 787 

Covid-19 Emergency Funding 22,231 22,356 (125) (10,888) 10,763 

Finance Control Budget Pressures 576 576 - - - 

Total Finance Control Spending 53,590 52,920 669 (10,881) 11,550 

Net Expenditure 261,295 259,550 1,745 (11,426) 13,171 

Uncontrollable Budget Spend 2,716 2,716 - - - 

Total Budget 264,011 262,266 1,745 (11,426) 13,171 

 
 

 
 

P
age 75



6 
 

The variations to controllable Revenue budget, by service, which are not related 

to Covid-19 are detailed below, and further detail may be found in Appendix A: 

Service Narrative 
Amount 
£'000 

Adult Care 

The Core Service provision is expected to break 
even with a pressure from commissioned 
placements being matched by in year savings, 
mainly from staff turnover. 

0 

Children's  

 
General Fund - Children's Social Care (CSC) is 
reporting an underspend of £0.581m in relation to a 
reduction in placement costs. As at 28th September 
2020 Cared for Children's numbers are showing a 
net reduction of 4, and a net reduction of 44 at child 
protection level since 1st April 2020. This is a 
positive position as the service have reduced 
numbers alongside managing the additional 
pressures of Covid-19. The critical point for CSC is 
now children have returned to school, and the 
service are seeing an increase in referrals and 
complex cases. If CSC are able to hold or continue 
to reduce cared for children and child protection 
numbers then Covid-19 related projected costs may 
be significantly reduced. There are forecast in year 
savings of £0.300m relating to the Youth Service, 
Sure Start/Early Help services mainly due to staffing 
savings, and £0.271m relating to the 
overachievement of income in the Schools Support 
service area. There is a pressure of £0.396m within 
Special Educational Needs and Disabilities relating 
to transport costs which is in line with the growth 
throughout 2019/20 now having full year impact and 
continued growth within 2020/21. 
 
Dedicated Schools Grant (DSG) - There continues 
to be a pressure on the High Needs Block Dedicated 
Schools grant due to the continued growth in 
Education Health Care Plans and Special 
Educational Needs Support. The period 6 position is 
a £1,595m deficit; all special schools within the 
borough are now at maximum capacity, therefore 
any further requests for places will ultimately have to 
be placed out of borough at independent schools 
which is a high cost provision. The service are 
working with schools at both primary and secondary 
level to increase SEND provision within the borough. 
 

756 

Page 76



7 
 

Service Narrative 
Amount 
£'000 

Neighbourhoods 

 
The Neighbourhoods Directorate is reporting a 
potential in-year saving of £159k. 
In-year savings are being achieved through Facilities 
Management £49k, Environmental Management 
£84k, Coroners £65k, Community & Townships 
£95k; these are partially being used to offset 
overspends in Strategic Housing £53k and 
Properties £81k. 

159 

Finance Control 

 
No new external borrowing has been undertaken so 
far this year due to the use of internal balances, and 
a robust balance sheet position maintained. The 
rephasing and reductions of Capital Budget 
approved at September Cabinet has resulted in 
savings of £787k. Reduced debt has increased the 
reported in-year saving by a further £7k. 
 

794 

Resources 

 
The Resources Directorate is reporting a potential 
in-year saving of £161k from current year employee 
savings from vacant posts, temporary arrangements 
and one off funding. These savings are being used 
to mitigate pressures within the Legal Shared 
Service with Manchester which are currently under 
discussion, and increased maintenance costs for the 
new I Trent Payroll system.  
 

161 

Total   1,870 

 
  

Page 77



8 
 

4.1.3 The variations to controllable Revenue budget, by service, which are related to 

Covid-19 are detailed below: 

Expenditure £'000s 

Adult Social Care  9,257 

Children's Social Care 2,729 

Education 68 

Highways and transport, Public Health & Housing 3,617 

Cultural & Related 2,970 

Environmental and regulatory services 1,727 

Finance & Corporate  4,647 

Other services 1,215 

Estimated Total Spending Pressure 26,230 

Less funding received for Infection Control, Test & Trace, 
Hardship Fund and Health (via CCG) 

(15,300) 

Estimated Funding Pressure 10,930  

Income £'000s 

Sales, fees and charges 3,703  

Commercial Income 10,596  

Estimated Total reduction in Income 14,299  

Total Estimated Pressure 25,229  

Government Emergency Funding (22,231) 

Forecast Government compensation re: Sales, Fees & 

Charges Income, and use of Reserves (2,873)   

Residual Pressure 125    

 

The Government has developed an income compensation scheme for lost sales, 

fees and charges for 2020/21 as a result of the impact of Covid 19. The Council 

will be submitting claims that meet the criteria of the scheme to reduce the residual 

pressure. The current forecast claim for lost 2020/21 income is £2,073k, although 

this is subject to change during the remainder of the financial year. The scheme 

does not compensate the Council for the majority of income lost due to commercial 

loses not being eligible for compensation. 

 The forecast cost projections relating to Covid-19 include possible financial 

support for Link4Life, the Council’s culture and leisure provider. A recovery plan 

has been developed for Link4Life as it emerges from lockdown, which will be 

Page 78



9 
 

monitored through the contract. Link4Life have recently been awarded c£666k of 

funding from the government’s Cultural Recovery Fund. 

The Council has reviewed its level of Reserves, and Treasury Management 

strategy to assess the availability of one off funds to offset against any pressures 

caused by the impact of Covid-19. The Council has indicated to the government 

that £7m of Reserves could be used; a £3m reserve established for Manchester 

Airport dividend pressures, and £4m of General Balances, established for various 

unforeseen issues, including demand pressures and a reduction in the collection 

of Business Rates and Council Tax. The current forecast position for 2020/21 

indicates that the Council will not need to utilise reserves in this financial year. 

However, these reserves will be earmarked to offset future year pressures relating 

to commercial losses and the Collection Fund, as the impact of Covid-19 is 

estimated to have a longer term impact than previously predicted. 

Work is on-going to assess the financial impact and timeframe involved relating 

to Covid-19. The longer term implications are being considered to support the 

Council in its financial planning going forward. 

The Council will, with other Greater Manchester councils, continue to lobby the 

government to provide further funding to offset the ongoing financial impact of 

Covid-19. 

4.2 Health & Social Care Pool Budget 
 

As at the end of September 2020 the forecast gap in the Pool Fund for 2020/21 

is £8,800k: 

 £1,000k of which is the forecast remaining element of the opening pool gap; 

this figure is a reduction of £1,100k from period 4 and is subject to change 

 £7,800k relating to Covid-19 pressures. 

  

Page 79



10 
 

4.3 Budget Pressures 

The Budget Pressure Fund for 2020/21 reported to September Cabinet was 

£576k; the following table details adjustments and requests received to the end 

of September 2020: 

 Service 

Ongoing 

£000s 

One 

off 

£000's 

Total 

£000s 

Narrative 

Opening Balance 
2020/21 Period 6 

492.7 83.1 575.8 The balance brought forward is net 
of previously approved allocations 

Period 6 Requests: 
Ongoing 

£’000s  

One 
off 

£’000s  
Total 

£’000s   Narrative 

    
There are no Budget Pressure 
Requests for 2020/21 reported in 
Period 6. 

Remaining Balance 
2020/21 

492.7 83.1 575.8 
Total of remaining pressures 
budget 

Children’s 16  16 

Parent Assessment Manual (PAMS 
assessment) software and training 
pressure of £16k cannot be met by 
Service and Budget Pressures 
funding is requested for 2021/22 
onwards. 

Neighbourhoods  330 330 

Request to extend the Integrated 
Place Team for 12 months due to 
the resource being used for Covid-
19 work. This request is one off in 
2021/22 

Neighbourhoods  46 46 
Cabinet report 27th October 
requested Homelessness Scheme 
funding 2021/22 

Neighbourhoods  23 23 
Cabinet report 27th October 
requested Homelessness Scheme 
funding 2021/22 

 

If the requests are approved the balance remaining for budget pressures in 

2020/21 is £576k; £493k ongoing and £83k one off. 

4.4 Savings 

The overall savings target for Services for 2020/21 is £4,451k (£4,171k recurrent, 

and £280k one-off). Services have identified savings proposals which have a 

balance to address relating to Covid-19 of £870k (which is included in the 

reported pressure of £125k in 4.1.2) as shown in the table below:  

Page 80



11 
 

Service Nature of Saving Savings 

Target - 

Ongoing 

Savings 

Target - 

One Off 

Achieved On-

Target 

Mitigating 

Actions 

Total 

Balance 

to 

Address 

Balance to 

Address 

relating to 

Covid-19 

Balance 

to 

Address 

Non 

Covid-19 

     £'000  £'000  £'000  £'000  £'000  £'000  £'000  £'000 

Adult Care Improved opportunities 

through person centred 

planning for people in 

Supported Living 

300 (45) - 55 - 200 200 - 

Adult Care Prevention Contracts 

(previously supported living) 

180 - - - - 180 180 - 

Adult Care Adult Care Commissioned 

Day Services 

134 (15) (15) - - 134 134 - 

Adult Care Moving On 50 - 40 - - 10 10 - 

  Sub Total Adults 1,282 60 253 565 - 524 524 - 

  Sub Total Children's 166 - - 166 - - - - 

Economy N1 Riverside Utilisation 

Income 

35 - - - - 35 35 - 

  Sub Total Economy 60 - 25 - - 35 35 - 

Neighbourhoods Capitalisation of Building 

Support Team and reduction 

in Training Budget 

100 - - 56 - 44 44 - 

Neighbourhoods Waste Vehicle cleaning 17 - - - - 17 17 - 

Neighbourhoods Additional SIMS income from 

schools outside Borough 

20 - - - - 20 20 - 

P
age 81



12 
 

Service Nature of Saving Savings 

Target - 

Ongoing 

Savings 

Target - 

One Off 

Achieved On-

Target 

Mitigating 

Actions 

Total 

Balance 

to 

Address 

Balance to 

Address 

relating to 

Covid-19 

Balance 

to 

Address 

Non 

Covid-19 

     £'000  £'000  £'000  £'000  £'000  £'000  £'000  £'000 

Neighbourhoods Income generation from 

advertising / Digital 

advertising screens 

 

7 

 

- 

 

- 

 

- 

 

- 

 

7 

 

7 

 

- 

Neighbourhoods Place based asset 

management system 

100 - - - 60 40 40 - 

  Sub Total Neighbourhoods 499 100 268 77 126 128 128 0 

Public Health System wide prevention 

review (including YP 

Substance Misuse and 

Sexual Health Contract 

review) 

129 - 26 - - 103 103 - 

  Sub Total Public Health 230 0 127 0 0 103 103 0 

Resources Early Payment Initiative - 120 - 40 - 80 80 - 

  Sub Total Public 

Resources 

1,932 120 1,932 40 - 80 80 0 

Savings Grand Total with Balance to 

Address 

4,169 280 2,605 848 126 870 870 0 

P
age 82



13 
 

4.5 Transformation Fund 

The table below provides a summary of projects which have received funds in 2020/21 and prior years and includes details on 

progress. 

Each of the projects aim to deliver and enable transformation and reform activity which as well as achieving wider objectives 

aim to deliver financial savings, or increased efficiency and effectiveness of service delivery. 

 

Directorate Project Overview Savings / Benefits Total 

funding 

allocation 

Adult Care 

 

 

Accommodation with support strategy  

 

The current project follows on from a previous 

allocation of £68,200 to enable the development on 

an accommodation strategy, market position 

statement, commissioning plans and stakeholder 

engagement around ensuring we have the correct 

supply of the right accommodation, reducing the 

need for expensive out of the borough placements. 

 

A further £148,000 has been allocated for 

programme and project management costs to 

support the continuation of the work around the 

accommodation strategy, and specifically to deliver 

the following three projects: 

 

This project aims to achieve recurrent annual 

savings of £108k per year by 2021/22 for a one off 

£148k investment in programme and project 

management resource through a reduction in out 

of borough crisis placements, which cost 

approximately double the cost of in borough 

provision.  

 

If the Council does not commission on a strategic 

basis it is unlikely to have allocation rights; control 

over the supply in the market or its stability; 

difficulty in assessing the quality and 

appropriateness of the support being delivered 

within the properties.  This could lead to: 

 

 

£148,000 

P
age 83



14 
 

Directorate Project Overview Savings / Benefits Total 

funding 

allocation 

 

1. Un-commissioned support 

2. Pipeline development (working age adults with 

long-term conditions) 

3. Pipeline development (preventative services) 

a) Inflated costs via out of borough or crisis 

placements 

b) Additional ‘un-commissioned’ units being built 

in borough 

c) ‘Demand’ being brought into Rochdale from 

other boroughs and Rochdale residents missing 

out on allocations when required 

d) Empty or dis-used properties, due to business 

failure 

e) A missed opportunity to supply actual demand, 

as there is potential demand in other areas of 

the borough and from other customer groups 

f) People with low-level support needs accessing 

accommodation with support, when they could 

manage with a standard tenancy, creating 

dependency.   

Furthermore, if the provider is a ‘for profit’ landlord, 

the Council may be exposed to the resultant cost 

via un-recoverable, uplifted housing benefit claims. 

 

P
age 84



15 
 

Directorate Project Overview Savings / Benefits Total 

funding 

allocation 

Economy A successful future for Development 

Management 

External consultants have been commissioned to 

undertake a review of the service focused on 

improving the quality of the service offers to 

customers, investors and developers. In addition it 

will also explore the potential to develop a premium 

planning service which has the potential to boost 

non–statutory fee income.  

 

 

As well as aiming to improve the quality of the 

service for customers, investors and developers 

the project estimates that additional (non-statutory) 

fee income of £10,000 per year could be achieved 

through offering a premium planning service. 

 

 

 

 

£50,000 

Economy Strategic Planning 

Transformation funding of £106,357 per annum for 

five years has been approved to support the 

strategic planning team staffing budget. They play 

a critical role in supporting the Council’s 

aspirations for growth, investment and 

regeneration and also have a strong track record in 

securing external grant funding. 

 

The work that the team does is essential to allow 

us to plan for the delivery of new homes and 

employment sites, which in turn supports the 

generation and growth of council tax receipts, new 

homes bonus and business rates. In addition the 

funding will allow the team to continue to maximise 

income from a range of grant funding opportunities.   

The application assumes that additional income 

through either Business Rates or grant funding will 

offset the cost of the transformation funding. 

 

 

£531,785 

P
age 85



16 
 

Directorate Project Overview Savings / Benefits Total 

funding 

allocation 

Economy One Public Estate/GMCA  

The transformation funding is for two new posts 

within the Estates and Assets service to enable 

participation and contribution to the One Public 

Estate and GMCA programmes. 

 

Benefits may include asset rationalisation across 

the public estate, rental income, capital receipts 

and access to sources of funding which we may 

not otherwise be aware of. 

 

 

£127,400 

Neighbourhoods Place Based Asset Management 

This project will implement a new corporate asset 

management system that will cover the planned 

and reactive maintenance of assets across 

Highways and Environmental Management as a 

well as a review and redesign of the processes 

where possible.  

 

 

Recurrent cashable savings of £100,000 in the first 

year, rising to £150,000 in the second year and 

beyond are expected to be achieved through 

rationalisation of systems and process redesign.  

The cashable savings from redesign are subject to 

the organisations ability to redesign the work 

differently. 

 

 

£149,400  

Neighbourhoods Housing allocations and Homelessness 

Strategic Housing has embarked on an ambitious 

project to transform and redesign the Council’s 

Homelessness and Housing Allocation services. 

 

£85,000 transformation funding was approved to 

deliver phase 1 which was to commission a review 

 

The future Homelessness and Housing Allocation 

services aims to provide holistic, person centred 

and sustainable solutions to customers to 

 reduce repeat referrals / contacts with 

Council services; 

 reduce duplication of work; and 

 

 

£216,952 

P
age 86



17 
 

Directorate Project Overview Savings / Benefits Total 

funding 

allocation 

of the current position of the service including 

homelessness and housing allocations process.  

The current project, which has received a further 

£216,952 funding is to prototype new ways to 

deliver services and build skills and capacity of in 

house team to implement the new service models. 

 reduce costs. 

 

Estimated savings of between £86k and £145k per 

annum (on-going) are anticipated by reducing the 

Housing Benefit subsidy loss on bed and breakfast 

/temporary accommodation costs through varying 

how these facilities are sourced and utilised and, in 

the medium term, reducing the length of stay and 

the total number of individuals/families requiring 

emergency housing. 

Neighbourhoods Integrated Place Team 

The Integrated Place team is a small, mobile and 

flexible team who work with colleagues through 

multi-disciplinary approaches in neighbourhoods to 

support people to make progress and 

improvements in their lives.  

 

Originally created from staff in the Economic 

Affairs team, the team is currently funded from the 

transformation fund for 19/20 and 20/21. 

 

The Integrated Place Teams in Rochdale borough 

have been delivering cashable cost savings to the 

council and the public sector system, through their 

work in Kirkholt, College Bank and Lower Falinge, 

since 2014. Most recent independent analysis has 

proven that in Lower Falinge and College Bank, for 

every £1 spent, £4.13 of savings has been 

delivered in cashable savings.  Non cashable 

savings are as much as £34.50 per £1 invested.  

 

 

 

£815,900 

P
age 87



18 
 

Directorate Project Overview Savings / Benefits Total 

funding 

allocation 

Studies by MHCLG and Edge Hill evidence value 

of team’s work which has been acclaimed at GM 

and a national level. Request for Budget pressures 

funding has been made for 2021/22. 

 

Resources Council property title and marketing project 

Originally intended to fund 2 full time posts (1 x 

property, 1 x legal) to enable the quicker release 

for sale of council land. Better 

management/disposal of the council’s property 

portfolio. Now funding one post. 

  

No income/savings targets identified however the 

proposal will enable the quicker release for sale of 

council land. This will accelerate capital receipts and 

realise reduction in revenue requirements for those 

properties where this is a feature. 

 

 

£144,400 

Resources Invoice Processing / Oxygen Project 

The first objective of this project is the 

centralisation of all invoice processing to the 

Support team in Revenues and Benefits service. 

The funding is for an additional post to implement 

of an early payment programme proposed by 

Oxygen Finance. An additional one off investment 

maybe needed for Civica systems development in 

relation to these changes. 

 

The project also aims to improve the purchase to 

pay process and limit the Council’s exposure to 

late payment and charges. 

 

If successful the project could deliver income of up 

to £750,000 over a five year period. 

 

 

£97,000 

P
age 88



19 
 

Directorate Project Overview Savings / Benefits Total 

funding 

allocation 

Resources Stepping up our approach to transformation 

and reform 

This funding was approved to establish a two year 

fixed term post and Programme Management 

Office approach to driving change and to deliver 

significant financial benefits across a range of 

transformation and reform across the Council. 

 

It is expected that through this work we will 

address the challenges the organisation has faced 

in relation to taking forwards transformation, such 

as capacity, planning, governance and benefits 

realisation skills. In addition, £200,000 savings will 

be identified/achieved to offset the funding.  

 

 

 

£200,000 

Resources AI/Automation Proof of Concept 

This project will implement AI/Automation 

technology in a number of service ares in the 

Resources directorate as a proof of concept, with 

the aim of demonstrating the benefits and 

effectiveness of the technology, which could then 

be rolled out in other areas of the authority and 

CCG. 

 

This technology automates high volume 

transactional and administrative processes quickly 

and accurately freeing up capacity of officers and 

processing things more quickly, which will benefit 

 

Following implementation of AI/Automation 

technology across 2 -3 processes and services 

areas, financial savings in the region of £105,000 

per year could be realised. This is based on the 

reduction of 4 posts (mid-point Grade 4). Assuming 

these post could be taken out by year 2, the 

breakeven point for the investment would be 

achieved by the end of Year 4. 

 Non-financial benefits include: 

 Reduction in processing error rates. 

 Improved performance, processing higher 

volumes of work, much more quickly. 

 

 

£250,000 

P
age 89



20 
 

Directorate Project Overview Savings / Benefits Total 

funding 

allocation 

customers whether they be internal ones or our 

residents. 

 

It uses software robots, also called a digital 

workforce to perform tasks using the same tools 

that human workers use. At a basic level this kind 

of technology can take information from emails, 

eForms, existing systems and even paper, and 

based on a work flow which we would set based on 

our systems and processes, it would process the 

information in the same way that our officers 

currently do. 

 Increased customer satisfaction through 

quicker processing times and also for more 

complex cases it will free capacity to provide 

more support 

 In some cases it can reduce the cost of digital 

transformation/integration costs with legacy 

systems – as the digital workforce can transfer 

data between systems without the need for 

costly integrations. 

 Automates the low value, high volume 

mundane and repetative tasks – freeing up our 

officers to do more rewarding work. 

 

The following schemes were due to achieve savings during 2020/21, but have been impacted by the Covid-19 pandemic: 

 Adult Care, Accommodation Strategy - delay in progression of the Accommodation Strategy as consultancy support has been 

re-focused to Covid-19 work; projected savings of £60k now reduced to £6k, and remainder to be realised in 2021/22 

 

 Resources, Invoice Processing/Oxygen Project – the initiative has been impacted by the decision at the end of March 2020 to 

make immediate payment to suppliers with the intention of ensuring service continuity and supporting suppliers as the impact of 

Covid-19 progressed. 2020/21 savings are forecast to be £40k rather than the original £120k. At 27th October Cabinet it was 

agreed to resume standard supplier payment terms of 30 days, from 1st November 2020. 

 

P
age 90



21 
 

 Neighbourhoods, Place Based Asset Management – delays with the project. Projected savings of £100k have been partially 

mitigated by £60k in year savings within Neighbourhoods service, and the remaining £40k is forecast not to be achieved due to 

the impact of Covid-19.  

 

P
age 91



22 
 

 

4.6 Capital Budget 2020/21 

 

As part of the financial monitoring and analysis of the ongoing pressures 

being placed on the Council following the Covid 19 pandemic, a review of the 

Capital Programme has been undertaken to reduce the future debt repayment 

burden on the Council, as part of the Medium Term Financial Strategy and to 

understand spend in the current year and the impact on the Council’s cash 

flow. 

The review of 2020/21 and 2021/22 capital budgets focused on Economy and 

Neighborhoods’ budgets to consider whether schemes could be re-prioritised, 

and rephased into future years or reduced, to achieve a reduction of £1m of 

borrowing costs for the 2021/22 and future years’ Revenue budgets. It is 

intended that such reviews will form part of the budget monitoring and setting 

processes going forward. 

As a result of the review, the updated forecast position for the 2020/21 Capital 

Budget is £70,688k, with spend to date of £17,995k (25.5% of budget).  The 

table below shows a summary of the budget movements to the end of 

September 2020: 

  
2020/21 2021/22 2022/23 

£'000s £'000s £'000s 

BUDGET AS AT END OF JULY 2020 135,430 73,801 32,653 

Rephasing Neighbourhoods & Economy 
reported September Cabinet 

(59,228) 43,225 16,003 

Future Year Capital Programme 
Adjustments reported September Cabinet 

- (9,578) (4,532) 

Capital Budget Reductions  (1,001) - - 

Rephasing requests at September 2020 (5,579) 4,259 1,320 

Capital Budget Increases 1,063 -     -      

Capital reporting Overspends 3 - -    

BUDGET AS AT END OF SEPTEMBER 
2020 

70,688 111,707 45,444 

 

  

Page 92



23 
 

 

4.6.1 Capital Budget Changes 

 

Details of the increases to capital budgets are shown in the table below 

Service Narrative 
Funding 
Method 

Capital Budget 
Increases  
£000's 

Children’s 
Additional Schools 
Condition grant received 

External 
Funding 

840 

Economy 
Minor adjustment to correct 
2019/20  

Prudential 
Borrowing 

4 

Neighbourhoods 
Townships Wardle & 
Smallbridge Football Club 

RCCO 9  

Neighbourhoods S106 grants 
External 
Funding 

210 

Resources 
New HR & Payroll System 
reported overspend to be 
funded from RCCO 

RCCO 3 

Total Capital Budget Increases   1,066 

 

4.6.2 Capital Re-phasing requests to the end of September 2020 which have been 

approved by the Chief Finance Officer are shown in the table below.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 93



24 
 

  

 

4.6.3 Neighbourhoods Service have previously returned Townships Capital budgets 

of £140k to contribute to the overall savings on the 2020/21 Capital 

Programme as part of the Capital Programme review and setting of the 2021 

– 2026 Programme.  As the Programme is now out for consultation, it has 

been requested by Members that this budget is instead rephased into 

2021/22.  It is also requested that the rephased budget should remain 

available to be brought back into 2020/21 should the expenditure be incurred 

in 2020/21. 

4.6.4 Capital Budget Returns 

 Budget returns due to reassessment of budget required are reported at 

£1,001k for the period ending September 2020 and relate to the following 

schemes: 

 

 
Service Narrative 

Rephasing 
Requested 
£000s 

 
 
Children’s 
Service 

Aiming High for Disabled Children - specific 
project for the adaptation of a property to be 
utilised for Short Breaks. The project has been 
delayed and will not commence until 2021/22 

42 

 
 
 
Children’s 
Service 

Schools Capital Condition Programme - an 
additional allocation of funding was received in 
September and October which is not planned 
to be spent this year due to issues with 
contractors and is requested to be rephased 
into 2021/2022. 

840  

 
Neighbourhoods 
Service 

J19 Feasibility - Forecast in line with latest 
TFGM return. Request is made to rephase to 
21/22. 

2,767  

 
Neighbourhoods 
Service 

GM Full Fibre Programme - Request is made 
to rephase funding to 21/22 due to delay in 
project 

626  

 
Neighbourhoods 
Service 
 

Highways Investment Programme - Carriage 
Ways / Footpaths - Rephase budget in line with 
programme. 

320 

 
Neighbourhoods 
Service 
 

Bowlee Free School - Request to rephase 
budget to 2021/22 due to delays in the project.    

1,184 

Neighbourhoods 
Service 
 

Kirkholt Investment - Request to vire £200k 
from Accelerated Housing future years budget 
to cover project costs. 

(200) 

 Total Rephasing 5,579 

Page 94



25 
 

 Service Scheme Budget Returns 
£000s 

Neighbourhoods Waste Services Investment 521 

Neighbourhoods Asset Management Group 480 

 Total Returns 1,001 

 

4.6.5 The following budget switch is requested to fund expenditure incurred for play 

equipment: 

 Service Scheme Budget Returns 
£000s 

Neighbourhoods Replacement Parks/Street 
Machinery 

(44) 

Neighbourhoods Upgrade Play Equipment 44 

 Total - 

 

4.6.6 Capital Receipts 

Capital receipts are received on the sale of various assets including land, 

buildings and vehicles. The forecast movements in the Capital Receipts 

Reserve during 2020/21, and provisionally for 2021/22 to 2022/23 are 

included in the table below. 

Description 
2020/21 2021/22 2022/23 

 
£000’s 

 
£000’s 

 
£000’s 

Capital Receipts balance as at 1st April 2020 11,142 - - 

Use of Capital Receipts to fund 2020/21 Capital 
Programme, including prior year schemes 
rephased into 2021/22 

(4,960) - - 

Use of Capital Receipts to fund provisional 
2021/22 and 2022/23 Capital Programmes, and 
2020/21 rephasing into future years 

- (3,739) (0.044) 

Earmarked use of receipts to fund other future 
commitments  

(8,602) (1,845) (0.706) 

Capital Receipts income 2,421 1,894 0.750 

Forecast uncommitted Capital Receipts 
balance as at 31st March 2021 

 -   -   -  

 

4.6.7 The forecast uncommitted Capital Receipts Reserve balance as at the end of 

2022/23 is nil as all uncommitted receipts are being earmarked towards the 

cost of the Highways Investment. 

  

Page 95



26 
 

 

4.7 Collection Fund 

4.7.1 The forecast Collection Fund outturn position for 2020/21 is a deficit of 
£30,450k, comprising: 

 

 £25,599k deficit relating to Business Rates, partially offset by 

Section 31 grant of £20,950k; 

 £4,851k deficit relating to Council Tax. 

The 2020/21 Collection Fund is forecast to be significantly impacted by the 

impact of Covid-19 and Government initiatives. This will impact on the 

Council’s General Fund in 2021/22, and there is expected to be a longer term 

impact on the level of Business Rates and Council Tax income. 

4.7.2 Table 1 shows the forecast 2020/21 Collection Fund position, and the 

allocation between precepting authorities. 

Table 1 – 2020/21 Collection Fund forecast deficit 

  Business Rates Council Tax Total 

  % £'000 % £'000 £'000 

Forecast Collection Fund 
(surplus)/deficit at 31/03/21   25,599   4,851 30,450 

            
Preceptors' Share of 
2020/21 outturn           

Rochdale BC 99 25,343 84.61 4,104 29,447 
GMCA Mayoral Police & 
Crime Commissioner  0 0 10.71 520 520 
GMCA Mayoral General  
(including Fire Services)    1.00  256 4.68 227 483 

            

Total forecast outturn 
(surplus)/deficit 100 25,599 100 4,851 30,450 

 

The Council’s share of the forecast Collection Fund deficit is £29,447k, which 

will be partially offset by Government Section 31 grant funding of £20,950k. 

The following table provides the explanation of variances relating to Business 

Rates: 

  

Page 96



27 
 

 

Explanation of variance 

Variation 
to 

budget, 
£'000 

Decreased net Business Rates income principally due to the 
government decision to give 100% relief to the Retail, Leisure and 
Hospitality sectors for 2020/21, linked to the Covid19 pandemic; 
Section 31 grant to offset the discount given is received in the 
Council's General Fund. Reduced levels of gross income and higher 
levels of Empty Property discount are also forecast, linked to the 
impact of the pandemic.  

23,981 

Increased charge relating to the bad debt provision due to the likely 
impact of Covid19 on debt collection. 

2,384 

Actual surplus brought forward from 2019/20 is £766k higher than had 
been forecast as part of the 2020/21 Budget process.  

(766) 

2020/21 Deficit 25,599 

 

The following table provides an explanation of variances relating to Council 

Tax: 

Explanation of variance 
Variation 
to budget, 

£000 

Minor forecast variation relating to Council Tax income raised 7 

Forecast increased level of Local Council Tax Support discount 
given due to increased numbers of claimants, partially offset by 
government Hardship Funding. 

2,249 

Increased charge relating to the bad debt provision as a result of 
anticipated impact of Covid 19 on debt collection. 

981 

A deficit of £937k brought forward from 2019/20 instead of the 
£(677)k surplus forecast as part of the 2020/21 Budget process. 
This was mainly due to the decision to increase the level of the 
Bad Debt provision as a consequence of the likely impact of 
Covid19. 

1,614 

2020/21 Forecast Deficit 4,851 

 

The Council’s share of any 2020/21 Collection Fund deficit will be brought into 

the Council’s General Fund budget for 2021/22. 

There will be a longer term impact on Collection Fund income which is 

dependent on the recovery of businesses and households. This will impact on 

the Council’s core funding for services. Work is ongoing to assess the longer 

term impact on the Council’s financial position. 

4.8 Treasury Management 

4.8.1 Treasury Management activity aims to effectively manage the Council’s cash 

flow requirements through borrowing and investment. The service operates 

Page 97



28 
 

within CIPFA’s / MHCLG’s Prudential Framework and our own approved 

Treasury Management Strategy to ensure risk is appropriately managed when 

seeking to minimise the costs of borrowing and maximise returns on 

investment. 

4.8.2 The first half of the year has been dominated by the Covid pandemic with 

additional concerns around Brexit. Gross Domestic Product has fallen by 23% 

with the pace of recovery expected to be slower than the original V-shaped 

‘bounce back’ envisaged and the economy facing some painful long term 

adjustments. 

 Gilt yields (which drive PWLB rates) fell initially during the crisis. However, our 

main borrowing rates (via PWLB) still suffer from the additional 1% margin 

imposed in October 2019.  This is subject on an ongoing Central Government 

review after which it is hoped that authorities that forego overtly commercial 

investments will benefit from some form of lower borrowing rate. 

 Interest rates for deposits fell sharply in line with the Bank of England’s base 

cut to 0.1% in March 2020. We continue to face speculation on the prospect of 

future negative interest rates. The Bank’s latest thinking appears to suggest 

that such a move would do more harm than good. Our projections assume that 

the current base rate will remain unchanged throughout this financial year, 

though we continue to explore options to help mitigate against any further 

reductions. 

Please see Appendix D for details. 

4.9 Alternatives considered 

4.9.1 Not reporting on financial performance puts at risk the achievement of the 

Council’s Medium Term Financial Plan. Effective budget management is 

critical to ensuring financial resources are spent in line with the budget and 

are targeted towards the Council’s priorities. Monitoring enables the early 

identification of variations against the plan and facilitates timely corrective 

action. 

 

Costs and Budget Summary 

 
5. Financial Implications 
 

The main body of the report provides a detailed analysis of the forecast 
2020/21 Finance Outturn position. 

 
 

Risk and Policy Implications 

 
6. There are no significant legal implications arising as a result of this Report but 

it should be noted that debts, which are recoverable, can be enforced by 
Court action in accordance with the Court Procedure Rules. 

 

Page 98



29 
 

The impact of Covid-19 pressures relating to additional expenditure and lost 

income is estimated to have a very significant impact on the Council’s financial 

position both in 2020/21 and in the medium term. The Council has completed a 

review of its reserves to assess whether some of the financial pressure may be 

mitigated in both the short and longer term. The use of reserves to address 

pressures as a result of the Covid-19 outbreak is a one off solution which cannot 

be sustained in the long term. The Council has indicated that any reserves 

deployed would require replenishing to their original value. The Council is 

continuing to lobby the government to provide further funding to offset the 

pressures. 

Unresolved appeals against the revaluation assessments for 2005, 2010 and 

2017 cause uncertainty and financial risk for the Business Rates income 

retained by the Council. The situation is monitored on a monthly basis to ensure 

that any changes in the trend for successful appeals are recognised due to the 

future impact on Business Rates income and the impact for the provision for 

any backdated elements. 

 The VOA alters rating assessments if new information comes to light indicating 

that the valuation is inaccurate. These could relate to a demolition, new property 

builds or other physical changes to a property. The number of alterations, 

financial impact and timing of the revaluations are not within the control of the 

Council. There is an on-going risk that issues decided nationally by the VOA 

could potentially impact on Rochdale BC’s Business Rates income. 

 The future level of collection of Corporate Debt, Business Rates and Council 

Tax debt is a potential financial risk, particularly with the impact of the Covid-19 

pandemic. Collection performance is being monitored on a monthly basis to 

ensure that debt is recovered as efficiently and effectively as possible, whilst 

making adjustments to reflect the current circumstances being imposed on 

businesses and residents, and so that any trends may be highlighted and action 

taken as necessary, at the appropriate time. Debt collection is likely to be 

significantly affected by the impact of Covid-19 both in this financial year and 

future years, and the forecast 2020/21 bad debt charges and provisions have 

been increased to reflect the increased risk of non-collection. 

  

Page 99



30 
 

 

 

Consultation 

 
7. All services engage with the production of the directorate based financial 

information within this report. The Leadership Team, the Leader, Cabinet 

Member for Finance, and Opposition Portfolio holder for Finance have been 

informed of the forecast 2020/21 financial position of the Council and its 

implications for future years. The report has been presented to the Corporate 

Overview and Scrutiny Committee on 24th November 2020. 

Background Papers Place of Inspection 

 

8. For further information about this 

report or access to any 

background papers contact 

Samantha Smith 

No1 Riverside Floor 2  

 

For Further Information Contact: Samantha Smith, Samantha.Smith@rochdale.gov.uk  

Tel : 01706 924198 

 

  

Page 100

mailto:Samantha.Smith@rochdale.gov.uk


31 
 

Appendix A – Revenue Budget ‘Variations to budget’ narrative – September 2020 

Service Narrative Budget 

£'000s 

Forecast 

Spend 

£’000s 

Variance 

£’000s 

Adult Care Management :- Minor variations 6,637 6,651 (14) 

Adult Care Neighbourhoods:- Forecast pressure from commissioned places for service 

users 

41,798 42,177 (379) 

Adult Care Boroughwide Services:- Forecast pressures from commissioned places for 

service users 

3,675 3,755 (80) 

Adult Care In House Provider Services:-  Forecast in-year saving due to staff turnover 895 629 266 

Adult Care Governance Business Support & Home Improvement Agency:-  Forecast in-

year saving due to staff turnover 

883 752 131 

Adult Care Commissioning:-  Forecast in-year saving from contracts and staff turnover 2,364 2,295 69 

Adult Care Statutory Functions:- minor variations 827 820 7 

Adult Care Adult Care Variation to Budget  57,079 57,079 0 

Children's  Cared for Children: - Underspend related to a reduction in placement costs as 

cared for children’s numbers continue to slowly reduce. 

26,669 26,088 581 

Children's  Sure Start/Early Help: - Savings in relation to vacant posts and delays in 

recruitment, the service are in the final stages of a restructure. 

5,046 4,796 250 

Children's  School Support: - Overachievement of income on Personnel and Governors 

Service and underspends on bus passes. 

1,391 1,120 271 

Children's  Special Educational Needs and Disability (SEND):- The significant growth 

within SEND is putting increased pressure on SEND transport. This is in line 

with the pressure on the High Needs Dedicated Schools Grant (discussed 

below) both budgets are now feeling the pressure of full year impact of the 

growth in SEND numbers in 2019/20 and continued growth in 2020/21. 

6,356 6,752 (396) 

P
age 101



32 
 

Service Narrative Budget 

£'000s 

Forecast 

Spend 

£’000s 

Variance 

£’000s 

Children's  Youth Service: - Underspends re Vacant posts and activities as events cannot 

happen in the same format due to Covid. 

74 24 50 

Children's  High Needs Block - Pressure due to the full year impact of 2019/20 growth of 

Education Health Care Plans and the continued growth within 2020/21. 

Rochdale special schools are now at full capacity so all future requests for 

places will result in out of borough Independent schools which is a high cost 

provision. The service and schools are working together to increase in borough 

provision. 

0 1,595 (1,595) 

Children's  Contribution from DSG Reserve: - 2019/20 High Needs deficit £3.2m, including 

the in-year position this is now £4.8m. 

0 (1,595) 1,595 

Children's  Children's Services Variation to Budget  39,536 38,780 756 

Finance Control Interest: - Continued internal borrowing and rephasing the capital program 

offset by reduced investment income. 

7,311 6,524 787 

Finance Control Debt Repayment:-  Small ad hoc variations 9,964 9,957 7 

Finance Control Finance Control Variation to Budget 17,275 16,481 794 

Neighbourhoods Facilities Management:-  In-year saving due to staff vacancies within School 

Trading Accounts 

2,602 2,553 49 

Neighbourhoods Environmental Management: - Pressures relating to the under achievement of 

income targets and an increase in the rent of the depot.  These are offset by 

in-year savings on supplies, fuel and from delayed filling of vacant posts. 

10,980 10,896 84 

Neighbourhoods Coroners :-   In-year saving due to delay in scanning machine implementation 642 577 65 

Neighbourhoods Community & Townships:-   In-year saving due to staff vacancies with Libraries 4,017 3,922 95 

P
age 102



33 
 

Service Narrative Budget 

£'000s 

Forecast 

Spend 

£’000s 

Variance 

£’000s 

Neighbourhoods Strategic Housing: - There is a £438k pressure in respect of housing benefit 

and homelessness costs which are not fully covered by Government subsidy. 

Corporate funding has been earmarked to address any shortfall.  There is an 

in-year pressure of £53k in respect of the Discretionary Crisis Fund. 

2,235 2,288 (53) 

Neighbourhoods Properties: - Pressure of £60k to manage the renewal of statutory service 

contracts and a shortfall of £21k of income generated from solar sites. 

254 335 (81) 

Neighbourhoods Neighbourhoods Service Variation to Budget 20,730 20,571 159 

Resources Finance Services: - In-year savings due to staffing and Audit Fees savings. 1,822 1,766 56 

Resources Other Managed Budgets: - In-year savings as a result of vacant posts at Head 

of Service level, plus other temporary arrangements and one-off savings in 

2020/21. 

4,994 4,702 292 

Resources Revenues and Benefits: - In-year savings as a result of one off funding. 1,301 1,257 44 

Resources Legal Services: - Pressure within the Shared Legal Service with Manchester 

City Council which is currently under discussion with partners. 

1,907 2,259 (352) 

Resources Human Resources: - In-year saving as a result of the re-tendering of the 

Occupational Health Contract. 

1,860 1,806 54 

Resources Internal Audit: - In-year savings due to staffing. 628 614 14 

Resources Governance: - In-year savings due to vacancies in staffing. 1,798 1,745 53 

Resources Resources Service Variation to Budget 14,310 14,149 161 

Grand Total Total Variation to Revenue Budget - September 2020 1,870 

 

P
age 103



34 
 

Appendix B – Capital Forecast Spend by Scheme as at September 2020 

 

Service Scheme 2020/21 
Budget,  

£k  

2020/21 
Forecast 
Outturn, 
£k  

Variation 

£k  

 
2021/22 
budget, 
£k  

2022/23 
budget, 
£k  

Total 
budget, 
£k  

Adult Care Better Care Fund            563           563                 -    
 

            -                -           563  

Adult Care Disabled Facilities Grant         2,706        2,706                -    
 

    2,633      2,633      7,972  

Adult Care           3,269        3,269                -    
 

    2,633      2,633      8,535  

Children's Aiming High For Disabled Child             42               -                42  
 

            -                -             42  

Children's Devolved Formula Capital        1,260        1,260               -    
 

       483         483      2,226  

Children's Early Years Capital Grant               -                 -                   -    
 

         19              -             19  

Children's New Place Planning        9,520        9,520                -    
 

  27,200      5,200    41,920  

Children's Schools Access               2              2                -    
 

            -               -               2  

Children's Schools Cap Condition Programme        4,614        3,774           840  
 

    1,833      1,833      8,280  

Children's Healthy Pupils Capital Fund             16             16                -    
 

            -                -             16  

Children's Special Provision Capital Fund           304          304               -    
 

      304             -           608  

Children's CWD Residential Home             30            30               -    
 

   1,084             -        1,114  

Children's        15,788    14,906           882  
 

 30,923     7,516   54,227  

Economy Definitive ROW Improvement 

Programme 

            54            54                -    
 

            -               -            54  

Economy River Roch Flood Storage        597          597               -    
 

   1,000     1,250     2,847  

P
age 104



35 
 

Service Scheme 2020/21 
Budget,  

£k  

2020/21 
Forecast 
Outturn, 
£k  

Variation 

£k  

 
2021/22 
budget, 
£k  

2022/23 
budget, 
£k  

Total 
budget, 
£k  

Economy Rochdale Gateways Environmental 

Programme 

                  

46  

                  

46  

                   

-    

 
                   

-    

                   

-    

                  

46  

Economy Stakehill Industrial Estate               1              1               -    
 

        50             -            51  

Economy Asset Development Fund        2,713       2,713               -    
 

           -               -       2,713  

Economy Property Growth Fund        5,582       5,582               -    
 

  20,000   15,000   40,582  

Economy East Lancashire Railway           102          102               -    
 

      300             -          402  

Economy Lower Falinge              4              4               -    
 

           -                -               4  

Economy Heywood South/Junction 19            64            64              -    
 

   2,700             -       2,764  

Economy Railway Strategy Park & Ride          106          106               -    
 

      200             -          306  

Economy Northern Gateway Feasibility & Study         301           301               -    
 

      244             -          545  

Economy Pennine Holl Lake Feasibility           46            46               -    
 

           -                -            46  

Economy Springfield Park Master Plan                 -                 -                  -    
 

           -               -               -    

Economy Metrolink Feasibility             50            50               -    
 

           -               -            50  

Economy Birch Fountain & Horse Trough-

Middleton 

           22            22               -    
 

           -               -             22  

P
age 105



36 
 

Service Scheme 2020/21 
Budget,  

£k  

2020/21 
Forecast 
Outturn, 
£k  

Variation 

£k  

 
2021/22 
budget, 
£k  

2022/23 
budget, 
£k  

Total 
budget, 
£k  

Economy East Lancashire Railway - Castleton 

Mast 

          500         500            -    
 

       750             -       1,250  

Economy Hopwood Old Hall - Feasibility            50            50               -    
 

          -               -            50  

Economy SmithyBridge Railway Station           100           100               -    
 

      300             -           400  

Economy Middleton Town Centre Phase 3             10            10               -  
 

           -               -             10  

Economy P2 TCMP - Conservation area 

improvements 

             -                 -                  -    
 

           -               -               -    

Economy Town Centre East Feasibility           272          272                -    
 

      200             -          472  

Economy Town Hall Adaptation and Restoration        2,586       2,586                -    
 

    1,700      3,500      7,786  

Economy Rochdale Market           205          205                -    
 

           -                -           205  

Economy Town Hall Square PH2           330          330                -    
 

       634      2,200    3,164  

Economy Drake Street Phase 2             20            20                -    
 

       600         100         720  

Economy Town Centre Schemes 2016/17           589          589               -    
 

         50              -           639  

Economy Rochdale Town Centre 3 Year Strategy        1,272       1,272                -    
 

      250             -       1,522  

Economy Hopwood Hall Refurbishment             48            48               -  
 

           -               -            48  

P
age 106



37 
 

Service Scheme 2020/21 
Budget,  

£k  

2020/21 
Forecast 
Outturn, 
£k  

Variation 

£k  

 
2021/22 
budget, 
£k  

2022/23 
budget, 
£k  

Total 
budget, 
£k  

Economy Town Centre Residential Strategy           267           267                -    
 

   2,200             -       2,467  

Economy Rochdale Riverside Phase 2        2,279       2,279               -    
 

           -               -        2,279  

Economy Milkstone Road Master Plan           250          250               -    
 

   1,997             -       2,247  

Economy Hey/Midd/Litt Town Centre Masterplans           160          160               -    
 

           -               -          160  

Economy        18,626     18,626               -  
 

 33,175    22,050   73,851  

Neighbourhoods ICT Infrastructure Refresh Programme           567          567                -    
 

      444        444     1,455  

Neighbourhoods ICT Data Centre           162          162                -    
 

           -               -           162  

Neighbourhoods ICT Programmes (Staff)           526           526                -    
 

       500        500     1,526  

Neighbourhoods Townships Capital Programme           265          265                -    
 

      400         400     1,065  

Neighbourhoods Housing Standards Fund          564          564                -    
 

      800        800     2,164  

Neighbourhoods Kirkholt Investment             73           273          (200)  
 

           -               -            73  

Neighbourhoods New Cemetery Sites          714          714                -    
 

           -                -           714  

Neighbourhoods Replacement Parks/Street Machinery           130             86             44  
 

      120        120        370  

Neighbourhoods Rights Of Way            88            88                -    
 

         80          80         248  

P
age 107



38 
 

Service Scheme 2020/21 
Budget,  

£k  

2020/21 
Forecast 
Outturn, 
£k  

Variation 

£k  

 
2021/22 
budget, 
£k  

2022/23 
budget, 
£k  

Total 
budget, 
£k  

Neighbourhoods Rochdale Cemetery Lodge Repair           176          176                -    
 

           -               -          176  

Neighbourhoods Section 106 - Environmental 

Management 

       1,407       1,407                -    
 

            -               -        1,407  

Neighbourhoods Townships Capital - Environmental 

Management 

          132          132                -    
 

            -               -           132  

Neighbourhoods Upgrade Play Equipment           160           204           (44)  
 

         75           75         310  

Neighbourhoods Vehicle Replacement Programme        2,026       2,026                -    
 

   1,405     1,839     5,270  

Neighbourhoods Waste Bin Replacement Programme          360          360               -    
 

       360         360     1,080  

Neighbourhoods Waste Services Investment 521 - 521  - - - 

Neighbourhoods Asset Management Group       2,780       2,300           480 
 

             

1,750  

             

1,750  

             

6,280  

Neighbourhoods Local Transport Plan        2,544       2,544                -    
 

 1,967      1,967     6,478  

Neighbourhoods Townships Capital - Highways          372          372               -    
 

      150             -          522  

Neighbourhoods Burglary Reduction Scheme 100  100   -    
 

      100         100        300  

Neighbourhoods Energy Efficiency Schemes             84            84          -    
 

          -         -    84  

P
age 108



39 
 

Service Scheme 2020/21 
Budget,  

£k  

2020/21 
Forecast 
Outturn, 
£k  

Variation 

£k  

 
2021/22 
budget, 
£k  

2022/23 
budget, 
£k  

Total 
budget, 
£k  

Neighbourhoods Coroners Service accommodation 156  156   -    
 

 -    -    156  

Neighbourhoods Additional Highways Funding  219   219  -    
 

-       -    219  

Neighbourhoods J19 Feasibility 6,267  3,500   2767  
 

20,265   -    26,532  

Neighbourhoods Developer Contributions 75  75   -    
 

-    -    75  

Neighbourhoods Property Transfers From Townships 42  42  -    
 

 -     -    42  

Neighbourhoods GM Full Fibre Programme 926  300  626  
 

 -    -    926  

Neighbourhoods Service Desk System Replacement            60            60              -    
 

        50          50        160  

Neighbourhoods Compulsory Purchase Order 

Programme 

          490          490             -    
 

    1,300     1,430      3,220  

Neighbourhoods Travellers Authorised Stopping Site          70            70                -    
 

           -               -             70  

Neighbourhoods Climate Emergency             50            50                -    
 

    1,950      1,000      3,000  

Neighbourhoods Car Parking Machines            17            17               -    
 

            -               -            17  

Neighbourhoods Cashless System School Catering               6              6                -    
 

           -               -               6  

Neighbourhoods Dippy Exhibition Equipment              3              3               -    
 

            -               -               3  

Neighbourhoods N1R Revolving Doors               -                 -                 -    
 

       120             -           120  

P
age 109



40 
 

Service Scheme 2020/21 
Budget,  

£k  

2020/21 
Forecast 
Outturn, 
£k  

Variation 

£k  

 
2021/22 
budget, 
£k  

2022/23 
budget, 
£k  

Total 
budget, 
£k  

Neighbourhoods Allotments 2017-18 Manifesto Funding             50            50               -    
 

       123             -          173  

Neighbourhoods Accelerated Housing           150          150               -    
 

   1,450        650     2,250  

Neighbourhoods Affordable Housing        2,751       2,751               -    
 

            -               -       2,751  

Neighbourhoods Customer Transformation Programme        1,225       1,225               -    
 

      150             -        1,375  

Neighbourhoods CCTV Upgrade           172         172               -    
 

            -               -          172  

Neighbourhoods Library Self Service             70            70               -    
 

           -               -    70  

Neighbourhoods Extended Library Hours                -                 -                 -    
 

      150             -    150  

Neighbourhoods GM Air Quality Monitoring Station             52            52                -    
 

           -               -            52  

Neighbourhoods Town Centre Signage             62            62               -    
 

           -               -            62  

Neighbourhoods Highway Investment Programme        5,545       5,225           320  
 

   3,000             -       8,545  

Neighbourhoods Bowlee Free School        1,384          200        1,184  
 

           -               -       1,384  

Neighbourhoods      33,593     27,895         5698  
 

  36,709    11,565   81,647  

Public Health Link4Life Capital Project           608          608                -    
 

   4,008        360     4,976  

Public Health           608          608               -    
 

   4,008        360     4,976  

P
age 110



41 
 

Service Scheme 2020/21 
Budget,  

£k  

2020/21 
Forecast 
Outturn, 
£k  

Variation 

£k  

 
2021/22 
budget, 
£k  

2022/23 
budget, 
£k  

Total 
budget, 
£k  

Resources New HR & Payroll System      151          154             (3)  
 

           -               -          151  

Resources Manchester Airport       3,730       3,730               -    
 

           -               -        3,730  

Resources Investment Fund        1,500       1,500             -    
 

           -               -       1,500  

Resources  5,381       5,384             (3)  
 

           -               -        5,381  

Total Capital Forecast Position at September 2020      77,265     70,688        6,577  
 

107,448   44,124  228,617  

P
age 111



42 
 

Appendix C – Collection Fund 

Business Rates 

The 2020/21 forecast outturn position relating to Business Rates is a deficit 

of £25,599k.  

Description Budget 

2020/21 
Forecast 
Outturn 

(Surplus)/  
Deficit 

(Surplus)/ 
Deficit 
movement 
from 
previous 
update 

  £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 

Gross income (87,190) (86,052) 1,138 572 

Net Small Business Rate relief 7,682 8,200 518 200 

Mandatory Charitable relief 4,354 4,354 0 0 

Discretionary relief 1,983 22,422 20,439 (1) 

Empties & Part Occupied relief 3,614 5,500 1,886 (614) 

Net Income (69,557) (45,576) 23,981 157 

Less:          

Charge re bad debt provision 800 3,184 2,384 652 

Allowance for cost of collection 308 308 0 0 
Provision for rateable value 
revaluations  3,932 3,932 0 0 

Renewable energy schemes 582 582 0 0 

Net yield (63,935) (37,570) 26,365 809 

2020/21 payments to preceptors/billing 
authority 63,935 63,935 0 0 

In year (surplus)/deficit 0 26,365 26,365 809 

(Surplus)/deficit brought forward from 
2019/20 (1,103) (1,869) (766) 0 
Payments to preceptors/billing 
authority re 2019/20 surplus per the 
2020/21 Budget process 1,103 1,103 0 0 

Forecast (Surplus)/Deficit as at 
31/03/2021 0 25,599 25,599 809 

 

  

Page 112



43 
 

 

Council Tax 

 
Net Income Raised 
 
The 2020/21 forecast position relating to Council Tax is a deficit of £4,851k.  

2020/21 Forecast Council Tax Income 

Description Budget 
2020/21 
Outturn 

(Surplus)/ 
Deficit 

(Surplus)/ 
Deficit 

movement 
from 

previous 
report 

  £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 

INCOME         

Income from Council Tax (144,213) (143,900) 313 (300) 
Income from premium on Empty 
Properties (453) (550) (97) -  

Council Tax discounts  14,598 14,297 (301) (100)  
Local Council Tax Support Scheme 
(LCTSS) 19,251 21,500 2,249 (50)  

Prior year adjustments 208 300 92 - 

Total income (110,609) (108,353) 2,256 66 

EXPENDITURE         

Charge re bad debt provision 2,212 3,193 981 (359) 

Total expenditure 2,212 3,193 981 (359) 

Net income to be raised for precept/ 
billing authority after LCTSS 
awarded (108,397) (105,160) 3,237 (809) 

2020/21 payments to Preceptors/billing 
authority 108,397 108,397 -  -  

In year (surplus)/deficit -  3,237 3,237 (809) 

(Surplus)/deficit brought forward from 
2018/19 (677) 937 1,614 -  

Payments to preceptors re 2018/19 
surplus as per the 2019/20 Budget 
process 677 677 -  -  

Forecast (Surplus)/Deficit as at 
31/03/2021 -  4,851 4,851 (809) 

 

  

Page 113



44 
 

Appendix D Treasury Management   

 Table 1 below summarises the borrowing activity of the Council in the first half 

of the year showing the types of loan, the average interest rate and the 

average length of maturity of each class of loan. 

Table 1 Borrowing  

Debt Type Balance 

at 1/4/20  

£m 

New 

Borrowing 

to Sep-20 

£m 

Repayments 

to Sep-20 

£m 

Balance at 

Sep-20 

£m 

Average 

Rate  

% 

Average 

Maturity 

Years 

Fixed Rate 

Debt 

      

PWLB Debt 109.472 - (3.419) 106.053 2.35% 11.10 

Market Debt 61.000 - - 61.000 4.25% 48.36 

Salix 0.303 - (0.021) 0.282 0.00% 1.81 

Short Term 

Debt 

- - - - - - 

Total Fixed 

Rate Debt 

170.775 - (3.440) 167.335 3.03% 24.67 

       

Variable Rate 

Debt 

      

PWLB - - - -   

Market Debt 59.000 - - 59.000 4.60% 44.09 

Total Variable 

Rate Debt 

59.000 - - 59.000   

       

TOTAL DEBT 229.775 - (3.440) 226.335 3.44% 29.73 

 

  

  

Page 114



45 
 

No long term borrowing has been undertaken so far in 2020/21. The current 

year’s revised capital programme, including rephasing from previous years, 

reductions and planned rephrasing to future years (totalling £54m) has so far 

been funded by internal (from reserves and balances) borrowing and running 

down investments. A similar policy, has been used to support the capital 

programme in the previous 7 years resulting in cumulative internal borrowing at 

the start of the year of £112m This means there is potential for external 

borrowing of £166m in 2020/21 and future years as balances are used for their 

intended purpose or to bridge the overall budget gap. Our current projections 

and balance sheet review indicate that in year borrowing will be limited to the 

need to fund our in-year capital programme. 

Delaying our long term borrowing has led to savings of £339k compared to our 
revised estimate in the first part of the year. Planned rephasing of the capital 
programme has yielded further savings of £475k  
 

A projection of the net cost of interest on the Council’s borrowings and 

investments is shown in table 2. 

 Table 2 Interest Summary 

Interest Original 

Estimate  

£’000 

Current 

Projection  

£’000 

Variation 

Under/Over 

 £’000 

Interest Costs on Borrowing (net of 

Contributions 

7,295 6,481 814 

Investment Income (338) (237) (101) 

Other Interest Related Budgets (net) 354 280 74 

TOTAL INTEREST 7,311 6,524 787 

 

 The Treasury Management Strategy details a number of Prudential Indicators 

which the Prudential Code requires the Council to manage and report on. The 

indictors are as follows: 

 Maturity Structure of Fixed Interest Borrowing 

 Operational and Authorised Limits 

 

 Maturity 

The maturity structure of fixed interest borrowing should enable the maturity of 

loans across a range of years so that the Council will not be exposed to a 

requirement for large amounts of repayment at a particular time. This needs 

balancing against the requirement for certainty of costs to secure budgets going 

forward and the desire to secure the best possible rates. The Prudential Code 

requires the Council to place upper and lower ranges on maturity.  

Page 115



46 
 

Table 3 Period of Maturity 

 

Period of Maturity Upper 

Limited 

Lower 

Limited 

Actual to 

Date 

Under 12 months 60% 0% 3.03% 

Between 12 & 24 months 60% 0% 3.35% 

Between 2 & 5 years 60% 0% 9.28% 

Between 5 & 10 years 70% 0% 12.27% 

Over 10 years 100% 25% 72.07% 

 

 Debt Boundaries & Limits 

The Council’s Operational Boundary (the limit which borrowing should not 

normally exceed) in 2020/21 (adjusted for PFI projects and externally 

managed debt) is £545m. The Authorised Limit (a control on our maximum 

level of borrowing) is £672m. Current borrowing (adjusted for PFI and other 

debt related long term liabilities) is £322.5m – comfortably within the approved 

limits. We do not expect to exceed these limits in the latter half of the year.  

 Investments  

The level of investments on 1st April 2020 was £156.9m (inflated by Covid 

support grant receipts) and is £99.7m at 30/9/20. The level of investments the 

Council targets to maintain in the future will generally be between £30-40m. 

The balance has remained above our target due to slower capital spend and 

the maintenance of reserves and balances. The Council will not meet its 

investment income target of £338k by around £101k as despite having higher 

balances than planned, this is more than offset by significantly reduced interest 

rates caused by base rate cut in response to the Covid-19 pandemic.  The 

average interest rate earned on investments in the first part of the year was 

0.32% compared to our benchmarks of 0.09% / -0.04% (7 Day LIBOR/LIBID 

plus 2 basis points). 

 Investments represent surplus cash as a result of timing differences between 

receipt of funds and related expenditure which creates earmarked reserves and 

balances held for future need. The Council’s main investment priority continues 

to be the security of capital followed by liquidity and yield / return. The Treasury 

Management Team aims to achieve the optimum return commensurate with 

proper levels of security and liquidity. In the current economic climate, with 

continuing credit concerns it is considered appropriate to keep investments 

relatively short dated with no investments placed for more than a year.  Over 

half (54.9%) of our current portfolio is available on call (including Money Market 

Funds) with the remainder invested in notice accounts and fixed term deposits. 

Page 116



47 
 

All investments are made with counterparties with strong credit ratings and 

adhere to the limits (duration and amount with each institution) specified in our 

Treasury Management Strategy. 

 The relative percentages of the investment portfolio held on 30th September 

2020 are detailed in table 10 by maturity, investment type, institution and credit 

rating. 

Table 4 Investment Portfolio 

Maturity 

Maturing Amount  

£m 

% 

Instant Call 54.7 54.9% 

Less than 1 Month 0.0 0.0% 

1-3 Months 2.0 2.0% 

3.-6 Months 28.0 28.1% 

6 Months to 1 Year 15.0 15.0% 

Over 1 Year 0.0 0.00% 

Total 99.7 100% 

 

Type of Investment 

Investment Types Amount £m % 

Fixed Term Deposits 30.0 30.2% 

Notice Accounts 15.0 15.0% 

Call and Overnight 9.7 9.7% 

Money Market Funds 45.0 45.1% 

Total 99.7 100% 

 

  

Page 117



48 
 

 

Institutions 

Institutions Amount £m % 

UK Banks 39.7 39.9% 

Building Societies 0.0 0.0% 

Other Local Authorities 15.0 15.0% 

Money Mark Funds 45.0 45.1% 

Total 99.7 100% 

 

Ratings 

Institution Rating Amount £m % 

A – British 5.0 5% 

A+ British 34.7 34.9% 

AAA – MMFs 45.0 45.1% 

OLA’s – No Ratings 15.0 15.0% 

Total 99.7 100% 

 

Page 118



 

 
 

 
MINUTES OF THE MEETING OF THE GREATER MANCHESTER COMBINED AUTHORITY  
ECONOMY, BUSINESS GROWTH AND SKILLS OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 
FRIDAY 9 OCTOBER 2020 AT 10.30 AM VIA MICROSOFT TEAMS LIVE EVENT 
  
Present:    
 
Rochdale: Councillor Michael Holly (in the Chair) 
Bolton:  Councillor Samantha Connor 

 Councillor Susan Haworth 
Bury:  Councillor Mary Whitby  
Manchester: Councillor Basat Sheikh 
Oldham:  Councillor George Hulme 
  Councillor Sam Al-Hamdani (Substitute) 
Rochdale  Councillor Daniel Meredith    
Salford:    Councillor Jim King 
Trafford: Councillor Barry Brotherton 
Wigan:  Councillor Charles Rigby 

 Councillor Michael Winstanley 
 
In attendance: 
  
Stockport:  Councillor Elise Wilson, Portfolio Lead for Economy 
The Growth Company: Mark Hughes, Chief Executive 
Marketing Manchester: Sheona Southern, Managing Director 
Midas:  Tim Newns, Chief Executive 
GMCA:  Amy Foots, Strategy, GMCA 
  Joanne Heron, Statutory Scrutiny Officer 
  Jenny Hollamby, Senior Governance & Scrutiny Officer 
  John Wrathmell, Director of Strategy, Research & Economy 
    
E32/20  APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE  
 
Apologies for absence were received from Councillors Ray Dutton (Substitute Rochdale), Karen 
Garrido (Salford), Hazel Gloster (Substitute Oldham), Stephen Homer (Tameside), Becky Senior 
(Stockport), Patricia Sullivan (Substitute Rochdale), Greg Stanton (Manchester) and Kerry 
Watters (Stockport). 
 
A further apology was received from Simon Nokes (GMCA). 
 
E33/20  CHAIR’S ANNOUNCEMENTS AND URGENT BUSINESS 
 
There were no items of urgent business reported. 
 
  

Page 119

Agenda Item 12



 

 
 

E34/20  DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 
 
There were no declarations of interest received. 
 
E35/20  MINUTES OF THE MEETING HELD ON 11 SEPTEMBER 2020 
 
The minutes of the meeting held on 11 September 2020 were submitted for approval as a correct 
record subject to several minor typographical errors being corrected. 
 
RESOLVED/- 
 
That the minutes of meeting of the Economy, Business Growth and Skills Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee, held on 11 September 2020 be approved as a correct record subject to several minor 
typographical errors being corrected. 
 
The Vice-Chair took over as Chair, whilst the Chair’s audio problem was addressed.  
 
It was suggested and Members agreed to rearrange the agenda to allow presenting Officers more 
time to access the meeting due to technical issues. 
 
E36/20  GREATER MANCHESTER’S AUTUMN SUBMISSION: COMPREHENSIVE 
 SPENDING REVIEW AND LOCAL RECOVERY & ENGLISH DEVOLUTION 
 WHITE PAPER 
 
The GMCA’s Director of Strategy, Research & Economy, presented a report that provided an 
overview of Greater Manchester’s submission to Government for the upcoming Comprehensive 
Spending Review (CSR) and Local Recovery and English Devolution White Paper (Devolution 
White Paper). 
 
The Chair rejoined the meeting at this point. The Portfolio Lead for Economy, Cllr Elise Wilson, 
joined the meeting to set the scene and answer Members questions. 
 
The main points referred: 
 

 A Member asked about the timeline for levelling up in Greater Manchester.  It was reported 
that as soon as Government had made a decision, a plan and timeline would be developed. 
It was envisaged that the spending review would take place in mid-November 2020, which 
would allow Greater Manchester to respond and set its timeline. 
 

 A discussion took place about research and development and the levelling up agenda. It was 
explained that Local Government, Government and universities needed to work together to 
develop ideas and take them to market. 

 

 Another Member asked if Greater Manchester was capitalising on institutions such as the 
Graphene. Again, this was about working in partnership to create the right conditions to 
develop ideas and get them to market. This remained a frontier sector and the Local 
Enterprise Partnership (LEP) was also very keen to see this happen. The Independent 
Prosperity Review highlighted the importance of this work.  

Page 120



 

 
 

 

 A question was raised about Manchester Airport and the plans to link up HS2. Could a London 
style transport system could be delivered without an underground system?  It was explained 
that the Manchester Airport crisis was unique to the moment and whilst aviation would 
recover in the long term, Government would need to think about support. More confidence 
was needed around HS2 and when it would happen. An integrated transport system in 
Greater Manchester was needed urgently to link up to HS2. If and when HS2 was delivered 
then an underground system would be explored. 
 

 A Member asked if wind energy should be included in the programme Build Back Better. 
Greater Manchester was ambitious about being greener as it was a frontier sector for the 
economy and would provide jobs for the future. It was about making Greater Manchester 
better in terms of people’s lives, education, skills options, life-long learning, making sure 
people were resilient and fundamentally to protect the planet.  

 

 Members discussed small local communities often on the edge of towns with poor bus or rail 
links. Bus reform was the quickest and most affordable way to deliver better public transport 
and connectivity between different boroughs. However, more would be needed and this 
came back to the GMSF and the need to ensure sufficient reach across the City Region. 
Levelling up and investment would need to reach all corners of Greater Manchester.  

 

 A discussion took place about Greater Manchester having a centre for research and 
excellence and if this was challenged enough in the submission.  A concern was raised about 
expenditure in research and development being focused in the same regions. Greater 
Manchester had excellent Universities and research. Further work with businesses would 
help to develop ideas and take these forward.  This would result in Greater Manchester 
bringing back investment and making the UK a strong international partner. The Chair 
suggested that tax incentives for companies could be the way forward. Greater Manchester 
was the only City Region outside the golden triangle that could deliver investment. 

 

 The Chair asked for more detail about the relationship with Government. It was about 
working in partnership with Government, Local Government, businesses and universities not 
just in research and development but in creating sustainable quality jobs. There was a 
responsibility on all politicians to represent the people and find a way to deliver, support and 
make sure they were set up for success.  

 
RESOLVED/-  
 
That Members noted and commented on (minute E36/20 refers) the report. 
 
E37/20 GROWTH COMPANY BUSINESS SUPPORT ACTIVITY 
    
The Growth Company’s Chief Executive supported by Marketing Manchester’s Managing 
Director, presented a report that provided an update on the Growth Company’s business support 
activity in response to Covid-19. 
 
  

Page 121



 

 
 

The main points referred: 
 

 A Member referred to the hospitality sector and the rumours that it would be closed down 
on 19 October 2020 and asked what support would be put in place for the industry. Whilst 
Government schemes were still available, the Chancellor was currently outlining further 
furlough type support for those sectors which had been closed down in restricted areas.  
 

 The Member asked a further question around small sports clubs and what support was 
available in Greater Manchester. It was reported that a direct support package had not been 
developed, however, owners and managers could access mainstream support and were 
encouraged to speak to The Growth Company. 

 

 A discussion took place around Greater Manchester’s diverse company base and how The 
Growth Company had organised itself compared to other Cities.  Members questioned where 
Covid-19 had been harder on some sectors, had resources been rearranged to do the extra 
work or had The Growth Company undergone more extensive change? The main change to 
the company, had been about understanding what businesses needed and flexing services to 
their needs. There was a substantial amount of work taking place within Local Authority 
business support Officers, backfilling capacity. Social media and digital outreach activity and 
had been massively increased as this was the new way of working. 
 

 A Member enquired about European Regional Development (ERDF) funding and if this would 
be would replaced following Brexit. It was confirmed that funding would end in June 2021 
but there was an opportunity to secure a further 24 months of funding beyond that. However, 
match funding would be required and further discussions were taking place within GMCA. 
Subsequent to that, the major expectation was around the growth fund announced by 
Government but as yet, little detail was available. Support in business support was also part 
of the GMCA’s CSR submission. An announcement from Government on the UK Shared 
Prosperity Fund was awaited.  This was intended to replace European structural funds and 
Northern local growth funding and had been included in the submission emphasising its 
necessity in supporting a wide range of programmes in Greater Manchester and for driving 
local growth.  

 

 Reference was made to the commercially available business information provided by 
Redflag/Begbies. The insolvency risk data highlighted that 15% of firms were reported as 
having one or more red flags and signs of financial stress compared to an average of 13% in 
the UK and 14% in the North West. Members questioned why the figure was higher in Greater 
Manchester and were informed that given that the percentages were so close, there was not 
a specific answer. Considering the interaction of the sectors and the types of businesses that 
had been adversely affected by Covid-19, it was suggested there was a greater marginal 
incidence of those in Greater Manchester.  

 

 The Chair provided feedback from the Rochdale Development Agency and Rochdale Council’s 
Economic Directorate about how The Growth Company had been helpful in terms of advising 
businesses and providing the Council with expert and detailed knowledge and identifying 
companies to speak to about discretionary expenditure.  It was acknowledged that the work 
with Local Authorities was excellent and the Chair thanked The Growth Company. 

 

Page 122



 

 
 

 A discussion took place about the long term future of businesses that had been affected by 
changing consumer preferences and Government decisions. Members questioned if the areas 
identified for support were the correct ones and if banks were being helpful to the companies 
experiencing cash flow difficulties? Bank feedback was about bounce bank loans and the 
larger loan to deal with cash flow problems. There was a lot of investment and it was 
suggested the North West was getting its share. Banks were very nervous about the exercise 
even though the loans were backed by Government. Banks were withdrawing from the 
market and only five remained active in the bounce bank area. Banks had also stopped 
registering new businesses. The Growth Company offered a service to guide a business 
through the process.  It was suggested that Government should have put more effort into 
developing more specific schemes that supported the growth agenda and were more 
compensatory for the activities Government was closing down.  

 

 Start-up companies and the support available was discussed. The GMCA had commissioned 
additional start-up support and representations were being made to Government. An open 
letter had been penned as a collective and had been issued to Government setting out key 
points around the compensatory measures, working from home, Covid-19 secure office 
environments paying particular attention to the aviation and hospitality sectors. It was 
agreed that the letter would be shared with the Committee. 
 

 Members referred to banks and their reluctance to lend and the articles in the media relating 
to fraudulent claims. It was suggested that 25% of claims were fraudulent or not paid back 
and Government had missed the opportunity earlier in the year to change its approach to try 
and curtail the extent. The Growth Company, with backing from the GMCA, would soon be 
able to offer a bounce back loan, specifically targeting businesses who were not able to get a 
loan from the banks because they were closing down entry to the scheme. The Growth 
Company had extensive checks and balances and felt they were not experiencing fraudulent 
attempts or an extensive level of defaults. Robust process and checks to combat fraud could 
also adversely affect the legitimate claimant.  

 
RESOLVED/- 
 
That the report be received and noted. 
 
E38/20 UPDATE ON THE DEVELOPMENT OF GREATER MANCHESTER WOMEN &  
 GIRL’S EQUALITY PANEL 
 
Members considered a report that provided an update on the establishment of Greater 
Manchester Women and Girls’ Equality Panel and provided the findings of research undertaken 
by ComRes research on the attitudes and experiences of Greater Manchester women during the 
coronavirus pandemic. 
 
The main points referred: 
 

 A discussion took place about digital exclusion and how that could distort the data. The 
company used to undertake the research did everything it could to ensure accessibility and 
that the people interviewed and the information received was balanced and reflective of the 
community. The survey, under the circumstances, was a fair representation of that moment 

Page 123



 

 
 

in time. Hopefully, a different approach would be used next time. Digital accessibility was 
raised within the survey results, which would be fed into the wider Greater Manchester 
approach around digital exclusion. Members suggested alternative options such as telephone 
calls and post.  
 

 A Member requested that the Committee had site of Quality Impact Assessment and the 
digital strategy to ensure access was given to all residents. 

 

 It was recognised that Male buy in was also important. A Member welcomed contributory 
speeches from men on these issues, such as the fact that most care workers were women 
and access to products women need. Men needed to be on board to achieve ambitions on 
justice and equality matters. This was about a positive improvement and ensuring all people 
had an opportunity.  

 

 Regarding wellbeing and mental health services, it was asked if these services were available 
to young women and girls. It was important for the research to connect with what was 
already in place and plug into the infrastructure. This included young women and older 
women as issues occurred.  It was important for evidence to influence mainstream thinking. 

 

 The ability to compare the issues with same issues within the general population would have 
been beneficial. The survey was specifically designed for women and could not be 
transferred. Members were reassured that the panel would identify gender disparities and 
address them in the wider context.  

 

 Women in lower paid jobs and levelling up was discussed. It was suggested that this was a 
reflection of personal and household wealth and not necessarily a gender factor; it was a 
much wider issue. 

 

 The data sets that sat behind the summary slide deck, particularly around domestic abuse 
would be shared with the Committee. 

 
Resolved/- 
 
1. That the Committee considered and commented on (minute E38/20 refers) the 

establishment of early priorities for the Greater Manchester and Women and Girl’s Equality 
Panel. 

 
2. The findings of the research undertaken of the experience of Greater Manchester women 

during the coronavirus pandemic was received and noted.  
 

E39/20  REGISTER OF KEY DECISIONS  
 
Members considered the register of GMCA Key Decisions for the period 1 September 2020 to 30 
November 2020 that was published on 24 September 2020.   
 
RESOLVED/-  
 
That the register of GMCA Key Decisions be noted.   

Page 124



 

 
 

 
E40/20   COMMITTEE WORK PROGRAMME 2020/2021 
 
Members considered the draft Committee Work Programme for 2020/21 which set out those 
topics and items that would provide a focus of the Committee’s work for the 2020/2021 
municipal year.  
 
The main points referred: 
 

 It was agreed that the culture recovery plan item would be brought forward before it was 
considered by the GMCA. 

 

 It was suggested that Credit Unions, interest free loans and joint work on welfare were added 
to the Work Programme. The Statutory Scrutiny Officer would check if this was within the 
Committee’s remit.  

 

 A Member asked if the Good Employer Charter could be considered at a local level rather 
than a GM level. 

 
RESOLVED/- 
 
That Committee Work Programme and comments made by Members, be actioned and noted.  
 
E41/20  PROGRAMME OF FUTURE MEETINGS  
 
The following dates of future meetings were presented to Members. It was noted that all 
meetings would commence at 10.30 am and would be held via Microsoft Teams Live Events 
unless otherwise stated. 
 

 Friday 13 November 2020 

 Friday 4 December 2020 

 Friday 15 January 2021 

 Friday 5 February 2021 

 Friday 12 March 2021 
 
RESOLVED/- 
 
That the dates and times of future meetings be noted. 

Page 125



MINUTES OF THE MEETING OF THE GREATER MANCHESTER COMBINED AUTHORITY 
CORPORATE ISSUES AND REFORM OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY COMMITTEE, HELD ON TUESDAY  

6 OCTOBER 2020, AS A VIRTUAL MEETING VIA MICROSOFT TEAMS 
 
 
PRESENT: 

Councillor Tom Pickstone Bury (Chair) 
Councillor Akhtar Zaman Bolton (Substitute) 
Councillor Paula Appleby Manchester 
Councillor Sam Al-Hamdani Oldham (Substitute) 
Councillor Colin McLaren Oldham 
Councillor Kallum Nolan Rochdale 
Councillor Tanya Burch Salford 
Councillor Karen Garrido Salford (Substitute) 
Councillor David Jolley Salford 
Councillor Teresa Smith Tameside (Substitute) 
Councillor Sean Anstee Trafford (Substitute) 
Councillor Joanne Marshall Wigan 

 
 
OFFICERS IN ATTENDANCE: 

John Wrathmell Director Strategy, Research and Economy,  GMCA 
Joanne Heron Statutory Scrutiny Officer, GMCA 
Matt Berry Senior Governor & Scrutiny Officer, GMCA 
Jenny Hollamby Senior Governor & Scrutiny Officer, GMCA 
Kris Jones Service Operations Officer, GMCA 

 
 
CI&R/21/20 APOLOGIES 
 
Apologies for absence were received from Councillors Anne Duffield (Trafford), Beverley Fletcher 
(Bolton), John McGahan (Stockport), Dave Morgan (Trafford) and Dena Ryness (Stockport).  
 
Officers: Alison McKenzie-Folan, Chief Executive, Wigan Council and Steve Wilson, GMCA 
 
CI&R/22/20  CHAIR’S ANNOUNCEMENTS AND URGENT BUSINESS 
 
The Chair extended a welcome to those participating on the call.  
 
Members noted that the three Scrutiny Chairs had recently met with the Mayor to discuss future 
agenda themes. At this meeting, the Mayor also indicated that a review of the current scrutiny 
arrangements was to take place and that Scrutiny members contributions to this review will be 
sought in due course.  
 

Page 126



The Chair also explained that the Mayor will be attending the next meeting of this Committee 
and thought will be given as to the agenda for that meeting.  
 
 
CI&R/23/20  DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 
 
There were no declarations of interest made by any Member of the Committee. 
 
 
CI&R/24/20  MINUTES 
 
The minutes of the previous meeting of the Committee, held on 8 September 2020 were 
submitted.  
 
RESOLVED/- 
 
That the minutes of the Committee meeting held on  8 September 2020 be approved as a correct 
record. 
 
 
CI&R/25/20 COVID-19 GMCA FINANCIAL IMPACT AND RESERVES ANALYSIS 
 
John Wrathmell, Director of Strategy, Research and Economy, GMCA, provided an overview of 
the Living with Covid Plan, a one year plan that has been developed in response to the changing 
requirements of the coronavirus pandemic and sought comments from Members to further 
shape and inform the development and delivery of the Plan as it evolves.   
 
Members noted that the Plan seeks to capture early issues that have been made apparent 
because of Covid and identifies a response to build the resilience of the city region over the 
upcoming 12 months. The Plan also provides a link between the current Greater Manchester 
Strategy, which was due to finish this year, and the next version which will now be updated in 
June 2021.     
 
Comments from Members were also sought in relation to the proposed mechanisms to drive 
system wide change to tackle those inequalities that have been highlighted and exacerbated by 
Covid. Members noted that the successful implementation of this Plan will build resilience to 
respond to any further outbreaks or emergencies and will provide a foundation for Greater 
Manchester to build back better.  
 
The following questions and comments were made: -  
 

 A member referred to section 2.1 to the report which identified that the Recovery 
Coordination Group (RCG) would now be meeting on a quarterly basis and enquired if this will 
be reviewed given the probability of further Covid restrictions being introduced in Greater 
Manchester. In response, officers noted that the move to quarterly meetings was done so 
once the Plan was in place. RCG would oversee the work of the Plan, however, a discussion 
on whether there is now a need for RCG to meet more frequently is to take place.   

Page 127



 

 A Member asked if there will be a review of the full fibre broadband contract to allow for 
digitalisation. In response, officers noted that the roll out of full fibre was agreed before the 
corona virus hit and any acceleration of the programme would need to identify additional 
resources. Members noted that work was undertaken to support children during lockdown 
with the provision of essential equipment and internet access. Work was continuing to this 
end to ensure that digital exclusion matters are addressed.  

 

 A Member asked if a local approach to support hospitality workers affected by the impact of 
Covid restrictions is to be developed. In response officers noted that foundational Economy 
section of the local industrial strategy picks up challenges for the hospitality sector. It was also 
noted the Good Employer Charter has been developed and has a focus on those Covid 
associated employment challenges.  Work is also taking place in relation to support training 
and re-training opportunities. An action plan is being developed with Marketing Manchester. 
Where restrictions are in place support is needed from Central Government.  

 

 A Members sought details on the timeframes for the delivery of the Plan. He highlighted that 
local conflicting priorities may compromise delivery. In response, officers noted that there is 
potential risk where local resources are required as the financial impact of the crisis increases.  

 

 A Member highlighted digitalisation issues. The Member also asked if there were details of 
associated costs, capacity and timescales within the Plan. Officers were also asked if GM has 
the ability and resilience to react quickly to matters as the arise. In response, officers noted 
that work is taking place to ensure full-fibre is in place and there is access to relevant 
technology. In terms of resources to act quickly, it was also noted that the partnership 
approach to respond can help with resilience.   

 

 A Member asked if any thought had been given that the impact of Covid is greater in GM than 
elsewhere in the country due to existing inequalities. In response, officers noted that work 
was continuing to understand how and why the virus spreads greater in some areas when 
compared to others. Socio-economic factors of housing, health inequality and higher levels of 
poverty were being explored by the Independent Inequalities Commission. Further details of 
their work will be brought to a future meeting of the committee.  

 
RESOLVED/- 
 
1. That the Living with Covid Plan and observations made by Members be noted and the 

implementation of the Plan as a system wide driver for change and improvement, be 
supported. 
 

2. That the proposed approach whereby all GMCA reports include recommendations that 
assess and identify the impact of the proposal on inequalities, environmental and financial 
issues in relation to the topic. This would be supported by a commitment to collect, analyse 
and report on data, including community intelligence, to understand that impact, be noted.  

 
3. That in building on the recommendation (2) above, the development of a mechanism to 

utilise the established and developing partnership governance for the Age-friendly and 

Page 128



Equalities Portfolio to support system wide responses.  This would include actions to 
address equalities issues identified and unresolved through the above assessment process, 
be noted.  

 
4. That consideration of adopting minimum targets or standards for each locality or 

neighbourhood would support the effective targeting of resources across all GMCA activity, 
as set out in the report, be noted and to also note that this will ensure that there is an 
ongoing recognition that address inequalities in all communities is fundamental to the 
whole of Greater Manchester being able to achieve its collective ambitions. 

 
5. That the report of the Independent Inequalities Commission be shared with Committee 

Members. 
 

 
CI&R/26/20 GREATER MANCHESTER’S AUTUMN SUBMISSION: COMPREHENSIVE 

SPENDING REVIEW AND LOCAL RECOVERY & ENGLISH DEVOLUTION WHITE 
PAPER 

 
John Wrathmell, Director of Strategy, Research and Economy, GMCA introduced a report which 
provided members with an overview of Greater Manchester’s submission to Government for the 
upcoming Comprehensive Spending Review (CSR) and Local Recovery & English Devolution 
White Paper (Devolution White Paper).  
 
The report explained that the GM submission sets out a series of ambitious proposals to 

transform our city region. Members noted that these transformation proposals are grouped 

together under four key themes and include:- 

 

a. The Foundation. Levelling up requires a focus on our people and the services they rely on. 

COVID-19 has had a drastic financial impact on Greater Manchester Authorities, estimated 

at c. £754m in 2020/21 alone. Government funding for the various areas of financial 

pressures has totaled £320m so far, leaving a net impact of £434m. A sustainable financial 

settlement to support our public services - and by extension, our communities - is 

therefore essential, and a prerequisite for the other ambitions in our submission.  

 

b. A Levelled-up Economy. A set of proposals to support our economic recovery and renewal 

following the shock of the pandemic, including:- 

 

 Innovation GM; our plan for achieving a significant uplift in investment in innovation 

and R&D (especially translational R&D) which would bring Greater Manchester up to 

the level of the ‘golden triangle’. 

 A GM Learning and Work Budget: a distinctive new approach to work and skills, 

which improves value-for-money, aligns disjointed Government initiatives and helps 

people get into, and on in, work. 

Page 129



 Action to deliver a Young Person’s Guarantee, with greater GM oversight of support 

for young people, so we can give every young person in GM a clear line of sight into 

local education, training and employment. 

 Investment in a digitally enabled and empowered GM, and wider investment in 

GM’s economic development and competitiveness, funded through a devolved UK 

Shared Prosperity Fund. 

 

c. Improved public service outcomes. A set of proposals to go further and faster on our 

Unified Model of Public Services and improve outcomes and efficiency, including:- 

 

 Our ‘Living Well at Home’ model for social care reform; which could be the basis of 

a new national settlement and which delivers true integration with the NHS and a 

‘new deal’ for users and staff. 

 An enhanced ‘Reform and Innovation Partnership’ that brings together local and 

national investment in public service reform to support innovation in services for 

children and families, ensures we continue to bear down on rough sleeping, and 

supports healthy ageing. 

 

d. Improved connectivity and low carbon infrastructure. A set of proposals that align 

investment with further devolution and place-based appraisal, to deliver substantial 

improvements in infrastructure and connectivity, including:- 

 

 Delivering a London-style transport system in Greater Manchester within this 

Parliament, including radically improved bus services, investment to support our 

Clean Air plans, and devolution over key areas of the transport system (inc. local 

control of rail stations). 

 A GM Infrastructure Programme (GMIP) which uses a devolved multi-year 

infrastructure settlement for GM to deliver an extensive pipeline of transport, 

housing, digital and low-carbon infrastructure which will create liveable, sustainable 

and well-connected places. 

 A GM Smart Energy Transition Region that takes a systemic approach to achieving 

net zero by 2038, investing in transport, retrofitting, innovation and skills and 

retraining. 

 
The following questions and comments were made: -  
 

 A Member sought clarification on timescales associated with the Comprehensive Spending 
Review settlement. The Member identified the existing significant funding challenges facing 
local authorities and if the settlement does not meet these challenges the levelling up 
agenda may be compromised. In terms of Infrastructure and Employment, the Member 
highlighted the importance of Port Salford and noted the lack of investment for this project.  
In response, officers explained that given the wider national context the timescales for the 

Page 130



settlement response were unclear. It is anticipated that a settlement of kind will be 
presented in early December to enable local councils and Government departments set 
budgets for the upcoming financial year.  

 
Officers noted that GM is in a good position to receive investment. It was suggested that 
capital investment funding for projects will be for more than one year to allow for delivery.   

 

 In terms of the London style transport system for GM, a Member asked if there is a pipeline 
of GM transport infrastructure projects, should Government seek to fund schemes quickly.   
In response, officers noted that there is a pipeline of projects. Transport projects are set out 
in the Transport Plan 2040. The potential investment for research and development was 
highlighted. Innovation work undertaken by university partners has developed an integrated 
group of projects.  

 
RESOLVED/- 

 

That the update on Greater Manchester’s autumn submission to Government be received with 

thanks and noted.  

 
CI&R/27/20 WORK PROGRAMME FOR THE 2020/21 MUNICIPAL YEAR 
 
Members considered the committee work programme for 2020/21.  
 
It was noted that the GM Mayor was to be attending the next meeting of the Committee. In light 
of this, the Chair indicated that he would liaise with Committee Members for their views on how 
best the committee can scrutinise the work of the Mayor.  
 
RESOLVED/- 
 
That the Committee Work Programme be noted.  
 
 
CI&R/28/20  GMCA REGISTER OF KEY DECISIONS 
 
RESOLVED/- 
 
That the GMCA Register of Key Decisions be noted. 
 
 
CI&R/29/20  DATES AND TIMES OF FUTURE MEETINGS 
 
All meetings would be held virtually on:  

 

 10 November 2020 

 8 December 2020 

 19 January 2021 

Page 131



 9 February 2021 

 16 March 2021 
 

Page 132



 
 

CORPORATE OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY  
 

WORK PROGRAMME 2020/2021 
 

Who are we? 
 
The Corporate Overview and Scrutiny Committee is made up of 11 Members 
(reflecting the Council’s political balance) who manage the functions of the 
Committee (as detailed within the Constitution of the Council- also see the 
how we do it section below).  The meeting dates and report deadline dates 
are as follows:   

Name of Committee Final Reports Deadline 
Agenda Publication 

Deadline 
Date of meeting 

Corporate Overview and Scrutiny 

Committee  
Thursday, 23rd July 2020 Monday, 27th July 2020 Tuesday, 4th August 2020 

Corporate Overview and Scrutiny 

Committee 
Thursday, 10th September 2020 

Monday, 14th September 

2020 

Tuesday, 22nd September 

2020 

Corporate Overview and Scrutiny 

Committee 
Thursday, 12th November 2020 

Monday, 16th November, 

2020 

Tuesday, 24th November 

2020 

Budget Corporate Overview and Scrutiny 

Committee 
Wednesday, 26th January 2021 Friday, 28th January 2021 Monday, 8th February 2021 

Corporate Overview and Scrutiny 

Committee 
Thursday, 4th March 2021 Monday, 8th March, 2021 Tuesday, 16th March 2021 

 
 
What we do 
 
The Committee’s primary role is to hold the executive to account by way of 
undertaking policy and budget development reviews as well as 
questioning/challenging the judgement and decisions making of the 
Executive, Members, Portfolio Holders and Senior Officers. The Committee’s 
work is also supported by the study groups it commissions and monitors.  
 
How we do it 
 
The functions of the Corporate Overview and Scrutiny Committee are: 
 

 Develop a work programme detailing the objectives, timetable and 
methodology. 

 Responsible Committee for scrutiny of Townships generally; corporate 
service development and delivery; for scrutiny of partnerships or key 
contractors (e.g. Agilysis); corporate performance monitoring; 
corporate financial monitoring and the annual budget development 
consultation, and for overview of the respective Portfolio Holders and 
Directors. 

Page 133

Agenda Item 13



 Respond to consultation by Cabinet on relevant policy development 
and the annual budget proposals. 

 Scrutinise the in-year performance of Council Services and other 
appropriate bodies, in accordance with the Council’s Performance 
Management Framework and against approved Directorate Plans, 
where appropriate. 

 Scrutinise in-year budget performance. 

 Instigate the appropriate action in response to adverse service 
performance. 

 Scrutinise inspection reports and associated action plans produced by 
external agencies (where appropriate to this Committee). 

 Review and scrutinise executive decisions in accordance with the 
Council’s Constitution, which have been called-in by Members of the 
Council. 

 Receive reports, where appropriate, from the Council’s representatives 
on outside bodies, and to direct representatives to report to the 
Council, where appropriate. 

 Commission, scope and oversee studies and reviews relating to 
Council Services and issues directly affecting the Borough and, where 
appropriate, to make recommendations to the Cabinet arising from 
such studies and reviews. 

 Consider Annual Service Plans in line with Council Policy (Part 4E - 
Constitution of the Council). 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Page 134



CORPORATE OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE – MEETINGS IN 
20120/2021 

 
4th August 2020 

 
 
8th September 2020 
 

Work Programme  To note the Committee’s Work 
Programme 

Call-in/Member items/other referrals  

Directorate Plans 2020/2021 
(Resources and Neighbourhoods) 

 

Health Related Absence Reporting  

Employment Equality Report 2019/2020  

Corporate Complaints - Update Financial scrutiny 

Proposed Discretionary Fees and 
Charges for 2021/2022 

Financial scrutiny  

Comprehensive Financial Update – 
Presentation (P4) – including Revenue 
Budget and Capital Programme 
proposals 

Financial scrutiny 

Cyber Security  Request from the Committee’s last 
meeting 

GMCA Scrutiny Committee Minutes for information 

 
 
24th November 2020 
 

Work Programme  To note the Committee’s Work 
Programme  

Call-in/Member items/other referrals    

Work Programme To consider the Committee’s Work 
Programme for 2020/2021 

Call-in/Member items/other referrals  

Directorate Plan Updates (4th Quarter 
2019/2020) 

 Resources Directorate 

 Neighbourhoods (Corporate 
Services) Directorate 

Performance management and 
monitoring 

Finance Update 2020/2021  

Treasury Management Year-End Report 
2019/20 

 

Budget 2021/22 to 2023/24 Guidelines 
and Timetable 

 

Property Growth Fund – Outturn report 
2019/2020 

 

Township Plan 2020- 2022  

  

Page 135



Corporate Complaints report  

Local Government Ombudsman:  
Annual Review 2019/2020 

Performance monitoring and 
management 

Comprehensive Financial Update – 
Presentation (P6) 
 

Financial scrutiny 

Schools Outturn report 2019/2020 Performance monitoring and 
management 

Insurance Claims Report (including vfm 
presentation from the Council’s 
insurance brokerage representatives) 

Financial scrutiny 

Directorate Plan Updates (1st and 2nd 
Quarters 2020/2021) 

 Resources Directorate 
Neighbourhoods (Corporate Services) 
Directorate 

 

GMCA Scrutiny Committee Minutes for information 

 
 
8th February 2021 (Budget Scrutiny meeting) 

 
 
16th March 2021 
 

Work Programme To note the Committee’s Work 
Programme 

Call-in/Member items/other referrals    

Directorate Plan Updates (3rd Quarter 
2020/2021) 

 Resources Directorate 

 Neighbourhoods (Corporate 
Services) Directorate 

Performance monitoring and 
management 

Corporate Complaints (6 monthly 
update) 

Performance monitoring and 
management 

Health Related Absence (6 monthly Performance monitoring and 

Work Programme To note the Committee’s Work 
Programme  

Call-in/Member items/other referrals    

Comprehensive Financial Update – 
Presentation. Including; 

 Council Tax 

 Medium Term Financial Strategy 

 Revenue and Capital Budgets 
and Council Tax 2021/2022  
Robustness of the budget 

 Detail on Children’s budget 

Budget development 

Treasury Management Strategy Budget Scrutiny 

Corporate Debt Strategy Budget Scrutiny 

GMCA Scrutiny Committee Minutes for information 

Page 136



update) management 

Financial Update Financial scrutiny 

GMCA Scrutiny Committee Minutes for information 

 
Other items to be assigned a meeting 
 

Communications Priorities  

PSR – Public Sector Reform  

  

  

 

Page 137



Document is Restricted

Page 138

Agenda Item 15
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A

of the Local Government Act 1972.



Document is Restricted

Page 144

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.


	Agenda
	4 Minutes
	COSActionsList-Sept-2020

	5 Resources and Neighbourhoods Directorate Plans 2020-21 Quarter 2 Performance Update
	Append. 1 for Resources and Neighbourhoods Directorate Plans 2020-21 Quarter 2 Performance Update
	Append. 2 for Resources and Neighbourhoods Directorate Plans 2020-21 Quarter 2 Performance Update

	6 LGO Annual Report 2019/2020
	LGO letter 1
	LGO 3

	7 2021/22 Setting the Business Rate Base
	2021/22 Setting the Buisness Rate Base enc. 1

	8 Calculation of 2021-22 Taxbase
	Calculation of 2021-22 Taxbase enc. 1

	9 Council Tax Empty Property Charges
	Council Tax Empty Property Charges enc. 1

	10 Schools Final Outturns and Reportable Surplus 2019/2020
	11 Finance Update Report Period 6
	4. Revenue Budget 2020/21
	4.2 Health & Social Care Pool Budget
	4.3 Budget Pressures
	4.4 Savings
	4.5 Transformation Fund
	4.6 Capital Budget 2020/21
	4.6.1 Capital Budget Changes

	12 Greater Manchester Combined Authority - Minutes of Scrutiny Committees
	2020-10-06 CIR Minutes

	13 Work Programme 2020/2021
	15 Insurance Claims Report 2019/2020
	insurance report appendix


